
  

 
 
  
 
  
 
 
 
 

AGENDA – Part A 
(Open to the public) 

 

 

 

1. Welcome, Apologies & quorum 

 Thanks to Cllr Mike Hogg, who has retired from Board, and thanks to 
Alan Blois, who will retire from Board following this meeting. 

 Welcome Cllr Phil Coleman to the Board, appointed to Board by CBC. 
 
2. Declarations of Interest by Board Members and Officers 
 Members and officers to declare any interests not in the Register 
 
3. Minutes of previous meeting (Page 5) 

To approve as a true record the minutes of the meeting held on 24 April 2018 
and to deal with any matters arising  

 
4. Voice Your View 

 Mrs. Jan Sexton 
 
APPOINTMENTS & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE ITEM FOR DECISION 
 
Note: Only non-executive directors may vote on Item 5 
 
5. Redundancy Policy (Page 13) 

Michael Hadjimichael, Director of Resources 
Angelique Ryan, Head of HR & Governance 

 
ITEMS FOR INFORMATION 
 
6. Annual Health & Safety Report (Page 37) 

Michael Hadjimichael, Director of Resources 
 
7. Briefing regarding the Independent Review of Building Regulations and 

Fire Safety: final report, May 2018 (Page 99) 
Mark Wright, Director of Property Services 
 

8. Resident Insight & Engagement Presentation (Page 109) 
Polly Hardy, Resident Engagement Officer 

 
ITEMS FOR DECISION 
 
9. Appointment of Michael Campbell to Finance & Audit Committee 

membership (Verbal)  
Anne Grahamslaw, Chair of the Board 

 
Continues overleaf… 

 

COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED  
ONE-HUNDRED-AND-SECOND BOARD MEETING   
  
To be held 5.30pm, Wednesday 20 June 2018 
Room 1, Rowan House, 33 Sheepen Road 
Colchester CO3 3WG 
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Colchester Borough Homes Ltd 
Company Number 4843624 
A Company Limited by Guarantee 
Registered in England 

10. Business Opportunities Panel Terms of Reference (Page 121)
Owen Howell, Board Assurance Officer

11. Staff Code of Conduct (Page 129)
Michael Hadjimichael, Director of Resources
Angelique Ryan, Head of HR & Governance

12. Repairs Policy (Page 141)
Mark Wright, Director of Property Services

13. Strategic Risk Register Review (Page 163)
Michael Hadjimichael, Director of Resources

14. Approval of Company Accounts (Page 169)
Michael Hadjimichael, Director of Resources

15. Code of Governance Review (Page 223)
Owen Howell, Board Assurance Officer

STANDING ITEMS 

16. Finance Assurance Report (Page 245)
Michael Hadjimichael, Director of Resources

17. Performance Assurance Report (Page 251)
Karen Loweman, Director of Housing

18. Committee Minutes Report (Page 253)

Operations Committee Thursday 10 May 2018 

19. Forward Look (Page 259)
An update of future decisions required and items to be discussed at future
Board meetings.

20. Any Other Business

 Board Members’ activities.

21. Exclusion of the Public

22. Confidential Board Meeting

Items to be considered in confidential session: 

 Chief Executive’s Report

 Confidential Finance Assurance Report
 Business Development Plan, targets and VFM targets.

Continues overleaf… 
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Forthcoming meetings: 
 

Meeting Dates for 2018 

Monday 23 July 

Wednesday 12 September 

Thursday 1 November (& AGM) 

Monday 10 December 
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Minutes of the Hundred-and-first Board Meeting of Colchester Borough Homes 

Tuesday 24 April 2018 
At Room 1, Rowan House 
Colchester CO3 3WG 

Present: In Attendance: 

Anne Grahamslaw 
Cllr Nigel Chapman 
Glenn Houchell 
Cllr Mike Hogg 
Cllr Cyril Liddy 
Michala Carey 
Michael Campbell 
Julie Parker 
Geoff Foster 
Gareth Mitchell 

(Chair) 
(Vice Chair) 

Michael Hadjimichael 
Karen Loweman 
Mark Wright 
Matt Armstrong 
Lynn Thomas 
Karen Syrett 
Andrew Tyrell 
Mrs. Irene Green 
Owen Howell
Heidi Mussett  

(CBC) 
(CBC) 
(CBC) 

(Minutes) 

1. Apologies and quorum

1.1 

2. 

2.1 

Apologies were received from Alan Blois. The meeting was declared quorate. 
The Chair welcomed representatives of CBC, and Mrs Irene Green who would 
be speaking at ‘Voice your view’. 

Declaration of interests by Board Members and Officers 

There were no new declarations of interest. 

3. Minutes of the meeting held on 22 February 2018 and Matters Arising

3.1 The minutes were approved for the Chair to sign. 

3.2 Regarding Board’s electronic decision to appoint Michael Campbell as chair of 
the newly-formed Resident Panel, Owen Howell explained that Geoff Foster had 
voted in favour of this appointment, and that this vote had erroneously been 
omitted from the original report on this decision which had been provided to all 
Board Members (subsequently corrected). The vote to appoint was therefore 
unanimous. 

4. Voice your view

4.1 Mrs Irene Green spoke to Board and officers regarding problems she had 
experienced with scheduled repairs to the fence at her property being delayed by 
over a year and a lack of communication from CBH regarding repairs. A recently-
promised letter regarding adaptations to a bathroom has also not been received, 
and promised contact by a manager has not occurred. Mrs Green also described 
a problem experienced by one of her neighbours. Mrs Green’s primary concern 
was to ensure that communications improved, with clear answers being provided 
to residents’ questions. 

4.2 Mark Wright confirmed that he had spoken to Mrs Green prior to the meeting, 
examined the correspondence on this, and that any commitments to provide 
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fencing works which were made before the approval of the new Asset 
Management Strategy would be met under the terms of the previous Strategy. 
 
Mark requested that Mrs Green let him know which of her neighbours had 
experienced a problem and gave assurance that he would follow this up following 
the meeting. He also confirmed that Matt Armstrong (present) could take up the 
issue concerning Mrs Green’s bathroom adaptations. 

  
4.3 Mrs Green further requested for the local housing officer to visit and meet with 

tenants in the village once or twice annually, to discuss issues arising and any 
concerns which residents might hold. Karen Loweman explained that the 
increasing size of housing officers’ areas had made this more difficult, but that 
the tenancy audit programme had helped to ensure that all residents’ concerns 
were heard, with Make a Difference Days also helping. Karen promised to ask 
the local housing officer to arrange to meet with Mrs Green and other local 
tenants. 

  
4.4 The Chair agreed that the points and issues raised by Mrs Green were very 

important for CBH to act upon and improve our service where parts had gone 
wrong.  

  
 Board stressed the importance of discerning whether this had been an isolated 

communications failure, or whether this was an example of a more wide-spread 
failure. Gareth Mitchell endorsed this, and explained that a comprehensive 
programme had recently been rolled out across the Company to set expectations 
relating to good communications and customer treatment/service. Overall, 
performance has been good, but examples such as the one given are 
unacceptable and will be addressed. 

  
5. Scrutiny Panel Report 
  
5.1 Karen Loweman presented the report which focused on Make a Difference Days 

(MAD Days), their strengths and potential ways to improve them. Michael 
Campbell, who had worked on the Scrutiny Panel’s investigation into MAD Days, 
briefed fellow Board Members on what they had observed and found. 

  
5.2 Karen Loweman confirmed that a number of the recommendations made had 

already been incorporated into the planned MAD Days, and the impact of 
improvements would be monitored and assessed. 

  
5.3 Glenn Houchell (chair of the Finance & Audit (F&A) Committee) asked for 

information regarding how we assess the cost of MAD Days in terms of officer 
time given over to these (as an investment into communities) and maximising the 
social return on investment. Karen Loweman confirmed that social impact was 
measured, and that volunteering was encouraged, with benefits to both the 
communities and to staff (team-building, wellbeing etc). 

  
6. Fire Safety Policy 
  
6.1 The Company’s approach and commitments to fire safety have previously been 

covered under the Health & Safety Policy, but these are now contained in a 
separate policy, in accordance with the CBC Fire Action Group’s 
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recommendation. Whilst CBC is the responsible body regarding fire safety in 
their stock, they have discharged their duty to CBH as their management 
company. Board approval was therefore necessary. 

6.2 The Policy has been thoroughly reviewed and recommended by stakeholders, 
including by CBC, the Fire Action Group and by Essex Fire & Rescue Service. 

6.3 Geoff Foster informed Board that he had reviewed the Policy at the ‘soft review’ 
stage. He further recommended that the final paragraph of 7.3 (Stay Put Policy) 
be moved up to follow the first sentence, in order to emphasise the advice and 
avoid confusion. This was agreed. Action: Michael Hadjimichael to ensure that 
this amendment is made. 

6.4 Board questioned whether there should be a quick-reference guide to fire safety 
which could be given to residents, distilling the main elements of this policy as it 
relates to them. Michael clarified that this policy was primarily a guide for staff 
and that the relevant parts for tenants would be communicated and advertised to 
all tenants. Board then cautioned that the phrasing (e.g. use of pronouns and 
possessive determiners such as ‘you’ and ‘your’) should be constructed 
according to who the intended audience was expected to be. 

6.5 Answering questions about the process of monitoring and frequency of review, 
Michael explained that DMT sees a monthly update report, with Board receiving 
an annual report (as a key part of the Health & Safety report). Reports would be 
brought to Board outside of this using an exception-reporting approach. 

6.6 Board asked whether this policy only covered CBC properties, or if it also 
covered any other landlords who may use CBH as their property management 
company. Michael confirmed that it applied to CBC properties, and Board agreed 
that it would be important for the same information and approach be used with 
regard to the tenants of any future landlords who may use the property 
management service of CBH. It was confirmed that a small number of properties 
owned by the Co-op were managed by CBH, and that this would apply to their 
tenants. 

6.7 Decision: Board approved the Policy, subject to the amendment noted at 6.3 
(above). 

7. Adoption of Asset Management Strategy

7.1 Mark Wright highlighted that the Strategy would not be reviewed until after three 
years, but that supporting policies will be reviewed and amended when this may 
be deemed necessary.  

7.2 Board highlighted the contentious nature of some disputes which arose regarding 
boundaries and asked whether the Boundary Definition Policy was strong 
enough to cover any disputes (e.g. between actual boundaries vs. common-use 
boundaries). Mark explained that if an incorrect boundary has been set and left 
unchallenged for over seven years, this then becomes the new legal boundary, 
which causes difficulties. This explains the wording of the Policy and the efforts 
made to ensure that CBC do not ‘gift’ slivers of land to adjoining properties 
through the installation of fences within the bounds of CBC land. This is the first 
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Boundary Policy to be put in place by CBC, and feedback would be sought from 
residents, councillors and officers. This will then feed into its review and 
amendment. The review date is set at three years, but this can be brought 
forward and amendments made if necessary. 

7.3 Cllr Cyril Liddy asked that it be recorded that positive feedback had been given 
by a resident who had informed a fellow councillor that they had received a new 
kitchen from CBH and were very pleased with the contractors’ work. 

7.4 Mark Wright confirmed that the draft Repairs Policy (Appendix 7) was not yet 
complete, and requested that Members send him any questions on this after the 
meeting. 

7.5 Decision: Board voted to adopt the Asset Management Strategy 2018-22 

8. Strategic Plan: Approval of Delivery Plans

8.1 Gareth Mitchell recapped the progress made in laying out the Strategic Plan and 
its delivery plans, as well as the planned quarterly reporting schedule. In 
response to questions about the gaps remaining in some sections of the plans, 
Gareth explained that it had been agreed that these would come to Board in as 
complete a state as possible at this time, with some elements remaining to be 
finalised and approved at a later stage (such as the Business Development Plan 
targets, to be approved later in the meeting). These are ‘live’ documents which 
will undergo changes during their lifetimes. 

8.2 Board asked why the Leadership Plan deadline was set as far away as 2022. 
Gareth elucidated that this was the time-window for CBH’s strategic planning 
(bearing in mind the timing of the next Management Agreement Review), and 
that 2022 was the target date for completion of every element, with some 
elements being completed much more quickly. 

8.3 Decision: Board voted to approve the Value for Money, Technology & 
Investment Plan 2018-22 
Decision: Board voted to approve the Leadership Plan 2018-22 
Decision: Board voted to approve the Community Plan 2018-22 

9. Strategic Risk Register Review

9.1 Michael Hadjimichael reminded Board that the Homelessness Reduction Act 
comes into force this month, and that, owing to the mitigations and preparatory 
work carried out, it is likely that the rating of the related strategic risk will drop in 
coming months.  

9.2 CBH had been successfully reaccredited with BSI accreditation relating to Health 
& Safety (OHSAS 18001), Quality Management (ISO 9001) and Environmental 
Management (ISO 14001). Some minor recommendations have been made. The 
Board placed on record their thanks and appreciation for those officers who had 
ensured that reaccreditation had been achieved. 
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10. Business Opportunity Panel Terms of Reference

10.1 Owen Howell noted three minor wording adjustments which would be made to 
the Terms, should they be approved. 

10.2 Board Members questioned the £150k limit up to which the Panel could authorise 
trading contracts, asking whether this should be revised upwards. Michael 
Hadjimichael reminded Board that the approval limits were laid out in the 2013 
Trading Protocol, agreed by both CBH and CBC, and that a conversation would 
be needed with CBC if changes were to be proposed. 
Action: Owen Howell to amend the Terms to clarify that the approval limit is for 
trading opportunities worth up to £150k per annum (to match what is laid out in 
the Trading Protocol). 

10.3 Board discussed the levels of authority as laid out in 3. and 3.1. Further 
discussion was held over approval levels set for high and medium risk items. 
Gareth Mitchell agreed that it was a valid concern to want to ensure that high- 
and medium-risk items were approved at a reasonable level of authority, agreed 
with fellow Board Members that any high-risk items should be brought to the 
Panel (even if they are of a value low enough for DMT to make a decision upon 
them). It was further confirmed that any change would need to be with the 
consent of CBC. Decision: Board directed Michael Hadjimichael to approach 
CBC to gain approval for an amendment to the Trading Protocol to direct that 
high-risk opportunities valued at or below £50kpa be brought to the Business 
Opportunities Panel, rather than to be decided by DMT. Action: Michael 
Hadjimichael to carry out this directive. 

10.2 Board Members queried whether 1.1 needed to be amended to reflect the new 
composition of the Board, now that Gareth Mitchell had been appointed as an 
executive director/Board Member. The Chair agreed the importance of this point, 
especially given the content currently insisting on a member of the ‘executive 
management team’ being appointed by the Chief Executive [which would be in 
addition to the Chief Executive/executive director himself/herself]. 

10.3 Decision: Owing to the additional amendments requested, particularly at 10.2 
(above) Board directed Owen Howell to make these changes and return the 
Terms of Reference for Board approval at a later date. Action: Owen Howell to 
amend the Terms and resubmit for approval. 

11. Information & Confidentiality Policy

11.1 Owen Howell explained that the Policy had been comprehensively reworded, and 
additional procedures and guidance documents produced, in order to meet our 
duties to comply with the incoming GDPR, and to demonstrate this compliance. 
Copies of these are available for Members to examine, should they request 
them. 

11.2 The soft review of this amended policy had been carried out by Glenn Houchell, 
with further substantive changes and clarifications then being carried out. Glenn 
had also suggested that Board Members may wish to discuss what oversight 
arrangements might be most appropriate to provide assurance to Members that 
compliance work and practices met the requirements under the GDPR and that 
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potential financial and reputational risks were being managed and mitigated. 
Owen Howell confirmed that the CBC/CBH Data Protection Officer (DPO) had 
clearly stated that data protection required oversight at Board level, with updates 
regarding the risk item for data protection. 

11.3 Decision: Board approved the Information and Confidentiality Policy 
Decision: Board approved Glenn Houchell’s motion to direct that an annual 
report on data protection issues be presented to Board by the Company’s DPO. 
The DPO will also report to the Board any exceptions or arising issues which 
may affect the reputation of CBH, Board’s liabilities and/or the Company’s 
operations. 

Gareth Mitchell confirmed that the DPO reports directly to him as Chief Executive 
and that they had already met to discuss the compliance project. 

12. Finance Assurance Report

12.1 Subject to audit adjustments, CBH is expected to show an immaterial deficit of 
£10k-£15k. Draw down requests have been able to be absorbed, especially 
relating to the Working Smarter Project. 

13. Performance Assurance Report

13.1 Karen Loweman informed Board that the one amber KPI (relating to complaints) 
showed as amber due to the low overall number of complaints, with two 
complaints received in March being complex issues which were upheld. 

14. Committee Minutes Report

14.1 Glenn Houchell (Chair of F&A Committee) explained that his Committee’s 12 
December meeting had focussed on the 2018/19 budget, with the 8 March 
meeting had examined future internal and external audit plans 

15. Forward Look

15.1 Owen Howell highlighted that the Staff Code of Conduct would now come to 
Board for approval on 20 June. Action: Owen Howell to add the Repairs Policy 
to the Forward Look for the 20 June meeting. 

15.2 Board asked when they would be shown detail of plans for new business and 
trading targets. The Chair confirmed that, following the Business Opportunities 
Panel meeting held earlier that day, a discussion on this would be held by Board 
at this meeting, within the confidential section. 

16. Any other business

Board Member activities. 
16.1  On 23 February, Michael Campbell and Cllr Cyril Liddy took part in the bus

tour of CBH stock/communities.
 On 8 March Michael Campbell was given a tour of Enoch House.
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Protocol for reviewing and amending meeting minutes. 
16.2 The process was summarised by the Chair, stating that draft minutes for Board 

and committees would be first sent to the chair of the meeting for review, and 
then circulated to the Members as soon after meetings as possible, with 
Members to notify the minute taker of any errors (e.g. typo’s, incorrect 
attendances etc.). If Members wish to make substantive changes to the minutes 
or their phrasing and emphasis, these must be raised at the following meeting of 
the body in question when the minutes are reviewed and approved. 

Electronic Decision Making 
16.3 Julie Parker raised concern that a recent use of the electronic decision making 

(EDM) process had not been as effective or well-handled as it could have been. 
She explained her view that EDM items should be treated in the same way as 
decision items being brought to Board meetings, e.g. be presented with a 
covering report, a clear question on which to decide, and any relevant 
background information to ensure Members were given the details needed in 
order to make an informed decision.  

The Chair stressed that the EDM procedure should only be used where there is a 
time-constraint which means the decision cannot wait until a formal meeting, and 
that when used, any decision must be presented with a report and the 
appropriate amount of background information as possible, and enough on which 
to make an informed decision. Board agreed with this approach. Action: Owen 
Howell to amend the EDM Procedure to reflect this. 

With no further business, the open meeting concluded at 18:33. 
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Item Action Who By When Done 

24 April 2018 

6.3 
Fire Safety Policy: The final paragraph of 
7.3 (Stay Put Policy) be moved up to follow 
the first sentence 

Michael 
Hadjimichael (to 

ask R. Curtis) 

4 May 
2018 Yes 

10.2 
Amend the BOP Terms of Reference to 
clarify that the approval limit is for trading 
opportunities worth up to £150k per annum 

Owen Howell 4 May 
2018 Yes 

10.3 

Approach CBC to gain approval for an 
amendment to the Trading Protocol to 
direct that high-risk opportunities valued at 
or below £50kpa be brought to the 
Business Opportunities Panel, rather than 
to be decided by DMT. 

Michael 
Hadjimichael 

20 June 
2018 

Gareth 
Mitchell to 
take up 
when new 
CBC 
Assistant 
Director is 
in post. 

15.1 Add the Repairs Policy to the Forward Look 
for the 20 June meeting Owen Howell 4 May 

2018 Yes 

16.3 Amend the EDM Procedure to reflect 
Board’s wishes. Owen Howell 4 May 

2018 Yes 
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REPORT TO COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES BOARD:
APPOINTMENTS & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

DATE: 20 June 2018 

TIME: 5.30pm 

VENUE: Room 1, Rowan House 

AGENDA ITEM: 5 

SUBJECT: Redundancy Policy 

REPORT BY: Angelique Ryan, Head of HR and Governance 
 (01206) 282374 
  angelique.ryan@cbhomes.org.uk 

For Decision 

1. Decision Required

1.1 For the A&R Committee to formally approve the revised Redundancy Policy. 

2. Background

2.1 

2.2 

2.3 

The Redundancy Policy outlines the approach to be adopted in cases of 
potential redundancy.  

The Redundancy Policy is outlined within the Employee Handbook with a link 
provided to the full Policy. All new starters are required to familiarise 
themselves with the document. 

The Redundancy Policy was last reviewed in 2015. 

3. Amendments to the Redundancy Policy

3.1 

3.2  

3.3 

The Redundancy Policy was reviewed to ensure that it is fit for purpose, 
written in plain English and reflects best practice. 

Views were sought from Senior Management and Unison when drawing up 
the revised document. Informal soundings were also taken from the Chair of 
the Board, Anne Grahamslaw, in advance of it coming to the Board for 
approval. All of the recommended changes to the Redundancy Policy can be 
viewed as tracked changes in Appendix 1. 

The main changes are as follows; 

 Section 7 has been revised to detail the reduction in pay protection
from three to two years as agreed with Unison,

 Other changes have been made throughout the document to improve
the clarity and language used within the Policy.
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4. Financial and Value for Money Implications

4.1 The reduction in pay protection from three to two years should result in 
savings from future organisational reviews where employees secure 
employment at a lower grade. 

5. HR Implications

5.1 There are no direct HR implications to the revised Redundancy Policy other 
than those outlined within this report. 

6. Legal Implications

6.1 The Redundancy Policy forms part of all employees’ terms and conditions of 
employment and as such the changes to the Policy have been made in 
consultation with Unison. 

7. Health & Safety Implications

7.1 There are no direct Health and Safety implications to the revised Policy. 

8. Equality & Diversity Implications

8.1 The Redundancy Policy applies to all staff equally and does not disadvantage 
any particular employee group. A revised Equality Impact Assessment has 
been carried out. 

9. 

9.1 

Residents at the Heart 

The Policy aims to provide secure employment and to avoid compulsory 
redundancy wherever possible. This approach should help to provide 
residents with consistency of service and best value for money.  

10. Appendices

10.1 Appendix 1: Redundancy Policy 
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Redundancy Policy 

Author:  Angelique Ryan, Head of HR & Governance 

Version 1.3 

June 2018 
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1. Introduction

1.1. Our aim at Colchester Borough Homes is to provide secure employment 
wherever possible, by the efficient and effective management of our 
operations and human resources. 

1.2. It is our policy to avoid compulsory redundancy wherever possible by human 
resource planning, consultation with employees and consideration of 
alternatives to compulsory redundancy as set out in this document. 

1.3. We recognise that there may be certain circumstances, including for example, 
changes in service levels, funding, legislation and organisational efficiency 
requirements, which will affect the organisation’s need to employ staff or to 
retain staff at a particular location. 

1.4. In such circumstances, our objectives through this policy are: - 

a) to maximise job security and continuity of employment.

b) to minimise the need for compulsory redundancy.

c) to ensure that redundant employees are treated fairly and consistently.

1.5. The policy statement applies to all employees of Colchester Borough Homes 
employees. 

2. Notification and consultation

2.1. Where a change which affects job security is considered, Colchester Borough 
Homes will formally notify the employee, and the appropriate Trade Unions, 
as soon as possible before the proposed date of implementation and not later 
than the statutory periods of notification provided under the Trade Union and 
Labour Relations Act 1992. 

2.2. Before firm decisions are taken on any such measure there will be full 
consultation with the appropriate Trade Unions. This consultation will take 
place regardless of whether or not the people affected by the redundancies 
are Trade Union members. 

2.3. In consulting the Trade Unions, Colchester Borough Homes will provide the 
following information:- 

 the reasons for the proposals
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 the number of employees involved and the descriptions of the job roles
of those employees

 the total numbers involved

 the way people will be selected for redundancy

 the way any redundancies will be carried out and over what timescale

 the method of calculating redundancy payments

2.4. Notifications to individuals affected by compulsory redundancy are set out in 
para. 6.1. 

2.5. Colchester Borough Homes will ensure that the Trade Unions are consulted 
prior to the release of any information concerning redundancies to the press. 

3. Measures to avoid compulsory redundancy

3.1. Colchester Borough Homes will look for ways in which to preserve continuity 
of employment and avoid compulsory redundancy. A range of options will be 
considered and are set out in the following paragraphs, which are not in order 
of priority. 

 3.2. Within the Group affected and within other groups where there could be 
employment opportunities for employees 'at risk'. The following measures will 
be adopted as appropriate; they are not listed in any order of priority.  

a) An embargo on the engagement of consultancy, contracting, agency,
temporary or casual staff where employment opportunities can be
made available to employees 'at risk'.

b) A review of overtime in areas where this would provide employment
opportunities.

c) Cessation of normal recruitment procedures in the employee categories
concerned and in any other areas where displaced employees might be
absorbed. In this event, no vacant post will be advertised externally
when it is capable of being filled, to the satisfaction of the Director
concerned, subject to due consideration of appropriate training where
necessary, by an employee 'at risk'. Employees 'at risk' should be
provided with details of vacancies and encouraged to apply for those
which they consider themselves suitable candidates.

d) Consideration of retraining and redeployment of employees 'at risk'.
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3.3     Among the employees at risk, there may be individuals who wish to volunteer 
for redundancy. Subject to the requirements of the service and if the 
conditions of the Employment Protection Consolidation Act are satisfied, such 
applications will be considered as outlined below. 

4. Voluntary redundancy

4.1      Invitations to volunteer for redundancy will be communicated to the relevant 
employees by HR. The opportunity to volunteer for redundancy will be 
available for a defined period and the letter from HR will clearly state the 
closing date for applications. An application form will be provided for 
employees to use if they wish to apply for voluntary redundancy.  

4.2      Employees who choose to apply for voluntary redundancy are not guaranteed 
to have their application accepted. Management reserves discretion to decide 
whether or not to accept any individual application for redundancy. The 
decision as to whether or not to accept a particular application will depend on 
the organisation's need to retain the types of knowledge and skills that are 
believed to be essential to meet its future business aims, the need to retain a 
balance of people with different skills, and the overall situation at the time.  

4.3      Where an employee's application for voluntary redundancy is accepted, the 
employee will be notified of this in writing as soon as possible after the closing 
date for applications. Thereafter a meeting will be set up with the employee to 
discuss and agree the timing of his/her redundancy and to confirm entitlement 
to notice, final pay and benefits, and redundancy pay. 

Employees who volunteer for redundancy will be entitled to redundancy pay in 
the same way as employees who are made compulsorily redundant. 

Please see Appendix 1 for further guidance on Voluntary Redundancy. 

5. Selection for compulsory redundancy

5.1. Should compulsory redundancy become unavoidable, then selection for 
redundancy will be made using the following criteria: 

(a) The transferable skills within the organisation that the employee has 

(b) The past performance of the employee using evidence from the 
performance management procedure 

(c) The employee’s attendance record, excluding sickness related to a 
disability or pregnancy, 
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(d) The employee’s disciplinary record, including time- keeping, and using 
current information held 

5.2 The above criteria will usually be assessed through the use of interviews, testing 
and information held on the employees personnel file. The points scoring and 
weighting used for selection will be transparent to staff and trade union 
representatives. 

6. Implementation of compulsory redundancies

6.1. Once a decision has been taken to effect compulsory redundancies then 
discussions between a senior representative of the employing department and 
the individual(s) concerned will be held at the earliest opportunity to explain 
the situation and the options available to them. Employees may be 
accompanied by a trade union representative if they so wish. The details of 
the redundancy situation will also be confirmed to individuals in writing, and 
will include the information set out in 2.3 above. 

6.2. Colchester Borough Homes will ensure that all practicable steps are taken to 
redeploy staff affected, wherever possible. 

6.3. In a redundancy situation, each Director will designate a suitable officer(s) 
who together with a member of Human Resources and a nominated Trade 
Union representative/ nominated colleague, will advise and assist displaced 
staff in finding suitable alternative posts and with retraining and other 
problems that may arise. 

6.4. Human resources will, in consultation with the employing Department, also 
endeavour to assist displaced employees to secure new employment by 
providing advisory services including for example career counselling, advice 
on preparing for employment searches, (preparation of job applications 
including arranging typing, photocopying) etc.  

6.5. Employees in a redundancy situation shall be given adequate time off with full 
pay in order to attend interviews for other posts within or outside Colchester 
Borough Homes and to attend counselling, guidance and training sessions 
organised by Human Resources. 

6.6. Any offers of alternative employment by Colchester Borough Homes will be 
made before the termination date of the original contract of the employee 
subject to a compulsory redundancy notice. Offers of alternative employment 
in these circumstances, will be subject to a trial period of not less than four 
weeks. 

If either Colchester Borough Homes or the employee gives notice of 
termination during this period because the alternative employment is deemed 
unsuitable by either party, the employee is treated as being redundant in 
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accordance with the termination of the original contract and shall still receive 
full redundancy compensation. If the trial period is completed satisfactorily, 
the original redundancy is held as not having taken place and continuity of 
employment is unbroken and no redundancy compensation is payable. 

The trial period may be extended by agreement in writing between the two 
parties to a maximum of eight weeks.  

6.7. Offers of alternative employment will be in writing and will include as a 
minimum, the following details:- 

a) the type of work to be undertaken and the training to be given where
appropriate.

b) the location of the new job.

c) the rates applicable to the appointment and any other terms and
conditions which may be different from these applying to the previous
employment (subject to paragraphs in Section 6 below).

d) the normal hours of work of the new appointment.

7. Terms and conditions of staff who are redeployed

7.1. Where an employee is to be offered alternative employment, every effort will 
be made to find a post with a similar grade. 

7.2. If alternativeWhere alternative employment is offered at a lower grade, this 
will always be within two grades of an employee’s existing pay grade. Tthe 
employee's actual salary at the time of transfer will be frozen and protected at 
that rate for a maximum of two three years from the date of the transfer or 
until the salary of the post occupied catches up with the employee's protected 
salary, whichever is the sooner. At the end of the twothree-year period the 
personal protection will end and the employee will transfer to the correct 
salary for the post occupied. In addition:- 

i) The protection will not extend to payments relating to specific duties for
example shift enhancements, weekend working enhancements,
unsocial hours, payments etc.

ii) Where Bonus earnings apply, these will be protected and frozen based
on average earnings at the date of transfer.

iii) Because the salary is frozen the employee will not receive any further
pay enhancement during the period of protection including cost of living
awards etc.

Commented [AR1]: As per change of pay protection agreed 
by Unison 
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7.3. The protection of the earnings in this manner is on the clear understanding 
that the employee, the employee’s Trade Union and Colchester Borough 
Homes, will at all times, use their best endeavours to secure before the end of 
the two three  year period, the transfer of the employee to a post where the 
protected remuneration is equal or near to the preserved earnings. In any 
event, protection will cease if further employment is offered and the employee 
unreasonably refuses that offer. 

7.4. Additional terms of personal protection regarding leave entitlement, 
allowances and non-financial conditions of service will be considered by 
Colchester Borough Homes but will not be necessarily protected. 

7.5. If by accepting alternative employment with Colchester Borough Homes the 
employee incurs additional travelling expenses, these will be paid from the 
date of the transfer for a maximum of two years. 

8. Redundancy payments

8.1 Calculation of redundancy payment is based on the structure of the statutory 
redundancy pay scheme 

8.2 Colchester Borough Homes will enhance this payment by:- 

(a) applying the employee's actual weekly salary in calculations since 
Colchester Borough Homes does not apply a maximum level. 

(b) applying a multiplier of one and a half times the number of weeks 
calculated under the statutory scheme (for example 12 weeks’ pay 
under the statutory scheme would mean payment of 18 weeks) 

The maximum payment will be 45 weeks’ pay. 

8.3 Qualification for redundancy payment is based on the statutory provisions. 

9. Appeals

9.1 There shall be a right of appeal in respect of selection for redundancy and the 
ways in which the redundancy procedure has been carried out. 

9.2 This procedure does not affect the right of employees to enter a claim with an 
Employment Tribunal. 

9.3 This procedure is to be followed if an employee who has received a written 
notification of redundancy believes that:- 
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a) he/she or they have been unfairly dismissed.

b) he/she or they have been unfairly selected for redundancy, or

c) he/she or they have reasonable grounds for refusing an offer of
alternative employment.

d) he/she or they believe that he hasthey have a claim concerning the
protection of theirhis salary transfer in a redundancy situation.

e) he/she or they believe that he hasthey have reasonable grounds for
refusing an offer of further employment following transfer in a
redundancy situation.

10. Appeals procedure

10.1. Where an employee believes that he/shethey haves a claim under this 
procedure, theyhe should first raise the matter, in writing, with the Director, 
through a Trade Union representative or HR if desired. 

10.2 An appeal can be made after the employee has received notification of:- 

a) Compulsory redundancy, or

b) An offer of suitable alternative employment, or

c) An offer of transfer to avoid redundancy, or

d) An offer of further employment following transfer

10.3. The time limits for such claims are 14 days after (a), (c) and (d) above and in 
the case of (b), 14 days after the refusal to accept an offer of alternative 
employment.  

10.4. The Director should reply in writing to the claim as soon as possible and in 
any event arrange to meet the employee to discuss the reasons for the 
redundancy within seven calendar days of the claim. 

10.5. If the claim is not satisfactorily resolved at this stage, the employee should 
raise the matter, in writing within 7 days, with the Chief Executive (via HR , 
through a Trade Union representative if desired). 

10.6. The Chief Executive should reply to the claim in writing within 7 days and 
arrange a formal hearing. 
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10.7. The employee shall be given notice in writing at least 7 days in advance of the 
time and place of the hearing and shall be allowed to be represented by 
theirhis Trade Union representative or some other person of his choice, and 
shall be able to call witnesses and produce documents relevant to theirhis 
case at the hearing. 

10.8. The time limits set out in paragraph 2.1 to 2.8 can be varied by agreement 
with all parties concerned. 

11. Procedure for appeals hearing 

11.1 The procedure to be followed at all hearings is as follows: -  

a) Colchester Borough Homes representative to put the case in the 
presence of the appellant and theirhis representative and may call 
witnesses. 

b) The appellant (or his representative) to have the opportunity to ask 
questions of Colchester Borough Homes’ representative on the 
evidence given by themhim and of any witnesses theyhe may call. 

c) The appellant (or his representative) to put theirhis case in the 
presence of Colchester Borough Homes’ representative and to call 
such witnesses as theyhe wishewishess. 

d) Colchester Borough Homes representative to have the opportunity to 
ask questions of the appellant and theirhis witness. 

e) The Chief Executive to have the opportunity to ask questions during 
any of the above stages. 

f) Colchester Borough Homes representative and the appellant (or his 
representative) to have the opportunity to sum up their cases, if they so 
wish. 

g) The Chief Executive and appropriate Officer Adviser to deliberate in 
private, only recalling Colchester Borough Homes representative and 
the appellant and representatives to clear points of uncertainty on 
evidence already given. If recall is necessary, then both parties are to 
return, notwithstanding that only one is concerned with the point giving 
rise to doubt. 

h) The Chief Executive to advise the decision to both parties and confirm 
in writing. 
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12. Redundancy payments calculator

12.1 The Employment Rights Act 1996, section 162 sets out how a redundancy 
payment is calculated: 

12.2 First, determine the period, ending with the relevant date, during which the 
employee has been continuously employed. 

Then work backwards from the end of that period, to calculate the number of 
complete years of employment falling within that period. 

Next, allow the appropriate amount for each of those years of employment. 

The appropriate amounts are: 

 one and a half weeks' pay for each year of employment in which the
employee was aged 41 or over;

 one week's pay for each year of employment in which the employee was
aged between 22 and 40; and

 half a week's pay for each year of employment up to the age of 21.

The result is the number of weeks payable under the statutory scheme and 
below is the ready reckoner published on the Department of Trade and 
Industry website. The tabletable below shows the number of statutory weeks' 
pay to which a redundant employee is entitled, depending on their age and 
length of service. 

Finally apply a multiplier of 1.5 to the number of weeks described above and 
those shown on the ready reckoner below, as a Colchester Borough Homes 
enhancement 
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13. Ready reckoner for redundancy payments 

 

Service 
(years) 

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

Age 
(years) 

                                      

18 1 1½ 2 -                               
19 1 1½ 2 2½ -                             
20 1 1½ 2 2½ 3 -                           
21 1 1½ 2 2½ 3 3½ - 

            

22 1 1½ 2 2½ 3 3½ 4 - 
           

23 1½ 2 2½ 3 3½ 4 4½ 5 - 
          

24 2 2½ 3 3½ 4 4½ 5 5½ 6 - 
         

25 2 3 3½ 4 4½ 5 5½ 6 6½ 7 - 
        

26 2 3 4 4½ 5 5½ 6 6½ 7 7½ 8 - 
       

27 2 3 4 5 5½ 6 6½ 7 7½ 8 8½ 9 - 
      

28 2 3 4 5 6 6½ 7 7½ 8 8½ 9 9½ 10 - 
     

29 2 3 4 5 6 7 7½ 8 8½ 9 9½ 10 10½ 11 - 
    

30 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 8½ 9 9½ 10 10½ 11 11½ 12 - 
   

31 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 9½ 10 10½ 11 11½ 12 12½ 13 - 
  

32 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 10½ 11 11½ 12 12½ 13 13½ 14 - 
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Service 
(years) 

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

33 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 11½ 12 12½ 13 13½ 14 14½ 15 - 

34 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 12½ 13 13½ 14 14½ 15 15½ 16 

35 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 13½ 14 14½ 15 15½ 16 16½ 

36 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 14½ 15 15½ 16 16½ 17 

37 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 15½ 16 16½ 17 17½ 

38 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 16½ 17 17½ 18 

39 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 17½ 18 18½ 

40 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 18½ 19 

41 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 19½ 
42 2½ 3½ 4½ 5½ 6½ 7½ 8½ 9½ 10½ 11½ 12½ 13½ 14½ 15½ 16½ 17½ 18½ 19½ 20½ 

43 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 

44 3 4½ 5½ 6½ 7½ 8½ 9½ 10½ 11½ 12½ 13½ 14½ 15½ 16½ 17½ 18½ 19½ 20½ 21½ 

45 3 4½ 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 
46 3 4½ 6 7½ 8½ 9½ 10½ 11½ 12½ 13½ 14½ 15½ 16½ 17½ 18½ 19½ 20½ 21½ 22½ 

47 3 4½ 6 7½ 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 
48 3 4½ 6 7½ 9 10½ 11½ 12½ 13½ 14½ 15½ 16½ 17½ 18½ 19½ 20½ 21½ 22½ 23½ 
49 3 4½ 6 7½ 9 10½ 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 

50 3 4½ 6 7½ 9 10½ 12 13½ 14½ 15½ 16½ 17½ 18½ 19½ 20½ 21½ 22½ 23½ 24½ 

51 3 4½ 6 7½ 9 10½ 12 13½ 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 

52 3 4½ 6 7½ 9 10½ 12 13½ 15 16½ 17½ 18½ 19½ 20½ 21½ 22½ 23½ 24½ 25½ 

53 3 4½ 6 7½ 9 10½ 12 13½ 15 16½ 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 

54 3 4½ 6 7½ 9 10½ 12 13½ 15 16½ 18 19½ 20½ 21½ 22½ 23½ 24½ 25½ 26½ 

55 3 4½ 6 7½ 9 10½ 12 13½ 15 16½ 18 19½ 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 

56 3 4½ 6 7½ 9 10½ 12 13½ 15 16½ 18 19½ 21 22½ 23½ 24½ 25½ 26½ 27½ 

57 3 4½ 6 7½ 9 10½ 12 13½ 15 16½ 18 19½ 21 22½ 24 25 26 27 28 
58 3 4½ 6 7½ 9 10½ 12 13½ 15 16½ 18 19½ 21 22½ 24 25½ 26½ 27½ 28½ 
59 3 4½ 6 7½ 9 10½ 12 13½ 15 16½ 18 19½ 21 22½ 24 25½ 27 28 29 
60 3 4½ 6 7½ 9 10½ 12 13½ 15 16½ 18 19½ 21 22½ 24 25½ 27 28½ 29½ 

61+ 3 4½ 6 7½ 9 10½ 12 13½ 15 16½ 18 19½ 21 22½ 24 25½ 27 28½ 30 
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14. Consultation  

This policy has been agreed in consultation with UNISON and senior managers. 

15. References  

Employment Rights Act 1996, section 162. 

16. Related documents 

 Retirement policy 
 Pension scheme policy 
 Terms and conditions of employment 
 Performance capability 
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Appendix 1 - Voluntary redundancy process 

1. Introduction & purpose

1.1 The Voluntary Redundancy process ensures an objective, fair and non-
discriminatory approach is applied to workforce reduction. This includes 
circumstances where there is a fair selection to voluntary redundancy to 
limit compulsory redundancies. 

1.2 The process should be used where there are potential redundancies as 
part of the reshaping of a service area. Colchester Borough Homes 
recognises that it has an obligation to reduce compulsory redundancies. 

2. Scope

2.1 The Voluntary Redundancy process can be used for specified 
workgroups, where it is considered at the outset that the anticipated 
reduction (in the workgroup) cannot be achieved by: 

• Vacancy management and (anticipated) employee reductions through
normal turnover, 

• Redeployment,

• The application of other “objective” selection criteria, including the
termination of casual and fixed term employees who have less than 2 
years continuous service, and discontinuing the use of agency workers. 

2.2  This scheme applies to all employees except: 

 •Casual or agency staff (with less than 2 years continuous service) 
 •Contractors/consultants and persons who are “self-employed”  
 •Employees on fixed term contracts 

3. The approval process for voluntary redundancy

3.1  Where it is thought that voluntary redundancy may be needed to achieve 
the required reduction in headcount, it is necessary to seek approval for 
the application of the Voluntary Redundancy Scheme to a particular 
workgroup. The relevant Director is required to prepare a 'business 
case', based upon the following employment planning considerations. A 
schedule of the current & proposed employment level, is also required: 
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• Anticipated reduction in the number and type of jobs,

•Number of these posts which are currently vacant, filled by
temporary/fixed term/agency staff, 

• Current turnover for the workgroup concerned, and the extent to which
the reduction in jobs may/may not be met by natural wastage given the 
anticipated implementation date, 

•The extent to which company-wide redeployment is viable for the
number/type of displaced employees, 

• The service profile of the workgroup,

• Whether or not vacancy management processes are already, or should
be, in place for the workgroup concerned. 

The above will enable DMT to have a reasonable estimate of employee 
displacement costs. 

3.2  This information will be submitted to DMT for approval; 

4. Voluntary redundancy

4.1 Expressions of Interest for voluntary redundancy will be invited as a 
way of avoiding compulsory redundancies. The steps in the process 
will be: 

i. securing DMT approval regarding the application of the Voluntary
Redundancy Scheme to a defined work group, 

ii. displacing other employees and agency workers,

iii. inviting applications from the designated workgroup, through
completion of the “Expressions of Interest form - Voluntary 
Redundancy” , 

iv. deciding which applicants are successful and can be made
redundant; and the selection criteria to be used, 

v. approving actual employees for Voluntary Severance
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4.2 Expressions of interest in voluntary redundancy will be considered for 
approval by the relevant Director in conjunction with HR.  

4.3 Expressions of interest for voluntary redundancy received from 
Directors will be considered for approval by the Chief Executive in 
conjunction with HR. 

4.4 Expressions of interest for voluntary redundancy received from the 
Chief Executive will be considered for approval by the Board.  

5. Inviting Expressions of Interests for voluntary redundancy

5.1 Expressions of Interest for voluntary redundancy will be invited from 
employees in the agreed workgroup who are ‘at risk’ of redundancy. 

5.2 Employees wishing to be considered for voluntary redundancy will be 
asked to complete an “Expression of Interest form - Voluntary 
Redundancy”  

5.3 Expression of Interest forms will be provided by HR. 

5.4 Expressions of Interest will be treated confidentially, and at this stage, 
as an 'expression of interest' only. 

5.5 Employees who are considering applying for voluntary redundancy 
should seek independent financial advice on the implications of 
voluntary redundancy upon their own finances. 

5.6 Following receipt of an Expression of Interest form arrangements will 
be made for the employee to receive estimated details of the 
compensatory benefits they would receive should their application for 
voluntary redundancy be successful. Following receipt of the estimate 
of the compensatory payments, the employee will then have 10 
working days to withdraw their expression of interest in voluntary 
redundancy. 

6. Selection criteria

6.1 Generally, where the number of requests from the ‘at risk’ workgroup is 
less or equal to the number of applications that are required, they will 
be approved. However, CBH reserves the right to refuse an application 
for voluntary redundancy on operational or other business grounds. 
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6.2 Where the number of applications exceeds the number of volunteers 
sought, selection will be based upon operational or business grounds. 

Consideration will be given to the need to retain types of knowledge 
and skills that are believed to be essential to meet future business 
needs and other business or service considerations. 

The evidence considered as part of the selection criteria must be 
based on fact and not based on opinion.  

6.3 Where sufficient volunteers are not forthcoming the compulsory 
redundancy element of the Redundancy Policy will be applied to the 
remaining posts in the work group. 

7. Voluntary redundancy payments and notice

7.1 If the request for voluntary redundancy is approved, the employee will 
be eligible to a redundancy payment equal to which they would have 
received under compulsory redundancy. 

7.2 An employee's leaving date would normally be in accordance with their 
contractual notice period. This will be inclusive of any outstanding 
holiday entitlement. 

7.3 If an employee wishes to be released from their role earlier than dates 
scheduled, the service area may be able to accommodate this request 
after the consultation period end date. All such employees will waive 
their right to the remainder of their notice period and notice pay if they 
wish to leave early.  

7.4 If the employee is age 55 or over, and is a member of the Local 
Government Pension Scheme, they will receive the pension benefits 
due to them in accordance with the scheme regulations. Please contact 
the pension scheme for further details and independent specialist 
advice. 

8. Declined Expression of Interest and appeals

8.1 Where an employee’s expression of Interest in voluntary redundancy is 
declined they will be informed of the reasons for this decision. 
Assurances will be given that they will suffer no detrimental treatment 
in their continued career at CBH. 
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8.2 The employee has a right of appeal if an expression of Interest for 
voluntary redundancy is declined. 

8.3 The appeal should be made in writing to HR@cbhomes.org.uk within 5 
working days of receipt of the letter advising that the request for 
voluntary redundancy has not been approved.  

8.4 The appeal will be heard by the appropriate level of Management. 

8.5 The appeal meeting will consider the records of how the decision to 
decline an expression of interest was made and whether this was 
reasonable. 

8.6 The outcome of the appeal will be final. 

9. Monitoring voluntary redundancy

9.1 HR will record all applications for voluntary redundancy and the 
outcome of requests. This will be subject to audit.  
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1.3 Revision June 2018 Protected pay reduced from 3 
years to 2 years. Content 
checked for accuracy. 
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REPORT TO COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES BOARD 

DATE: 20 June 2018 

TIME: 5.30 pm 

VENUE: Room 1, Rowan House 

AGENDA ITEM: 6 

SUBJECT: Annual Health and Safety Report 

REPORT BY: Ryan Curtis, Health, Safety, Environmental & CDM Manager 
 (01206) 282 774  
  ryan.curtis@cbhomes.org.uk 

FOR INFORMATION 

1. No Decision Required

1.1 The Board is asked to note the attached report prepared by the Company’s 
Health and Safety Manager.  

2. Purpose of Report

2.1 The purpose of the report is to provide an annual review of the Company’s 
approach to Health and Safety: to highlight all accidents/incidents together 
with any remedial actions or Health and Safety Executive (HSE) actions or 
interventions. The report makes operational recommendations which will form 
part of any formal decision making as required under the Company’s scheme 
of delegation.   

3. Background & Content

3.1 The Board requires an annual report concerning Health, Safety and 
Environment as part of its Governance arrangements. This is also considered 
best practice and is an important measure to ensure compliance with OHSAS 
18001 - the international standard for Health and Safety.  

4. Heading 2

4.1 The report as attached should be read as a report prepared and submitted to 
the Board by the Company’s duly appointed Health and Safety Manager and 
the Director of Property Services.  

5. Risk Management

5.1 Health, Safety and Environment feature on the operational risk registers for all 
Directorates and the actions set out in the report are a key strand for all 
mitigations in respect of Health, Safety and Environment.  
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6. HR Implications

6.1 The matters of employee Health & Safety are set out in detail in the report. 
Particular attention is drawn to the accident and incident records and the use 
of the “PeopleSafe” system – which is the Company’s preferred system to 
address lone working risks.  

7. Legal Implications

7.1 No prosecutions or actions arose as a result of the matters set out in this 
report.  

8. Financial Implications

8.1 No unbudgeted financial implications arise from the matters set out in this 
report. 

9. Value for Money

9.1 Particular note should be drawn to the reduced loss of work time as a result of 
work based accidents and the approach to developing an in-house training 
resource to reduce costs.  

10. Health & Safety Implications

10.1 The whole of this report and its attachment refers to Health and Safety 
matters. 

11. Equality & Diversity Implications

11.1 None arising from the report. 

12. 

12.1 

13. 

13.1 

14. 

14.1 

Residents at the Heart 

Matters of Health and Safety include public safety and as such the whole of 
the report reflects the discharging of the Company’s obligations in respect of 
public safety. Particular attention should be draw to the increased fire safety 
work undertaken in the reporting period. 

Decision Required 

No. 

Appendix/ces 

Appendix 1: Annual Health, Safety and Environmental report 17-18 and its 
appendices.  
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Annual Health & Safety, CDM and Environmental Report 
Financial Year April 2017 to March 2018 

Introduction 

The purpose of this report is to update the board on health and safety related matters, including 
incidents, systems and compliance during 2017/2018. 

In reference to the introduction within the previous annual report, Colchester Borough Homes 
are pleased to confirm that we have achieved OHSAS 18001, ISO14001 and 9001 across the 
business and continued to retain this during ongoing assessment.  

Summary 
Item number Topic Update  
1.0 Health and safety 

policies   
Ten H&S related policies identified, three out of date at 
the end of the reporting period and one in DRAFT  

2.0 Structure New health and safety resources administrator, Kim 
Broad in place for three days a week.   

3.0 Key 
achievements 

 Retaining the OHSAS 18001 ISO 9001 and
14001 accreditations

 Bringing fire marshal training in house, having a
recruitment drive for more fire marshals and
successfully delivering sessions to all fire
marshals, visiting officers and community
caretakers, along with senior managers who
attended the training. This training also included
the practical use of fire extinguisher units and
terror alert awareness.

 Managing the Fire Action Group
 Writing Fire Safety and Blood Born Virus

(BBV) Policy
 Undertaking and managing fire risk assessments

for 445 general needs flats, 19 open sheltered
schemes, two temporary accommodation
schemes and all offices and workshops.

 Utilising and promoting Assure software system
to all staff at CBH this to include site inspections,
incident reporting, near miss/operations records,
training records, equipment inspections,
equipment maintenance records, driving licence
check records, RIDDOR (Reporting of Injuries,
Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences
Regulations 2013) reporting, with continued staff
support and internal training provided by the
Health & Safety Team.

 Increased number of risk assessment reviews
4.0 Legislation No changes in relevant legislation in the reporting period. 
5.0 Asbestos 905 surveys completed and 323 removals undertaken in 

the reporting period. 
6.0 External audits / 

visits  
 OHSAS 18001, ISO9001 & ISO14001

accreditation kept, five minor non-conformities in
total across all three standards

 No visits from the HSE in the reporting period.
7.0 Occupational 

Health/Stress 
 Heales Medical continued their contract with

CBH during 17/18. The HR Team and line
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 managers have received training on the online 
system. Managers are now able to log onto the 
system to make referrals and to read feedback 
memos. 

 New wellbeing group started who are promoting 
and organising physical and mental health ideas.    

8.0 Health and safety 
training  

 Continued cost saving from bringing H&S training 
in-house and setting revised timeframes for 
externally delivered training. 

 203 Staff have attended manual handing training 
and 53 attended fire marshal/terror alert training 
within the reporting period.  

9.0 Health and safety 
Incidents 
 

 Total of 79 incidents in the financial year 17/18, 
this is an increase of 38 from 16/17. The increase 
is attributed to having the Assure system in place 
and a focus on reporting. Only one incident 
resulted in staff having time off, this is a decrease 
of six from 16/17. 

 One RIDDOR reportable incident in the 
timeframe, which was an over-seven-days-off-
work incident.  

10.0 Fire  19 fire group meetings with attendance from the 
Health and Safety team, Property Services, 
Housing, Community Caretaking and senior 
management from both CBH and CBC 

 New fire safety policy written and Board 
approved. 

 In order to add to the skill-set for fire risk 
assessment, the Community Caretaker Team 
Leader attended and passed Fire Risk 
Assessment for High and Low-Rise Flats training 

 Five fire incidents in the reporting period, none of 
which resulted in harm.  

 All 445 fire risk assessments on general needs 
flats, 19 of the 20 sheltered accommodations and 
all office and workshop assessments undertaken. 
The only outstanding fire risk assessment is for 
Maytree Court sheltered scheme which is closed.   

 Actions set from the fire risk assessments 
include: 

1. It is recommended that the doors to the internal 
electric cupboards in the common areas are 
upgraded or replaced to provide a minimum of 60 
minutes fire resistance 

2. The doors to flats are of substantial construction, 
a good fit in its frame and appear to satisfy the 
standard applicable to fire resisting doors at the 
time of construction, they can therefore be 
considered a `notional` FD30 door. It is 
recommended that all flat entrance doors are 
checked to ensure that they are fitted with three 
fire resistant hinges (BS EN 1935), door handles 
that comply with BS EN 1906 Annex C, dual 
intumescent heat strip/cold smoke seals along 
the top and edges of the door or frame and 

40



  
 

 

Page 3 of 20 
 

suitable, positive action self-closing devices (BS 
EN 1154).  

3. The letterboxes did not appear to be fire resisting 
letterboxes, it is therefore recommended that fire 
resisting letterboxes are installed. 

4. It is recommended that all combustibles and trip 
hazards located in the common areas are 
removed as soon as practicable and the tenants 
are informed of the requirements to keep these 
areas clear. 

11.  Risk assessment  As detailed below, a number of risk assessments 
were completed during 17/18 using the Assure 
system. These have all been published to the 
portal and therefore available for staff to view.  

 
Fire risk assessments n= 470 
 
General task based risk assessments n=11 
 
COSHH (Control of Substances Hazardous to Health) 
n=47 
 
Display Screen Equipment (DSE) n=263   

12.0 Assure system  The Assure system continues to be an asset. New uses 
for Assure 17/18 are: 

 Recording H&S training  
 Running reports 
 All types of risk assessments now undertaken 

using the system 
 Actions set and completed 
 Claims logging incidents 
 Inspections  
 Equipment register (ladder checks etc)  
 Waste transfer notes logging 
 H&S policies stored on the portal  

13.0  Security, Lone 
Working and 
Violence and 
Aggression  
 

 For information - The H&S team took over the 
organising of the people safe devices in Q4 of 
‘17/18 

 Company People safe usage has decreased 
from 2016/17. Within the time period, CBH have 
used the devices on 7362 individual days. Based 
on all 116 devices that CBH own, this averages 
to 63 days per device within the time period of 
2017/18. When only taking into account those 85 
devices that were used, this equates to an 
average of 87 days use per device. 31 devices 
(27%) were not used at all in the period of 
2017/18   

 32 violence and aggression incidents were 
recorded, all resulting in no harm. This is an 
increase of 22 from ‘16/17. 30 incidents occurred 
at the library  

 New measures put in place at the library include: 
- New radios provided at the library  
- “Respect our staff” posters in situ   
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- CCTV live feed to the library office 
- Increased security officers in place at the library.  

14.0 Environmental   Colchester Borough Homes were successful in 
keeping their ISO 14001 Environmental standard 
in the financial year. 

 The Health and Safety Manager successfully 
passed his NEBOSH (National Examination 
Board in Occupational Safety and Health) 
Environmental qualification. 

 Waste transfer notes are now stored on the 
Assure system and checked (before loading) to 
ensure that the companies providing them have 
put the correct SIC. This was in response to a 
minor non-conformity on the BSI ISO 14001 
audit. 

15.0 CDM  The services of the NPS Group, as a contracted 
CDM (Construction Design & Management) 
coordinator, have been continued throughout 
‘17/18. They have continued to undertake 
random site inspections on CBH projects that fall 
under the provision of CDM. 

 There were no RIDDOR-reportable incidents 
during the timeframe on a CDM site  

 During ‘17/18 six incidents occurred relating to 
works that fall under the scope of CDM 

16.0  Financial year 
2018/19 

Targets for the next finical year include: 
 Further imbedding and developing of the Assure 

system within Colchester Borough Homes  
 Design and deliver fire/health and safety 

awareness training for all staff at a mandatory 3-
year refresher date.  

 Increase of recorded tool box talks  
 Uploading of CSCS (Construction Skills 

Certification Scheme) cards to the Assure system 
and review to ensure all relevant staff have an in-
date card  

 Review and consolidate general risk 
assessments  

 Review all fire risk assessments for sheltered 
schemes and undertake general risk 
assessments.  

 Start the transition programme from OHSAS 
18001 to 45001 

 Increased site visits and ad hoc inspections to 
contractors and CBH operatives  

 Plans for selling our Health and Safety services 
in the latter part of 18/19. Training and fire risk 
assessment to be the focus 

 Review CBH environmental aspects and impacts 
assessment, taking into account the lifecycle of 
products and materials 
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1. Health and Safety Policies  
 
CBH’s policies can be found on the Company intranet. The Health and Safety Policy 
Statement was reviewed and re-issued dated October 2017 as part of the general update for 
OHSAS 18001. 
 
Colchester Borough Homes currently has 10 policies relating to health and safety as 
highlighted below. With the draft blood-borne virus policy waiting for final approval.  
 
By the end of the last financial year, three policies were out of date: 
 

1. Driving policy – Due for final approval Q1 18/19 
2. Stress policy – This is being incorporated into the new general wellbeing policy due for 

final approval Q1 18/19 
3. Drugs and alcohol -  The policy holder is aware this requires reviewing, due for 

completion Q2 18/19  
 

Policy Title  Last Review Date Next Review Date Status  

Driving April 2014 April 2017 Under Review  

Environmental December 2015 December 2018 In Date 

Strategic Health and 
Safety 

September 2017 September 2019 In Date 

Health and Safety 
Statement  

October 2017 October 2019 In Date  

Lone Working  September 2015 September 2018 In Date 

Risk Management  September 2016 September 2019  In Date 

Stress  June 2015 June 2017 Out of Date  

Drugs and Alcohol  December 2015 December 2017  Out of Date  

Fire Safety March 2018  March 2021 In Date  

Blood Borne Virus  DRAFT DRAFT DRAFT 
Table 1 source: intranet 

 

 

Red  Out of date 

Amber  Under Review 

Green  In Date 

 
 

2. Structure 
 
The existing team of Ryan Curtis - Health and Safety Manager, Ellen Moore – Health and 
Safety Officer has been supplemented with Kim Broad joining the team for three days a week 
as Resources Administrator. This is in recognition that the Health and Safety Team have taken 
on the organisation of all three ISO standards, additional in-house training and a significant 
amount of post-Grenfell fire-related work.   
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3. Key Achievements 
 
Our principal achievements during 2017-2018 include:  
 
 Retaining the OHSAS 18001 ISO 9001 and 14001 accreditations 
 Bringing fire marshal training in house, having a recruitment drive for more fire marshals 

and successfully delivering sessions to all fire marshals, visiting officers and community 
caretakers, along with senior managers who attended the training. This training also 
included the practical use of fire extinguisher units and terror alert awareness. 

 Managing the Fire Action Group 
 Writing Fire Safety and Blood-Borne Virus (BBV) Policy 
 Undertaking and managing fire risk assessments for 445 general needs flats, 19 open 

sheltered schemes, two temporary accommodation schemes and all offices and 
workshops.  

 Utilising and promoting Assure software system to all staff at CBH. This to include site 
inspections, incident reporting, near miss/operations records, training records, equipment 
inspections, equipment maintenance records, driving licence check records, RIDDOR 
reporting, with continued staff support and internal training provided by the Health & Safety 
Team. 

  Increase in the number of risk assessment reviews  
 

4. Legislation 
 

No changes in relevant legislation in the reporting period. 
 

5. Asbestos 
 
The chart below breaks down by month the number of asbestos surveys in 17/18. By the end 
of the financial year a total of 905 surveys were completed.  
  

Month April 
17 

May 
17 

June 
17 

July 
17 

Aug 
17 

Sept 
17 

Oct 
17 

Nov 
17 

Dec 
17 

Jan 
18 

Feb 
18 

March 
18 

Total 

Surveys 
completed  

107 104 84 121 119 80 90 55 39 59 28 19 905 

  
There were also 323 removals undertaken in the reporting period.  
 

Current number of 
properties 

Amount surveyed Survey outstanding Percentage complete 

7755 7463 292 96% 
  
Surveys on capita Not yet uploaded to 

Capita 
Outstanding to 
upload Capita 

Percentage uploaded 

7405 58 7347 99% 
Table 2: source Asbestos Project Team Leader as of end March 18 
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6. External Audits 
 

a. Insurance audit / Visits  
 
Mazars have not undertaken an insurance audit this year. However, following a previous audit, 
CBH set up a working group to look at the whole process and address any of the points raised. 
The working group is just drawing to a close.  
 
Outputs are: 

 An approved procedure documents 
 Process flow charts for public liability and motor claims and the renewal process 
 Revised renewal timetables 
 Sharing of best practice across all relevant parties in CBH 
 Streamlined folders and documents 

 
b. British Standards Institute (OHSAS 18001, ISO9001 & ISO14001) 

 
Audit Results 
 
On the 23/10/17, BSI visited the Gosbecks Road offices, a void property and Enoch House 
sheltered accommodation to conduct a continuing assessment of the effectiveness of CBH’s 
OHSAS 18001 certificate. 
 
The audit consisted of a thorough analysis of our health and safety management system, 
including elements of all high-risk areas to the business. Our competence in the management 
of CDM was also assessed for SSIP (Safety Schemes In Procurement) purposes, see 
Appendix A for the full imbedded report. 
 
The audit resulted in two minor non-conformities being given as listed below. 
 

 Minor - Enoch House - Fire risk assessment number three, (Assure system) seven 
action outstanding and surpassed action time periods. 

 Minor - No internal audits completed for July, August, and September, ref AG1, 6, 7, 
and 2 

 
On 25/10/17, BSI visited the Gosbecks Road offices to conduct a continuing assessment of 
the effectiveness of CBH’s ISO 9001 & 14001 
 
The audit resulted in three minor non-conformities being given as listed below. 
 

 Minor - It is noted that Internal Audits are not being undertaken in accordance with 
planned arrangements. 

 Minor - There was no SIC (Standard Industrial Classification) code on the contract 
waste transfer note document from Initial Washroom Services 

 Minor - Internal Audit Meeting held on 11/05/2017 which notes Quarterly meetings to 
be held, however no such meeting has occurred since May 
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c. HSE  
 
There were no visits and consequently no fee for intervention from the HSE within the reporting 
timeframe. 
 

7. Occupational Health/Stress  
 
Heales Medical continued their contract with CBH during ‘17/18. The HR Team and line 
managers have received training on the online system. Managers are now able to log onto the 
system to make referrals and to read feedback memos. This system has been a success since 
its introduction in the previous financial year. Heales have been working closely with the HR 
department and a strong relationship has been cemented.  

New wellbeing group started who are promoting and organising physical and mental health 
ideas.   

8. Health and Safety Training 

A fully-recorded training needs analysis (TNA) was completed at the beginning of the financial 
year. From this TNA Both manual handling and fire marshal training was brought in-house and 
delivered by the H&S manager. This had a cost saving and allowed training to be more 
bespoke, gave CBH greater control on quality and allow for a more flexible approach to 
booking. 
 
The refresher timeframes on all H&S training were reviewed and brought in line with current 
recommended best practice as some refresher dates in place lent towards training set at a 
timeframe that could benefit the training provider and add little to no value to staff safety. 
 
During the end of ‘17/18 H&S training records started to be loaded into the Assure system, 
this will give managers the ability to run quick reports on training compliance. It is hoped that 
the project of uploading these records will be completed by Q2 ‘18/19. 
 
Current Mandatory H&S training figures  
 

Training Staff required to attend Staff attended Outstanding 

Manual Handling  203  179 24 
Fire Marshal  53 53 0 

Table 3 source Assure 

 
9. Health and Safety Incidents 

 
The number of accidents reported since the start of the financial year has increased 
significantly, rising from 41 to 79. This can be attributed to the promotion of incident reporting 
within the workforce and the ease of reporting via the Assure system. Awareness of the 
reporting requirements has been via Yammer, email and face to face staff and management 
training.   
 
Of all incidents reported, one was reportable to the HSE under the provisions of RIDDOR, due 
to resulting in more than seven days off work. This matches the one reportable in the last 
financial year.  
 
 

46



  
 

 

Page 9 of 20 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Incidents Statistics for FY17-18 
 

Category Major   Moderate  Minor  Insignificant Lost time 
yes/no 

Total 

Slip, trip, fall 0 2 8 7 0 17 
Working at height 0 0 1 0 0 1 
Struck by 0 0 3 0 0 3 
Manual handling 0 0 1 1 1 2 
Contact with 0 0 0 2 0 1 
Violence and 
Aggression 

0 0 0 32 0 32 

Fire  0 2 2 1 0 5 
Exposure too  1 0 1 2 0 4 
False alarm 
evacuation 

0 0 0 1 0 1 

Electrical  0 0 0 1 0 1 
Attack by animal  0 0 1 0 0 1 
Unsafe 
contractor 
working practice  

0 0 1 4 0 5 

Lone working 
issue  

0 0 0 1 0 1 

Road traffic 
incident  

0 1 1 1 0 3 

Cuts and 
abrasions  

0 0 0 1 0 1 

Vandalism and 
break in 

0 0 0 1 0 1 

Total 1 5 19 55 1 79 
Table 4 source Assure 

 
Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences Regulations 2013 
(RIDDOR)  
 

Category April 
17 

May 
17 

June 
17 

July 
17 

Aug 
17 

Sept 
17 

Oct 
17 

Nov 
17 

Dec 
17 

Jan 
18 

Feb 
18 

March 
18 

Fatality  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Specified Injuries 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Over-seven-day 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Occupational Diseases 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Dangerous 
Occurrences 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Table 5 source Assure 
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10. Fire Safety 
 

 Fire action group  

To date there have been 19 fire group meetings with attendance from the Health and Safety 
team, Property Services, Housing, Community Caretaking and senior management from both 
CBH and CBC. All meetings have had recorded minutes taken and all relevant information 
and documentation stored in SharePoint.   

 Fire risk assessment (FRA) 

One of the early actions set from the fire action group was to enhance the risk assessment 
process. This took two work streams, firstly fire risk assessments for the 20 sheltered schemes 
and two temporary accommodation schemes to be reviewed and undertaken using the Assure 
system. The previous biennial reviews on these types of premises have been changed to 
annual as was the FRA for the Gosbecks Road, Greenstead Offices and Dedham workshop. 
All these assessments were tasked to the CBH H&S team for completion by April 2018. 

For reassurance please note that both members of the H&S team are NEBOSH qualified and 
experienced fire risk assessors.  

The fire risk assessment for Rowan House is undertaken by the CBC Health and Safety 
Manager.  

The Second work stream on fire risk assessments was for the general needs blocks of flats. 
Previously these were undertaken by the community caretaking team with a checklist visual 
inspection being completed. However, on review it was deemed that these were not suitable 
and sufficient as a risk assessment, all be it a good practice for ongoing inspections. Owing to 
the number of flats that required risk assessing and the level of competency needed to 
undertake these assessments, an external company run by former members of Essex Fire 
and Rescue was appointed to undertake category one fire risk assessments on all blocks of 
flats that had common areas. For consistency the fire risk assessors were given Assure 
licences and training on how to use the system, therefore all fire risk assessments undertaken 
are recorded on the same system. Much like the FRAs undertaken by the H&S team, actions 
are set directly from the Assure system with pictures uploaded for both setting and closing 
down actions.  

FRA Type Number 
required 

Number 
completed 

Outstanding Estimated 
finished date 

Sheltered  20 19 1 May 2018 
General needs blocks  445 445 0 Complete 
Temporary 
Accommodation  

2 2 0 Complete 
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CBH office locations  3 3 0 Complete 
Workshops  1 1 0 Complete 
Total 471 470 1  

Table 6 source Assure as of end March 2018 

*Please note the outstanding FRA for sheltered ls Maytree Court, which is now closed therefore low priority. An 

assessment is still however scheduled. *  

 Fire training  

Currently 53 CBH employees have attended in-house fire marshal/awareness training 
sessions. The spread of trained fire marshals is such that there are employees likely to be at 
any location that have enhanced knowledge of fire safety and evacuation procedures.   

To ensure we have sufficient cover in all our offices, an increased number of fire marshals 
was required as there is no guarantee as to what staff will be in any one location on any given 
day. Owing to the potential severity of a fire in any of the schemes, all our Visiting Officers and 
Community Caretakers undertook fire marshal training to increase their all-round knowledge 
and awareness. 
 
In order to add to the skill-set for fire risk assessment, the Community Caretaker Team Leader 
attended and passed Fire Risk Assessment for High and Low-Rise Flats training and two 
community caretakers attended a bespoke awareness fire safety session. 

 

 Fire Safety Actions to Date 

Offices / Workshop  

As CBH now adopts a smarter working approach, the number of trained fire marshals has 
been increased so as to provide higher coverage as the workforce is more agile now. Fire 
marshal points with high vis vests and plans of the buildings have been provided at the 
Greenstead, Rowan House and Gosbecks Road locations, in two designated zones for each. 
These will be used when a fire sweep is required.  

The Dedham Workshop and Gosbecks Road office have had the stairwells cleared and 
signage put in place to help keep them clear. Fire extinguisher units have been relocated at 
Dedham, the rubbish and leaves cleared from the external fire route and emergency lighting 
in the form of torches provided.  

Sheltered Schemes  

The fire safety procedures for sheltered schemes has been updated and distributed to all 
visiting officers. This clearly defines actions to be taken in the case of the alarms being raised 
and explains the stay put policy that CBH adopt and when it is relevant.   

Updated fire procedure posters for residents and visitors have been erected in all sheltered 
schemes on notice boards and the inside of residence flat doors. 

Additional signage has been erected for emergency escape routes, fire assembly areas, fire 
extinguishers and fire door kept locked/shut. Some redundant and out-of-date signage has 
been removed.  
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Actions have been set for all items to be cleared from common area emergency escape routes, 
stairwells and near to the exterior of the buildings. Many of these have now been completed, 
with excellent results.  

Stopping the storing and charging of mobility scoters in common areas and in flats is being 
escalated through communication and, if required, enforcement. Alternative safe means of 
storage is being sort where possible.  

Additional hard wired electronic and standard closers are being fitted to relevant doors such 
as kitchens and Visiting Officers’ offices.  

General needs flats 

External inspections to all general needs blocks of flats was completed. This confirmed that 
no products, similar to those tested under the government’s regime, have been used in any 
location, either as cladding or infill panels. 
 
Updated fire procedure posters have been erected on notice boards. 

Additional signage has been erected for fire escape routes, fire assembly areas, fire 
extinguishers and fire door kept locked/shut. Some redundant and out-of-date signage has 
been removed.  

Actions have been set for all items to be cleared from common area fire escape routes, 
stairwells and near to the exterior of the buildings, many of these have now been completed, 
with excellent results.  

As actioned in fire risk assessments, works have started in common areas to:   
 Upgrade meter cupboard and bin doors to offer fire protection 
 Repair fire doors and glazing in common area 
 Improve security to the buildings  
 Stop smoking by signage and letters to residents  

 Fire policy 

A new fire policy has been written, sent out for comment and a final copy approved by the 
Board. This brings into one document practice and procedures for fire safety that CBH 
undertake in order for CBC to be compliant and strive to keep residents, staff and visitors to 
buildings under their control safe.   

The revisions to the CBC Mobility Scooter policy have been approved.  

 Spend to date as of end March 2018 

Company  Spend on  Spend to date  

Premier Fire survives  Fire risk assessments general needs 
flats 

£14,040 

Arco  Fire signage and stickers  £3,115.22 
Boleyn Brickwork and Paving Brick works  £369.63 
CBH Repairs  Fire Door and door fittings upgrades  £6196 
 Total £23,720.85 

Table 7 source CBH finance department, figures as of end March 2018 
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 Actions still required  

Owing to the wide scope of actions set on the fire risk assessments (totalling 2,104), at the 
end of the financial year many were outstanding. All actions have been given a target date for 
completion, dates are set due to risk.  

Property Services have a schedule of works in place in order to complete the outstanding 
actions set to their directorate (1,261) and additional resources have been brought in.  

The Housing Team are working their way systematically through their 472 outstanding actions. 

Many of the actions set are from reoccurring issues, the most reoccurring actions being:  

1. It is recommended that the doors to the internal electric cupboards in the common 
areas are upgraded or replaced to provide a minimum of 60 minutes fire resistance 

2. The doors to flats are of substantial construction, a good fit in its frame and appear to 
satisfy the standard applicable to fire resisting doors at the time of construction, they 
can therefore be considered a `notional` FD30 door. It is recommended that all flat 
entrance doors are checked to ensure that they are fitted with three fire resistant hinges 
(BS EN 1935), door handles that comply with BS EN 1906 Annex C, dual intumescent 
heat strip/cold smoke seals along the top and edges of the door or frame and suitable, 
positive action self-closing devices (BS EN 1154).  

3. The letterboxes did not appear to be a fire resisting letterboxes, it is therefore 
recommended that fire resisting letterboxes are installed. 

4. It is recommended that all combustibles and trip hazards located in the common areas 
are removed as soon as practicable and the tenants are informed of the requirements 
to keep these areas clear. 

*Please note as per action 2 above a decision has been made to upgrade all “notional” doors and glazing to FD 30 

rated* 

11. Risk assessments  
 
A number of risk assessments were completed in ‘17/18 using the Assure system. These have 
all been published to the portal and therefore available for staff to view.  
 
Fire risk assessments = 470 
 
General task based risk assessments =11 
 
COSHH =47 
 
Display Screen Equipment (DSE) =263   
 
As the one-year anniversaries of the completion of employee DSE assessments on the Assure 
started to occur at the end of the financial year, a second round of assessments was started. 
As significant investment has been made in office refurbishment and new equipment, unless 
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an assessment highlights an issue the health and safety team are setting two-year review 
dates as standard, unless there is an incident or significant change.  

12. Assure Health and Safety Software System

The Health and Safety Team have been working hard on further imbedding the Assure 
software system. The system is now much more bespoke to CBH as we change and adapt so 
its suits our needs and is less generic. One-to-one training on the use of the system has been 
given by the H&S team and four formal training sessions were delivered by Assure (SHE 
software) in the financial year.  

Functions now being used on the Assure system FY ‘17/18 include: 

1. Recording H&S training
2. Running reports
3. All types of risk assessments now undertaken using the system
4. Actions set and completed
5. Claims logging incidents
6. Inspections
7. Equipment register (ladder checks etc)
8. Waste transfer notes logging
9. H&S policies stored on the portal

Assure Actions progress as of end of Q4 

Outstanding Fire 
Actions  

Outstanding Claims 
Management Actions  

Outstanding DSE 
Actions   

Outstanding 
Equipment 
Maintenance Actions 

949 1 6 1 
Overdue Fire Actions Overdue Claims 

Management Actions  
Overdue DSE Actions  Overdue Equipment 

Maintenance Actions 
8 0 0 0 

Outstanding Free-
Standing Actions   

Outstanding General 
Risk Assessment 
actions  

Outstanding inspection 
Actions  

16 22 8 
Overdue Free-
Standing Actions  

Overdue Overdue 

0 0 1 
Table 8 source Assure 

Breakdown of overdue action: 

Older Persons Services x 8 all medium risk fire risk assessment actions 

Property Services x 1 low risk audit action.  
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13.0 Security, Violence and Aggression and Lone Working 

13.1 Violence and aggression 

Please see below the break down of violence and aggression incidents in ‘17/18 (32 in 
comparison to 11 in ‘16/17). The sharp increase is very likely due to ‘17/18 being a full year of 
Assure reporting being available and staff being actively encouraging to report incidents of 
aggression including verbal.   

Location of 
Incident 

Type of violence 
and aggression 

Who was effect Number of 
incidents 

Outcome 

Colchester Library Verbal aggression Staff X 30 No harm 
Public area Verbal aggression Staff X 1 No harm 
Other Verbal aggression Staff X 1 No harm 

Violence and aggression incidents FY 17/18 source Assure 

Location of 
Incident 

Type of violence 
and aggression 

Who was effect Number of 
incidents 

Outcome 

Colchester Library Verbal aggression Staff X 10 No harm 
St Mary’s car park Physical Staff X 1 Minor harm 

Violence and aggression incidents FY 16/17 Table 9 source Assure 

Although, owing to the nature of the business, it is impossible to eliminate all violence and 
aggression incidents within CBH, actions have been taken in the last year to try to reduce and 
mitigate the risk. These include: 

 New radios provided at the library
 “Respect our staff” posters in situ
 CCTV live feed to the library office
 More security officers in place at the library.

13.2 Lone working 

 Peoplesafe

For information - The H&S team took over the organising of the Peoplesafe devices in Q4 of 
‘17/18 

Company usage has decreased from 2016/17. Within the time period, CBH have used the 
devices on 7,362 individual days. Based on all 116 devices that CBH own, this averages to 
63 days per device within the time period of 2017/18. When only taking into account those 85 
devices that were used, this equates to an average of 87 days use per device. 

31 devices (27%) were not used at all in the period of 2017/18 

CBH has 14 spare or pool devices (down from 21 as at the end of 2016/17), of which two were 
used in 2017/18. 
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Charts 1&2 source People safe database
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14.0 Environmental 

Colchester Borough Homes was successful in keeping our ISO 14001 Environmental standard 
in the financial year. 

The Health and Safety Manager successfully passed his NEBOSH Environmental 
qualification. 

Waste transfer notes are now stored on the Assure system and checked before loading that 
the companies providing them have used the correct SIC. This was in response to a minor 
non-conformity on the BSI ISO 14001audit. 

15.0 Construction Design and Management (CDM) 

The services of the NPS Group as a contracted CDM coordinator have been continued 
throughout ‘17/18. They have continued to undertake random site inspections on CBH projects 
that fall under the provision of CDM. Reports are produced and provided to the Health and 
Safety Team, who in turn act as required.  

There were no RIDDOR-reportable incident during the timeframe on a CDM site 

During ‘17/18 there were six incidents relating to works that fall under the scope of CDM, 
as detailed below (names of contractors have been redacted):  

1.

Incident details – Tenant was leaving her flat and the door shut onto her finger. Visiting Officer 
informed, who referred to property services to inspect the door.  

Investigation – Door was inspected by A.S. (Project Surveyor) and found to be poorly 
adjusted.  

Cause – Door closer poorly adjusted 

Outcome – Tenant had three stitches to her right fingers 

Actions Taken – A.S. inspected door and requested contractors ( ) return 
and adjust closer to meet the tenant’s needs. Contractor attended and adjusted accordingly. 

Incident escalated to Management at  who actioned re-checks of all recent doors fitted. 
These re-checks resulted in more adjustments to closers. 

 have also agreed to undertake tool box talks to relevant employees on 
adjusting door closers. 

2.

Incident details – The sub-contractor who rewired the property left the blanking plates out of 
the new distribution board leaving current-carrying buzz bar exposed.  
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Investigation – There was a potential risk of harm to the resident as they could have quite 
easily made contact with the live components. Possible contravention of the Electricity at Work 
Regulations 1989   

Cause – Poor practice 

Outcome – No harm 

Actions Taken – Whitehall inspected all other properties which  have carried out 
works and any raised during the inspection of works were rectified to ensure all works were 
left in a safe state.  

The sub-contractor  who had carried out electrical works for Vinci were removed from 
all Colchester Borough Homes jobs due to works being left in an unsafe manner. This was 
highlighted during an independent inspection carried out by Whitehall Electricals.  

CBH now no longer use the contractor and they have been removed from the safe contractors 
list.   

3.

Incident details – Whilst fixing tiles a contracted kitchen fitter made contact with a live wire 

Investigation – No harm resulted from the incident but the poor practice was noted 

Cause – Poor practice 

Outcome – No harm 

Actions Taken – No harm resulted from the incident but the poor practice was noted and the 
contractor was contacted to gain assurance re better practice in future project and speaking 
to their staff. 

4.

Incident details – A CBH Staff member was walking past Red Lion Walk Colchester when 
he noticed unsafe practice by CBH contractors erecting scaffolding. This included:  

- No high viz  
- No hard hats  
- No segregation / barriers  
- Poles leaning against the building unsecured  
- Contractor carrying 4-meter poles through a crowd of people 
- No Banks person being used  

Investigation – two pictures taken at the scene and email sent to CBH H&S team. Clear 
evidence of poor practice and lack of PPE.  

Cause – Poor practice 
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Outcome – No harm 

Actions Taken – M.L. (Building Surveyor) was informed, who in turn emailed and called the 
contractors undertaking the scaffold works (Contractor ) and the works were 
stopped. 

It was agreed  would return the next morning ensuring the following safety 
measures are in place;  

* All operatives are wearing hi-vis jackets and hard hats.  

* Scaffolders are accompanied and supervised by a  banksman.  

* Scaffold transportation routes are marked using low level hi-vis crash barriers.  

* Load out as much scaffolding as possible into site boundary before the shops open at 9am.  

5.   

Incident details – Operative split top of his nose with a crowbar, whilst removing existing 
timber facia 

Investigation – Operative had site induction, method statement and relevant training in 
place.  

Cause – User error  

Outcome – Incident resulted in one day off work  

Actions Taken – Contractor advised that post incident additional tool box talks had been 
delivered 

Incident details – A working at height breach was identified by Will Purser at Mark Frank 
House 

Investigation – Poor practice confirmed 

Cause – Poor practice  

Outcome – No harm  

Actions Taken – Andy Shelmerdine immediately contacted  at  
 to discuss the working at height incident and to request that all work stops 

immediately with an urgent review of their working methods and to re-submit a full risk 
assessment with method statements detailing how the works were to be undertaken moving 
forward.  

All necessary paperwork was supplied by  and Andy Shelmerdine was satisfied with all 
the safe working procedures  
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16.0 Financial Year 2017/18 

Looking forward to the next financial year some of the major aims of the Health and Safety 
Team are: 

 Further imbedding and developing of the Assure system within Colchester Borough
Homes

 Design and deliver fire/health and safety awareness training for all staff at a mandatory
three-year refresher date.

 Increase of recorded tool box talks
 Uploading of CSCS cards to the Assure system and review to ensure all relevant staff

have an in-date card
 Review and consolidate general risk assessments
 Review all fire risk assessments for sheltered schemes and undertake general risk

assessments.
 Start the transition programme from OHSAS 18001 to 45001
 Increased site visits and ad hoc inspections to contractors and CBH operatives
 Plans for selling our Health and Safety services in the latter part of ‘18/19. Training and

fire risk assessment to be the focus
 Review CBH environmental aspects and impacts assessment, taking into account the

lifecycle of products and materials

APPENDIX 

A 

B 

Report submitted by: Ryan Curtis 

Contributions from:  

 Ellen Moore Health and Safety Officer  
 Tom Gibbens Asbestos Project Team Leader 
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Assessment location Essex (000) 
Report author Kevan Alderton 
Assessment standards BS OHSAS 18001:2007 (SSIP) 
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Executive summary 
In line with the organisations policy and objectives the Management System has demonstrated that it isaimed to support the strategic direction and generally delivered the intended results.  During this visit the principal areas sampled confirmed positive management controls are being applied. Staff knowledge was relevant and supporting documentation was generally available.  With regard to the management systems documentation, the organisation continues to retain this information is various online systems and folders. As a result evidencing this information continues to bea challenge. However, the Assure system was deemed to be and benefit and improvement to the management system.  There are however, further possible opportunities to improve and reduce risks relating to achieving the intended results, hence the identified non-conformities raised associated with:  - Internal Audits / planned arrangements.- Corrective Action  The previous non-conformance have been addressed and based on the sample seen the processes were found to be effective. 
 
Assessment objective, scope and criteria 
The objective of the assessment was to conduct a surveillance assessment and look for positive evidence to verify that elements of the scope of certification and the requirements of the managementstandard are effectively addressed by the organization's management system; that the system is demonstrating the ability to support the achievement of statutory, regulatory and contractual requirements and the organization's specified objectives as applicable with regard to the scope of themanagement standard; to confirm the ongoing achievement and applicability of the forward strategicplan and where applicable to identify potential areas for improvement of the management system. 
The scope of the assessment is the documented management system with relation to the requirementsof OHSAS18001and the defined assessment plan provided in terms of locations and areas of the systemand organization to be assessed. 
 OHSAS 18001 Colchester Borough Homes management system documentation 
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NCR summary 
 
Which standard(s) BSI recorded findings against 
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Where BSI recorded findings 

 
 
 
 
 

Definitions: 
 

Nonconformity Non-fulfilment of a requirement.  Major nonconformity Nonconformity that affects the capability of the management system to achieve the intended results. Nonconformities could be classified as major in the following circumstances: -    If there is a significant doubt that effective process control is in place, or that products or services will meet specified requirements; -    A number of minor nonconformities associated with the same requirement or issue could demonstrate a systemic failure and thus constitute a major nonconformity.  Minor nonconformity Nonconformity that does not affect the capability of the management system to achieve the intended results.  Opportunity for improvement It is a statement of fact made by an assessor during an assessment, and substantiated by objective evidence, referring to a weakness or potential deficiency in a management system which if not improved may lead to nonconformity in the future. We may provide generic information about industrial best practices but no specific solution shall be provided as a part of an opportunity for improvement. 
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Assessment participants 
Name Position Opening meeting Closing meeting Interviewed(processes)

Ryan Curtis H&S Environmental & CDM Manager X X X 
Mark Wright Director of property Services X X 
Kirk Breaker OperationsManager X X 

Sharon Stephens  Head of finance and performance X 
Martin Carr Contracts Manager X 
Geoff Martin Mears Operative X 

 
Status of actions from the previous assessment 

Ref Area/process Clause
1447801-201703-N1 Site Tour - Rowan House - Operational Control: Safe Systemsof Work & Control of Contractors Hazard Identification, Risk Assessment Competence, Training& Awareness, Communication, Participation & Consultation 

4.3.1 

Scope OHS 621438
Category Minor 
Details: The process for DSE assessment is not fully effective. 
Objective evidence: DSE assessments have not been document for S Nice, L Bow.
Cause Previous DSE assessments completed by Rowan House staff could not belocated on the day of the audit.  Launched in January 2017 a new Assure (SHE) software package went live, this system keeps an efficient log of completed assessments in an easily accessible location, however due to its infancy  staff are still in the process of completingtheir  DSE assessment  Supporting Evidence: Paper to digital system and document retention identified as cause. Internal gaps 
Correction / containment Review of the process.
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Corrective action Suitable progress has been made - The organisations has reviewed the process,(with the working smarter project).  DSE Assessments - S Nice dated 17/03/17, L Bone dated 06/03/17Assure System - Examples seen Mark Wright dated 20/03/17,  Geraldine Murphydated 09/03/17 Training & lesson plan - Presentations seen Yammer DSE Communication - Dated 30/03/17 & 09/03/17. H&S F26 DSE Work stations assessment user checklist  23/10/17 - Assure holds 187 user assessments. Various staff sampled - AndyGray dated 29/03/17. Wendy Row dated 11/05/17. 
Closed?: Yes
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Assessment findings 
 
The assessment was conducted on behalf of BSI by 
Name Position 
Kevan Alderton Team leader 

 
Assessment conclusion and recommendation 
The audit objectives have been achieved and the certificate scope remains appropriate. The audit teamconcludes based on the results of this audit that Colchester Borough Homes does fulfil the standards and audit criteria identified within the audit report and it is deemed that the management system continues to achieve its intended outcomes. 
RECOMMENDED - The audited organization can be recommended for continued certification to the above listed standards, and has been found in general compliance with the audit criteria as stated in theabove-mentioned audit plan. 
 
Use of certification documents, mark / logo or report 
The use of the BSI certification documents and mark / logo is effectively controlled. 
 
Findings 
Opening Meeting: 
The opening meeting was held with the clients management system representatives/team, this discussed and confirmed the agenda/plan for the visit. An explanation of the assessment methodology,terminology and potential outcomes was communicated at this time.  The scope of certification was reviewed, no concerns raised. Note: The certificate reference to SSIPrequires an amendment reflect the latest changes, ref appendix 1.  As part of the introductory meeting the representative/team confirmed that the business has not been subject to any enforcement action since the last assessment. None were identified as pending.  The client declared no external/interested party complaints or issues relating to OHS managementsystem/scope of activities since the last visit.  Changes:- Responsibility of H&S has moved to the director of finances, (October 2017).- The management system remains as before. - The management board structure is chaining. - Worker smarter, Riverside and Dedham office, (Store remains) has closed.- Workstations standardisation continues. (Noted as an improvements). 
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- Fire & Security groups established.- Assure system training completed. - Apprenticeship schemes established.  One RIDDOR declared. See additional commentary.  Staff/effective Numbers: Staff numbers remain similar. 

Incident Reporting & Investigation: 
Evidence Seen: - Assure System - Incident reporting, (Including causation and corrective action) - RIDDOR event dated 28/07/17 (F2508 - FBFB9F6A93) - Manual Handling - RIDDOR event dated 16/05/17, (seven day and over - Achilles). Investigation INV009- Incident investigation process CP 009 & CG009 CG009a. - Minor event dated 20/10/17 - Assure - Strategic Health and Safety dated 09/17 version 1.6 - Procedure Accident incident Near miss reporting dated 03/17. Planned activities have been fully realized.  Methods for determining process results; The process for reporting, recording and investigating incidents remains effective. The new Assure system is being utilised as required, staff were aware of thenew requirement.  Result: Compliance confirmed.  The organisation demonstrates that the planned activities have been realised with planned results achieved. 

Property Services - Sheltered Accommodation - Visiting Officer activities -  HazardIdentification, Risk Assessment & COSHH Assessment: 
Location: Enoch House Service : Sheltered Accommodation Evidence Seen: - Fire risk assessment dated 12/07/17- Fire action (Assure) - - Fire log book - Fire warning test & inspection - Emergency Lighting inspection- Gas safety inspection records - Electrical Installation Certificates - Visiting Officer - Jerry Lewis, First aider training - Jerry Lewis training record - manual handling dated 11/04/17, Lone working training 01/04/15- Risk assessment - Visiting officer dated 04/2015 - People Safe - Lone worker system  Planned activities have been partially realized. 
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 Methods for determining process results; The VO activities and provided accommodations were sampled. The property was newly built in 2017 and provides a modern working atmosphere for visiting officers. Staff interviews confirmed the related hazards and controls, (Cross-referenced against existing documentation).  The organisation demonstrates that the planned activities have been realised with planned results partially achieved. 
 
 
CDM visit - Operational Control: Safe Systems of Work & Control of Contractors: 
Location: 32 Lime Avenue Works: Void Works Roles, Client & Principle Designer  Evidence Seen: - F10 - 79890243DF dated 02/10/17 - Pre construction information NPS dated 02/10/17 rev 0. - RAMS - Mears - NPS, (Principle designer advisor) Inspections / Audits - Andrew Fleckney - Asbestos Survey dated 12/02/16 - H&S Inspection F2 dated 27/03/17, (Example). - NPS inspection dated 05/09/17 11 Sturmer Court  = 94% - Essex Procurement hub - framework agreement PROC15-0132 - Lot 6 = Named supplier.  Planned activities have been partially realized.  Methods for determining process results; A site visit was completed to confirm the controls relating to the clients role's. Although works were limited the roles of Client and Principal Designer were addressed.  The organisation demonstrates that the planned activities have been realised with planned results achieved. 
 
 
System Elements - Performance, Objectives, internal audits, corrective action, management review. : 
Evidence Seen: - Strategic Health and Safety dated 09/17 version 1.6. - Strategic Policy - CBH - C BMS 004 SAF 001 - Section 9 Objectives. - Objectives & targets CBH - C BMS 010 (OT10, tool box talks - dated 09/06/17). - Master audit planner  CBH C BMS 013 January 2017 - NC relates. - Audit report dated 29/06/17 Gas services - Positive findings recorded. - Audit report dated 29/06/17 SLA - Positive findings recorded. - Management Review - OHSAS 18001 dated 17/03/17.  Planned activities have been partially realized.  Methods for determining process results; The strategic policy has been reviewed and up dated. Objectives and targets have moved forward. Internal audits continue with positive findings identified. The organisations management review continues, with relevant inputs being addressed. 
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 The organisation demonstrates that the planned activities have been realised with planned results partially achieved. 

Minor (2) nonconformities arising from this assessment. 
Ref. no 1541705-201710-N1
Area/process Property Services - Sheltered Accommodation - Visiting Officer activities -Hazard Identification, Risk Assessment & COSHH Assessment 
Clause 4.5.3.2 
Scope OHS 621438
Category Minor
Statement ofnon-conformance: 

The process for corrective action is not fully effective. 

Clause requirements  Nonconformity, corrective action and preventive action The organization shall establish, implement and maintain a procedure(s) fordealing with actual and potential nonconformity(ies) and for taking corrective action and preventive action. The procedure(s) shalldefine requirements for: a) identifying and correcting nonconformity(ies) and taking action(s) to mitigate their OH&S consequences; b) investigating nonconformity(ies), determining their cause(s) and takingactions in order to avoid their recurrence; c) evaluating the need for action(s) to prevent nonconformity(ies) and implementing appropriate actions designed to avoid their occurrence; d) recording and communicating the results of corrective action(s) and preventive action(s) taken; and e) reviewing the effectiveness of corrective action(s) and preventive action(s)taken.  
Objective evidence Enoch House  - Fire risk assessment number 3, (Assure system) Seven actionoutstanding and surpassed action time periods. 
Cause 
Correction / containment
Corrective action
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Ref. no 1541705-201710-N2 
Area/process System Elements - Performance, Objectives, internal audits, corrective action, management review. 
Clause 4.5.5 
Scope OHS 621438 
Category Minor 
Statement of non-conformance: 

Planned arrangements have not been fully maintained. 

Clause requirements  Internal audit The organization shall ensure that internal audits of the OH&S management system are conducted at planned intervals to: a) determine whether the OH&S management system: 1) conforms to planned arrangements for OH&S management, including the requirements of this OHSAS Standard; and 2) has been properly implemented and is maintained; and 3) is effective in meeting the organization’s policy and objectives; b) provide information on the results of audits to management. Audit programme(s) shall be planned, established, implemented and maintained by the organization, based on the results of risk assessments of the organization’s activities, and the results of previous audits. Audit procedure(s) shall be established, implemented and maintained that address: a) the responsibilities, competencies, and requirements for planning and conducting audits, reporting results and retaining associated records; and b) the determination of audit criteria, scope, frequency and methods. Selection of auditors and conduct of audits shall ensure objectivity and the impartiality of the audit process.  
Objective evidence No internal audits completed for July, August, and September, ref AG1, 6, 7, and 2 
Cause  
Correction / containment  
Corrective action  
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Our next steps 
 
Next visit plan 
Date Auditor Time Area/process Clause 
08/03/2018 09.00 Opening Meeting 

Changes: Management System, Processes & Scope: EnforcementAction: RIDDORs 
Site Tour - 123 Gosbecks Road 
Hazard Identification, Risk Assessment & COSHH Assessment
Emergency Preparedness &Response 
Competence, Training & Awareness,Communication, Participation & Consultation 

12.30 Lunch 
Legal & Other Requirements /Evaluation of Compliance 
Incident Reporting & Investigation 
Documentation / Resources, Roles, Responsibility & Authority, Control ofRecords 
Report Preparation 

16.00 Interim Meeting 
TBC 09.00 Review of Day 1 

Internal Audits, Nonconformity,Corrective & Preventive Action, Management Review / Policy / Objectives & Programmes, 
Performance Measurement &Monitoring 
Recertification  STRATEGIC REVIEW:Part A Conducted in conjunction with themanagement representative. 
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Review of: - Assessment progress against thestrategic assessment plan. - Assessment findings over thecertification cycle. - Progress in relation to management system objectives.- Completion of the 3-year plan.- Trends in nonconformities or, areas of concern - Review of any complaints receivedby BSI  
Senior Management Interview 

12.30 Lunch 
Part B Conducted in conjunction with themanagement representative Assessment of: - Management commitment (stakeholder focus, managementsystem policy, objectives, organisation, communication). - The effectiveness of the inter-action of all elements of the system.- The effectiveness of the management system in the light ofinternal or external changes and continued compliance. - The production of a Strategic Assessment plan for the next cyclethat will contain any client specific requirements  
Report Preparation 

16.00 Closing Meeting 

 
Next visit objectives, scope and criteria 
The objective of the assessment is to ascertain the integrity of the organization's management system over the current assessment cycle to enable recertification and confirm the forward strategic assessmentplan. 
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The scope of the assessment is the documented management system with relation to the requirementsof OHSAS 18001 and the defined assessment plan provided in terms of locations and areas of the system and organization to be assessed. 

 OHSAS 18001 Colchester Borough Homes, Property Services management system documentation 
Please note that BSI reserves the right to apply a charge equivalent to the full daily rate for cancellationof the visit by the organization within 30 days of an agreed visit date. It is a condition of registration that a deputy management representative be nominated.  It is expected that the deputy would stand inshould the management representative find themselves unavailable to attend an agreed visit within 30 days of its conduct. 
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Your next steps 
 
NCR close out process 
Corrective actions with respect to nonconformities raised at the last assessment have been reviewedand found to be effectively implemented. 
2 minor nonconformities requiring attention were identified. These, along with other findings, arecontained within subsequent sections of the report. A minor nonconformity relates to a single identified lapse, which in itself would not indicate a breakdownin the management system's ability to effectively control the processes for which it was intended. It is necessary to investigate the underlying cause of any issue to determine corrective action. The proposed action will be reviewed for effective implementation at the next assessment. 
 
How to contact customer service 
'Just for Customers' is the website that we are pleased to offer our clients following successful registration, designed to support you in maximising the benefits of your BSI registration - please go to www.bsigroup.com/j4c to register. When registering for the first time you will need your client referencenumber and your certificate number  (47359220/OHS 621438). 
Should you wish to speak with BSI in relation to your registration, please contact our CustomerEngagement and Planning team: 
 Customer Services BSI Kitemark Court, Davy Avenue, KnowlhillMilton Keynes MK5 8PP  Tel: +44 (0)345 080 9000  Email: MK.Customerservices@bsigroup.com  
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Appendix: Your certification structure & on-goingassessment programme 
 
Scope of certification 
OHS 621438 (BS OHSAS 18001:2007 (SSIP)) 
The management of council owned housing including the repairs, maintenance and asset managementof such housing and of the councils corporate buildings, also the management of sheltered schemes, management of general needs housing and temporary accommodation. CDM duties include activities asa Principal Designer, Principal Contractor and Contractor. BSI also confirms as a registered member of the Safety Schemes in Procurement Forum, that the organisation has demonstrated its compliance withthe core criteria for organisational capability as specified in Appendix 7 of SSIP’s terms of reference for all relevant duties as detailed within the scope above. 
 
Assessed location(s) 
The audit has been performed at Central Office. 
Essex / OHS 621438 (BS OHSAS 18001:2007 (SSIP)) 
Location reference 0047359220-000
Address Colchester Borough Homes Property Services 123 Gosbecks RoadColchester Essex CO2 9JT United Kingdom
Visit type Continuing assessment (surveillance)
Assessment reference 8584052 
Assessment dates 23/10/2017
Deviation from audit plan No 
No. of full time equivalent employees 214
Total no. of effective employees at the site 200
Scope of activities at the site Main certificate scope applies.
Assessment duration 1 day(s) 
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Changes in the organization since last assessment 
 
The following changes in relation to organization structure and key personnel involved in the certified management system were noted: 
Responsibility of H&S has moved to the director of finances, (October 2017). 
 
No change in relation to the audited organization’s activities, products or services covered by the scope of certification was identified. 
 
There was no change to the reference or normative documents which is related to the scope of certification. 
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Certification assessment programme 
Certificate number  - OHS 621438 
Location reference - 0047359220-000 

Audit1 Audit2 Audit3 Audit4 Audit5 Audit6 
Business area/location Date (mm/yy): 09/15 03/16 09/16 03/17 09/17 03/18

Duration (days): 1 1 1 1 1 2 
Site Tour - Greenstead and Dedham X 
Site Tour - 123 Gosbecks Road X X 
Site Tour - Leisure World X 
Site Tour - Riverside and Rowan House X 
Site Visit- Property Services, Shelteredaccommodation X 
Changes: Management System, Processes & Scope: Enforcement Action: RIDDORs X X X X X X 
Operational Control: Safe Systems of Work & Control of Contractors X X X X 
Hazard Identification, Risk Assessment & COSHH Assessment X X X X X X 
Emergency Preparedness & Response X X 
Competence, Training & Awareness,Communication, Participation & Consultation 

X X X 

Legal & Other Requirements / Evaluationof Compliance X X X 
Incident Reporting & Investigation X X X X X X 
Performance Measurement & Monitoring X 
Internal Audits, Nonconformity, Corrective& Preventive Action, Management Review / Policy / Objectives & Programmes, 

X X X 

Documentation / Resources, Roles, Responsibility & Authority, Control ofRecords 
X 

SSIP and CDM duties as Principal Designer, Principal Contractor andContractor 
X X 

OHS Specialist Visit X 
Senior Management Interview X 
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Re-Certification by Strategic Review      X 
 
 
Notes 
This report and related documents are prepared for and only for BSI’s client and for no other purpose. As such, 
BSI does not accept or assume any responsibility (legal or otherwise) or accept any liability for or in connection with any other purpose for which the Report may be used, or to any other person to whom the Report is shown or in to whose hands it may come, and no other persons shall be entitled to rely on the Report.If you wish to 
distribute copies of this report external to your organization, then all pages must be included. 
 
BSI, its staff and agents shall keep confidential all information relating to your organization and shall not disclose 
any such information to any third party, except that in the public domain or required by law or relevant accreditation bodies.  BSI staff, agents and accreditation bodies have signed individual confidentiality undertakings and will only receive confidential information on a 'need to know' basis. 
 
This audit was conducted on-site through document reviews, interviews and observation of activities. The audit method used was based on sampling the organization’s activities and it was aimed to evaluate the fulfilment of the 
audited requirements of the relevant management system standard or other normative document and confirm the conformity and effectiveness of the management system and its continued relevance and applicability for the scope of certification. 
 
As this audit was based on a sample of the organization’s activities, the findings reported do not imply to include all issues within the system. 
 
Regulatory compliance 
BSI conditions of contract for this visit require that BSI be informed of all relevant regulatory non-compliance or incidents that require notification to any regulatory authority.  Acceptance of this report by the client signifies that all such issues have been disclosed as part of the assessment process and agreement that any such non-
compliance or incidents occurring after this visit will be notified to the BSI client manager as soon as practical after the event. 
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Executive summary 
The CBH Property Services Quality and Environmental Management System continues to deliver its 
intended results in line with its service plan(s) and overarching strategy. The Quality and Environmental 
Policies and associated objectives provide the mechanism for the achievement of this and such are seen 
as suitable and appropriate. 

3 Minor Nonconformities (1 of which duplicated for ISO 9001 and 14001) have been raised during this 
assessment visit, together with 3 Opportunities for Improvement - all of which will be subject to review 
at the next assessment visit in February 2018. 

Assessment objective, scope and criteria 
The objective of the assessment was to conduct an ISO 9001 and ISO 14001 surveillance assessment 
and look for positive evidence to verify that elements of the scope of certification and the requirements 
of the management standard are effectively addressed by the organization's management system; that 
the system is demonstrating the ability to support the achievement of statutory, regulatory and 
contractual requirements and the organization's specified objectives as applicable with regard to the 
scope of the management standard; to confirm the ongoing achievement and applicability of the 
forward strategic plan and where applicable to identify potential areas for improvement of the 
management system. 

The scope of the assessment is the documented management system with relation to the requirements 
of ISO 9001 and 14001 and the defined assessment plan provided in terms of locations and areas of the 
system and organization to be assessed. 

Criteria: 
ISO 9001:2015 
ISO 14001:2015 
Colchester Borough Homes Property Services management system documentation. 
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NCR summary 
 

Areas of the standard(s) where BSI recorded findings 

 

 

Which standard(s) BSI recorded findings against 
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Definitions: 

Nonconformity 
Non-fulfilment of a requirement. 
 
Major nonconformity 
Nonconformity that affects the capability of the management system to achieve the intended results. 
Nonconformities could be classified as major in the following circumstances: 
-    If there is a significant doubt that effective process control is in place, or that products or services 
will meet specified requirements; 
-    A number of minor nonconformities associated with the same requirement or issue could 
demonstrate a systemic failure and thus constitute a major nonconformity. 
 
Minor nonconformity 
Nonconformity that does not affect the capability of the management system to achieve the intended 
results. 
 
Opportunity for improvement 
It is a statement of fact made by an assessor during an assessment, and substantiated by objective 
evidence, referring to a weakness or potential deficiency in a management system which if not improved 
may lead to nonconformity in the future. We may provide generic information about industrial best 
practices but no specific solution shall be provided as a part of an opportunity for improvement. 
 

 
Assessment participants 

Name Position 
Opening 
meeting 

Closing 
meeting 

Interviewed 
(processes) 

Ryan Curtis 
Health, Safety, Environmental 
& CDM Manager 

X X X 

Mark Wright Director of Property Services X X X 

Kirk Braker Head of Operations X X X 

Andy Gray Works Manager X X X 

Matt Armstrong Head of Asset Management X X X 

Tricia Moyes 
Administration Assistant 
(Corporate) 

  X 

Sharon Stephens 
Head of Finance and 
Performance 

  X 

Sarah Johnson Finance Manager   X 

Michelle Ketley Facilities Manager   X 
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Status of actions from the previous assessment 

Ref Area/process Clause 
1467904-
201704-N2 

Site works 7.5.3 

Scope EMS 590357 
Certificate 
Standard 

ISO 14001:2015 

Category Minor 

Details: Document control processes not been applied 

Objective 
evidence: 

It is noted that the Void Operative was in possession of INDASA - Damp Seal 
spray can - noted as flammable - however the COSHH Assessment (ref. COS-
028-E dated 14/03/13) has Dulux product and it is noted as not flammable. 

Cause Human error. 
Individual obtained product without approval. 

Correction / 
containment 

Re-communicate process to individual and all relevant staff. 
COSHH Assessments to be in place for all products used. 
 

Corrective 
action 

25/10/2017: 
Communication from Health, Safety, Environmental & CDM Manager via email 
(latest as witnessed on 04/10/2017) and via Training sessions. 
Communication made to operatives via Managers through Team Meetings. 
COSHH Assessments witnessed on Assure System. 
 
It is noted that there were no repeat occurrences identified during the OHSAS 
18001 assessment which was undertaken by Kevan Alderton on 23/10/2017 - in 
which the following sites were visited: Lime Avenue, and Enoch House. 

Closed?: Yes 

 

 

Assessment findings 

The assessment was conducted on behalf of BSI by 

Name Position 

Paul King Team leader 

 

Assessment conclusion and recommendation 

The audit objectives have been achieved and the certificate scope remains appropriate. The audit team 
concludes based on the results of this audit that the organization does fulfil the standards and audit 
criteria identified within the audit report and it is deemed that the management system continues to 
achieve its intended outcomes. 
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RECOMMENDED - The audited organization can be recommended for continued certification to the 
above listed standards, and has been found in general compliance with the audit criteria as stated in the 
above-mentioned audit plan. 

Use of certification documents, mark / logo or report 
The use of the BSI certification documents and mark / logo is effectively controlled. 

Findings 
Business update (including any changes, incidents, complaints, and review of previous 
report): 

An opening meeting and discussion was held, and BSI's assessment protocols and terminology was 
communicated, the assessment plan was confirmed and previous report and findings were reviewed. 
The minor nonconformity which remained outstanding (as raised at the previous assessment visit) was 
seen suitably ‘closed-out’ and the Opportunities for Improvement which were raised, were reviewed/ 
addressed accordingly. 

It was confirmed that there have been no changes to activities or the scopes of registrations, and that 
there have been no environmental incidents, complaints, and no pending or recent prosecutions. 

There have been no significant changes to the Gosbecks Road Head Office working environment or 
infrastructure (it is however noted that the Riverside location is no longer and there has been 
refurbishment/improvement at Rowan House), and it is noted that the Health and Safety Officer (Ellen 
Moore) is currently absent from work and this has/is having an impact on delivery of services. 

The following is also noted: 

- CBH have recently won a Regional Renewable award and George Phillips has been invited to speak 
at the Parliamentary Elect committee with respect to Renewables. 

- Ryan Curtis has recently completed NEBOSH Environmental – results of exam due to be received on 
18th December. 

- IT developments in line with council strategy. 

- ‘Sharepoint’ system seen being better utilised and continually improved. 

- Board members are being reduced from 12 to 9 –  to be approved at AGM next month. Still 
retaining  ‘1/3 rd rule’ – Tenants, Leaseholders, and CBH. 

- Overall Responsibility for Health & Safety matters has been transferred from Mark Wright (as 
interim) to  Michael Hadjimichael - Director of Resources. 

The assessment continued in line with agreed arrangements. 

Management System components/maintenance (including office/premises tour): 

Reviewed Documents/Evidence: 

- Quality Policy and Environmental Policy both remain unchanged – due for re-date/re-signing in 
December 2018 - supported by a number of Policies, including but not limited to: Risk Management 
Policy and Strategy (dated September 2016) and Strategic Health & Safety Policy (dated September 
2017). 

- Property Services Service Plan 2017/18. 
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- ISO 9001 & ISO 14001 Management Meeting last held on 15/08/2017, seen complying with 
requirements. Further review conducted by BSI assessor with respect to:  Previous Minutes and 
Actions, Process Performance and Product Conformance Issues, Internal Audits, 
Corrective/Preventive Actions, Results of Participation & Communication with Staff, Customer 
Feedback and Complaints, Customer Satisfaction, Supplier Quality and Delivery, Training & 
Resources, Continual Improvement Opportunities/Threats, Changes Affecting the Organisation (inc. 
legislative, standards and other), Quality & Environmental Objectives, and Quality & Environmental 
Policies. 
Management Review activity supported by : 

- PSMT (Property Services Management Team Meeting - monthly) – last held on 18/10/2017. 

- Joint DMT (Directors Management Team) and SMT (Senior Management Team) – last held on 
24/10/2017. 

- CMG (Capital Monitoring Group) – being held during this assessment visit on 25/10/2017. 

- Individual working groups/team meetings, comprising of (but not limited to): , HSE Liaison 
Committee,  Business Management Systems Group, Asset Management, Corporate Facilities, 
Learning & Development Committee. 

- Health, Safety, Environmental and CDM Report (reporting period September 2017) issued to Board 
for October meeting (utilising Assure system) and also the Directors Management Team/Senior 
Management Team and Capital Management Group. 

- Annual Health & Safety, CDM and Environmental Report (Financial Year April 2016 – March 2017). 

- In process of appointing a Training Manager and it is noted that the Master Training Log is being 
transferred/captured within the Assure system. It is noted that the Health & Safety Training Needs 
Analysis (seen as GOOD/BEST PRACTICE at previous assessment visit) has now been approved. 

- Recent Training/lesson Plan witnessed for Fire Awareness, Terror Alert and Emergency Evacuation 
Training. 
Last office evacuation noted held on 01/08/2017 – no issues. 

- Internal Audit Meeting held on 11/05/2017 which notes Quarterly meetings to be held, however no 
such meeting has occurred since May. 
Internal Audit Schedule 2017 – ISO 9001, ISO 14001 and OHSAS 18001. 
Internal Audits witnessed having been undertaken for: 
Capital Structural Repairs on 24/04/2017 – no NCR’s. 
Voids – Capital and Revenue on 25/05/2017 – no NCR’s. 
Service Level Agreement – Corporate properties on 27/06/2017 – no NCR’s. 
Gas and Oil Servicing & Repairs on 29/06/2017 -  no NCR’s. 
As raised by Kevan Alderton during OHSAS 18001 Assessment on 23/10/2017 – it is noted that 
Internal Audits are not being undertaken in accordance with planned arrangements (eg. Capital – 
Adaptations ref. AG5 due in May, Capital – Emergency Improvements ref. AG1 due in July, Revenue 
– Ops Centre ref. AG7 due in April, Asset Management ref. AG2 due in September, Invoicing ref.
AG7 due in June – all of which not been undertaken as yet). 
***A minor nonconformity has been raised – see separate section of report***. 

- The Environmental Aspects Risk Register (doc ref. ENV006) remains unchanged (was last reviewed 
October 2016) – due to be reviewed by the end of this month, and Register of Legislation and 
Evaluation of Compliance (doc ref. ENV002) was last reviewed/evaluated for compliance in October 
2017 - no issues identified/changes made. 

- Training & Revenue on 22/05/2017 – 1 non-conformity raised with respect to training process not 
being followed in respect to Welfare Reform Update. The issue was reported to relevant parties and 
will be ‘followed-up’/addressed at a Process Mapping for Training meeting on 22/11/2017. It is also 
noted that subsequent quarterly Learning & Development Committee meetings are to commence 
thereafter. 
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- Risk Register 2017/18 (seen also capturing New and Emerging Risks, with graphical representation 
– ‘Heatmap’). 

- Regular (every 4 – 6 weeks) 'one-to-one' meetings continue to be held, supported by annual staff 
appraisals (incorporates performance and development and any training) being undertaken as 
required and managed/controlled centrally by HR. 

- CBH Waste Carriers Licence continues to be maintained (Upper Tier Waste Carrier – ref. 
CBDU62189) – valid till 26/08/2018. 

- Colchester Skip Hire continues to be used by CBH (ref. CBDU92520 expires 02/04/2019) and Waste 
Transfer notes are issued upon each collection – last note for the Head Office witnessed dated 
21/09/2017 for General Waste - seen complying with latest regulations. 

- Initial Washroom Services – contract/WTN valid from 14/07/2017 for 12 months, however there 
was no SIC code on the document. 
***A minor nonconformity has been raised – see separate section of the report)***. 

- Training provided on the Assure system by Assure on 19/10/2017. 

- Property Services KPI’s record witnessed and seen being managed and maintained accordingly. 

- Office/premises tour undertaken and no issues or areas of concern identified. Waste skip seen not 
cross contaminated with any hazardous materials. 

 

Opportunity for improvement 

Ref. no 1545922-201710-I1 

Area/process Management System components/maintenance (including office/premises 
tour) 

Clause 10.2 

Scope FS 553011 

Certificate 
Standard 

ISO 9001:2015 

Details It is noted that the organisation is to consider using the Action Manager 
system within Assure to capture/address any formal nonconformities arising 
from audits. 

 

Ref. no 1545922-201710-I2 

Area/process Management System components/maintenance (including office/premises 
tour) 

Clause 10.2 

Scope EMS 590357 

Certificate 
Standard 

ISO 14001:2015 

Details It is noted that the organisation is to consider using the Action Manager 
system within Assure to capture/address any formal nonconformities arising 
from audits. 

 

 

87



 
 

 Assessment Report. 
 

Page 10 of 20  

 
 

Ref. no 1545922-201710-I3 

Area/process Management System components/maintenance (including office/premises 
tour) 

Clause 7.5 

Scope EMS 590357 

Certificate 
Standard 

ISO 14001:2015 

Details An Opportunity for Improvement was identified with respect to the central 
filing of Management System records in order to make retrieval of such easier 
(eg. latest Waste Transfer Notes). 

 

 

Minor (3) nonconformities arising from this assessment. 

Ref. no 1545922-201710-N1 

Area/process Management System components/maintenance (including office/premises 
tour) 

Clause 9.2 

Scope FS 553011 

Certificate 
Standard 

ISO 9001:2015 

Category Minor 

Statement of 
non-
conformance: 

Internal audit arrangements not being met/managed accordingly. 

Clause 
requirements 

Internal audit: 
9.2.1 The organisation shall conduct internal audits at planned intervals to 
provide information on whether the quality management system: 
a) conforms to: 
1) the organisation’s own requirements for its quality management system; 
2) the requirements of this International Standard; 
b) is effectively implemented and maintained. 
 
9.2.2 The organisation shall: 
a) plan, establish, implement and maintain an audit programme(s) including 
the frequency, methods, 
responsibilities, planning requirements and reporting, which shall take into 
consideration the 
importance of the processes concerned, changes affecting the organisation, 
and the results of 
previous audits; 
b) define the audit criteria and scope for each audit; 
c) select auditors and conduct audits to ensure objectivity and the impartiality 
of the audit process; 
d) ensure that the results of the audits are reported to relevant management; 
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e) take appropriate correction and corrective actions without undue delay;
f) retain documented information as evidence of the implementation of the
audit programme and the audit results. 
NOTE See ISO 19011 for guidance. 

Objective 
evidence 

Internal Audit Meeting held on 11/05/2017 which notes Quarterly meetings to 
be held, however no such meeting has occurred since May. 

As raised by Kevan Alderton during OHSAS 18001 Assessment on 23/10/2017 
– it is noted that Internal Audits are not being undertaken in accordance with
planned arrangements. 
eg. Capital – Adaptations ref. AG5 due in May, Capital – Emergency 
Improvements ref. AG1 due in July, Revenue – Ops Centre ref. AG7 due in 
April, Asset Management ref. AG2 due in September, Invoicing ref. AG7 due 
in June – all of which not been undertaken as yet. 

Cause 

Correction / 
containment 

Corrective action 

Ref. no 1545922-201710-N2 

Area/process Management System components/maintenance (including office/premises 
tour) 

Clause 9.2 

Scope EMS 590357 

Certificate 
Standard 

ISO 14001:2015 

Category Minor 

Statement of 
non-
conformance: 

Internal audit arrangements not being met/managed accordingly. 

Clause 
requirements 

Internal audit: 
9.2.1 General 
The organisation shall conduct internal audits at planned intervals to provide 
information on whether 
the environmental management system: 
a) conforms to:
1) the organisation’s own requirements for its environmental management
system; 
2) the requirements of this International Standard;
b) is effectively implemented and maintained.

9.2.2 Internal audit programme 
The organisation shall establish, implement and maintain (an) internal audit 
programme(s), including the frequency, methods, responsibilities, planning 
requirements and reporting of its internal audits. 
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When establishing the internal audit programme, the organisation shall take 
into consideration the 
environmental importance of the processes concerned, changes affecting the 
organisation and the results of previous audits. 
The organisation shall: 
a) define the audit criteria and scope for each audit; 
b) select auditors and conduct audits to ensure objectivity and the impartiality 
of the audit process; 
c) ensure that the results of the audits are reported to relevant management. 
The organisation shall retain documented information as evidence of the 
implementation of the audit programme and the audit results. 

Objective 
evidence 

Internal Audit Meeting held on 11/05/2017 which notes Quarterly meetings to 
be held, however no such meeting has occurred since May. 
 
As raised by Kevan Alderton during OHSAS 18001 Assessment on 23/10/2017 
– it is noted that Internal Audits are not being undertaken in accordance with 
planned arrangements. 
eg. Capital – Adaptations ref. AG5 due in May, Capital – Emergency 
Improvements ref. AG1 due in July, Revenue – Ops Centre ref. AG7 due in 
April, Asset Management ref. AG2 due in September, Invoicing ref. AG7 due 
in June – all of which not been undertaken as yet. 

Cause  

Correction / 
containment 

 

Corrective action  

 

Ref. no 1545922-201710-N3 

Area/process Management System components/maintenance (including office/premises 
tour) 

Clause 7.5.3 

Scope EMS 590357 

Certificate 
Standard 

ISO 14001:2015 

Category Minor 

Statement of 
non-
conformance: 

Waste documentation/record incomplete. 

Clause 
requirements 

Control of documented information 
Documented information required by the environmental management system 
and by this International 
Standard shall be controlled to ensure: 
a) it is available and suitable for use, where and when it is needed; 
b) it is adequately protected (e.g. from loss of confidentiality, improper use, 
or loss of integrity). 
For the control of documented information, the organization shall address the 
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following activities 
as applicable: 
— distribution, access, retrieval and use; 
— storage and preservation, including preservation of legibility; 
— control of changes (e.g. version control); 
— retention and disposition. 
Documented information of external origin determined by the organization to 
be necessary for the planning and operation of the environmental 
management system shall be identified, as appropriate, and controlled. 

Objective 
evidence 

There was no SIC code on the contract/WTN document from Initial 
Washroom Services. 

Cause  

Correction / 
containment 

 

Corrective action  

 

Our next steps 

Next visit plan 

Date Auditor Time Area/process 

COMBINED ISO 9001 and 14001 PLAN: 

06/02/2018 Paul King 09.00 DAY 1: 
Opening meeting (including business update, any changes, 
incidents, complaints, and review of previous report) 

  09.30 Management System components (to be covered in their 
entirety at least once per year) including: Strategic 
Direction, Policy and Objectives, Internal audits (including 
control of non-conformities, corrective and preventive 
actions), Risks and Opportunities, Customer feedback/ 
satisfaction and communication, Resources (including 
Infrastructure and work environment), Management 
Review (including Analysis of information). 

   Environmental Aspects and Impacts (identification, review 
& management of) and Legal and Other Requirements 
(including evaluation of compliance) 

  12.30 Lunch 

  13.00 Project / job review - to cover the following at least once 
within the 3 year period: 
The management of council owned housing including the 
repairs, maintenance and asset management of such 
housing and of the councils corporate buildings, also the 
management of sheltered schemes and temporary 
accommodation. 
Processes to include (to be covered at least once within 
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the 3 year period and as agreed during opening meeting): 
- Surveying, incl. voids and specialist works. 
- Voids management (standard / non-standard), incl. site 
visits (including emergency preparedness) 
- Capital works / stock investment: Decent Homes / 
Adaptations, incl. site visit (including emergency 
preparedness) 
- Responsive repairs / planned maintenance / specialist 
works, incl. site visit (including emergency preparedness) 
- Design and development processes 
To be covered in all areas (as appropriate): 
Resources, (including Roles and Responsibilities, 
Competence, Training & Awareness) 
IT & Infrastructure. 
Risks and Opportunities/Risk Management. 
Legal and regulatory compliance. 
Control of monitoring & measuring (including equipment). 
Purchasing, outsourcing & supplier management. 
Project review (including meeting of 
requirements/customer satisfaction. 

15.00 Report preparation/findings Day 1 

16.00 Day 1 closing meeting 

16.30 End of Day 1 

07/02/2018 Paul King 09.00 DAY 2: 
Opening Meeting 

Follow up activities from project and/or site reviews. 

Competence and training (alternating between office and 
site) 

12.30 Lunch 

13.00 Design and development processes 

Equipment checks, incl. calibration 

14.30 Final report preparation/next visit plan 

16.00 Closing Meeting 

16.30 End of assessment 

Next visit objectives, scope and criteria 

The objective of the assessment is to conduct an ISO 9001 and ISO 14001 surveillance assessment and 
look for positive evidence to verify that elements of the scope of certification and the requirements of 
the management standard are effectively addressed by the organization's management system; that the 
system is demonstrating the ability to support the achievement of statutory, regulatory and contractual 
requirements and the organization's specified objectives as applicable with regard to the scope of the 
management standard; to confirm the ongoing achievement and applicability of the forward strategic 
plan. 
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The scope of the assessment is the documented management system with relation to the requirements 
of ISO 9001 and ISO 14001 and the defined assessment plan provided in terms of locations and areas 
of the system and organization to be assessed. 

Please note the following subsequent assessment visits have been booked for: 
11th July 2018 - ½ day ISO 9001 and ½ day ISO 14001 
20th and 21st February 2019 - 1 day ISO 9001 and 1 day ISO 14001 (Re-Certification/Strategic Review) 

Visit Criteria: 
ISO 9001:2015 
ISO 14001:2015 
Colchester Borough Homes Property Services management system documentation. 

Please note that BSI reserves the right to apply a charge equivalent to the full daily rate for cancellation 
of the visit by the organization within 30 days of an agreed visit date. It is a condition of registration 
that a deputy management representative be nominated.  It is expected that the deputy would stand in 
should the management representative find themselves unavailable to attend an agreed visit within 30 
days of its conduct. 

Your next steps 

NCR close out process 

Corrective actions with respect to nonconformities raised at the last assessment have been reviewed 
and found to be effectively implemented. 

3 minor nonconformities requiring attention were identified. These, along with other findings, are 
contained within subsequent sections of the report. 

A minor nonconformity relates to a single identified lapse, which in itself would not indicate a breakdown 
in the management system's ability to effectively control the processes for which it was intended. It is 
necessary to investigate the underlying cause of any issue to determine corrective action. The proposed 
action will be reviewed for effective implementation at the next assessment. 

How to contact customer service 
'Just for Customers' is the website that we are pleased to offer our clients following successful 
registration, designed to support you in maximising the benefits of your BSI registration - please go to 
www.bsigroup.com/j4c to register. When registering for the first time you will need your client reference 
number and your certificate number  (47359220/FS 553011). 

Should you wish to speak with BSI in relation to your registration, please contact our Customer 
Engagement and Planning team: 

Customer Services 
BSI 
Kitemark Court, 
Davy Avenue, Knowlhill 
Milton Keynes 
MK5 8PP 

Tel: +44 (0)345 080 9000 
Email: MK.Customerservices@bsigroup.com 
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Appendix: Your certification structure & on-going 
assessment programme 

Scope of certification 

FS 553011 (ISO 9001:2015) / EMS 590357 (ISO 14001:2015) 

The management of council owned housing including the repairs, maintenance and asset management 
of such housing and of the councils corporate buildings, also the management of sheltered schemes and 
temporary accommodation. 

 

Assessed location(s) 
The audit has been performed at Central Office. 

 

Essex / FS 553011 (ISO 9001:2015) / EMS 590357 (ISO 14001:2015) 
 

Location reference 0047359220-000 
Address Colchester Borough Homes Property Services 

123 Gosbecks Road 
Colchester 
Essex 
CO2 9JT 
United Kingdom 

Visit type Continuing assessment (surveillance) 
Assessment reference 8566575 and 8567532 
Assessment dates 25/10/2017 

Deviation from audit plan No 

No. of full time equivalent 
employees 

79 

Total no. of effective 
employees at the site 

35 

Scope of activities at the site Main certificate scope applies. 
Assessment duration 0.5 day(s) for each registration 

 

Changes in the organization since last assessment 
The following changes in relation to organization structure and key personnel involved in the certified 
management system were noted: 

It is noted that the Health and Safety Officer (Ellen Moore) is currently absent. 
Board members are being reduced from 12 to 9 –  to be approved at AGM next month. 
Overall Responsibility for Health & Safety matters has been transferred from Mark Wright - Director of 
Property Services to Michael Hadjimichael - Director of Resources. 

 
No change in relation to the audited organization’s activities, products or services covered by the scope 
of certification was identified. 
 

There was no change to the reference or normative documents which is related to the scope of 
certification. 
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Shift details 
An evaluation of the shift patterns and processes undertaken on them has been completed and it has 
been concluded that sufficient evidence of conformance from all shifts can be seen during the normal 
assessment times. 

 

Certification assessment programme 
Certificate number  - FS 553011 / EMS 590357 

Location reference - 0047359220-000 

 Audit
1 

Audit
2 

Audit
3 

Audit
4 

Audit
5 

Audit
6 

Audit
7 

Business 
area/location 

Date (mm/yy): 11/16 11/16 04/17 10/17 02/18 08/18 02/19 

Duration (days): 1.0 1.0 2.0 1.0 2.0 1.0 2.0 

Combined ISO 9001 and 14001 visits: X X X X X X X 

ISO 9001:2015 and ISO 14001:2015 
Transition Readiness Review and 
subsequent evaluations (incorporated 
within the Continuing Assessment visits 
with intention to be re-registered to the 
2015 standards by August 2017) 
**Noted completed during November 
2016 visit** 

X X      

Management System components 
including: Policy and Objectives, Internal 
audits (including control of non-
conformities, corrective and preventive 
actions), Customer feedback/satisfaction 
and communication, Infrastructure and 
work environment (including tour and 
Resources). 

  X X X X X 

Environmental Aspects and Impacts 
(alternating between office and site) 

 X X X X X X 

Environmental Legal and Other 
Requirements (including evaluation of 
compliance) (alternating between office 
and site) 

 X X X X X X 

Management Review   X X X X X 

Continual improvement  X X X X X X 

Competence and training (alternating 
between office and site) 

 X X X X   

Purchasing: supplier / subcontractor 
selection & performance evaluation 

 X X X X X  

Control of documents and records  X X X X X X 

Surveying, incl. voids and specialist works   X  X  X 
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Voids management (standard / non-
standard), incl. site visits (including 
emergency preparedness) 

X X 

Capital works / stock investment: Decent 
Homes / Adaptations, incl. site visit 
(including emergency preparedness) 

X X X 

Responsive repairs / planned maintenance 
/ specialist works, incl. site visit (including 
emergency preparedness) 

X X X 

Design and development processes X X X 

Equipment checks, incl. calibration X X X 

Dedham stores/yard – 21/04/2017: only 
Joinery workshop now in place 

X 

Senior management discussion X X X X 

Environmental Specialist visit X 

Strategic review X 

Context of the Organisation, Risks and 
Opportunities 

X X X 

Top Management Discussion, inc. Internal 
and External 
Issues, Challenges, Strategic Direction, 
Roles and Responsibilities 

X X X 

Scope, Policy & Objectives X X X 

Internal Audit, Nonconformity and 
Corrective Action 

X X X 

Performance Evaluation, inc. Customer 
Satisfaction 

X X X 

Management Review X X X X 

Resources: People, Infrastructure, Work 
Environment, and Organisational 
Knowledge 

X X X 

Awareness and Communication X X X 

Purchasing, outsourcing & supplier 
management 

X X X 
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Expected outcomes for accredited certification 
What accredited certification to ISO 14001 means 

The purpose of ISO 14001:2015 is to provide organizations with a framework to protect the 
environment and respond to changing environmental conditions in balance with socio-economic needs. 
ISO 14001:2015 helps an organization achieve the intended outcomes of its environmental management 
system, which provide value for the environment, the organization itself and interested parties. 
Consistent with the organization’s environmental policy, the intended outcomes of an environmental 
management system include: 
— enhancement of environmental performance; 
— fulfilment of compliance obligations; 
— achievement of environmental objectives 

 

What accredited certification to ISO 14001 does not mean 

1) ISO 14001 defines the requirements for an organization’s environmental management system, but 
does not define specific environmental performance criteria. 
2) Accredited certification to ISO 14001 provides confidence in the organization’s ability to meet its own 
environmental policy, including the commitment to comply with applicable legislation, to prevent 
pollution, and to continually improve its performance. It does not ensure that the organization is 
currently achieving optimal environmental performance. 
3) The ISO 14001 accredited certification process does not include a full regulatory compliance audit 
and cannot ensure that violations of legal requirements will never occur, though full legal compliance 
should always be the organization’s goal. 
4) Accredited certification to ISO 14001 does not necessarily indicate that the organization will be able 
to prevent environmental accidents from occurring. 

 

What accredited certification to ISO 9001 means 

ISO 9001:2015 specifies requirements for a quality management system when an organization: needs to 
demonstrate its ability to consistently provide products and services that meet customer and applicable 
statutory and regulatory requirements; and aims to enhance customer satisfaction through the effective 
application of the system, including processes for improvement of the system and the assurance of 
conformity to customer and applicable statutory and regulatory requirements. 

 

What accredited certification to ISO 9001 does not mean 

1) It is important to recognize that ISO 9001 defines the requirements for an organization’s quality 
management system, not for its products and services. Accredited certification to ISO 9001 should 
provide confidence in the organization’s ability to “consistently provide product that meets customer and 
applicable statutory and regulatory requirements”. It does not necessarily ensure that the organization 
will always achieve 100% product conformity, though this should of course be a permanent goal. 
2) ISO 9001 accredited certification does not imply that the organization is providing a superior product 
or service, or that the product or service itself is certified as meeting the requirements of an ISO (or any 
other) standard or specification. 
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Assessment Report. 

Page 20 of 20 

Notes 
This report and related documents are prepared for and only for BSI’s client and for no other purpose. As such, 

BSI does not accept or assume any responsibility (legal or otherwise) or accept any liability for or in connection 

with any other purpose for which the Report may be used, or to any other person to whom the Report is shown or 

in to whose hands it may come, and no other persons shall be entitled to rely on the Report. If you wish to 

distribute copies of this report external to your organization, then all pages must be included. 

BSI, its staff and agents shall keep confidential all information relating to your organization and shall not disclose 

any such information to any third party, except that in the public domain or required by law or relevant 

accreditation bodies.  BSI staff, agents and accreditation bodies have signed individual confidentiality undertakings 

and will only receive confidential information on a 'need to know' basis. 

This audit was conducted on-site through document reviews, interviews and observation of activities. The audit 

method used was based on sampling the organization’s activities and it was aimed to evaluate the fulfilment of the 

audited requirements of the relevant management system standard or other normative document and confirm the 

conformity and effectiveness of the management system and its continued relevance and applicability for the 

scope of certification. 

As this audit was based on a sample of the organization’s activities, the findings reported do not imply to include 

all issues within the system. 

Regulatory compliance 
BSI conditions of contract for this visit require that BSI be informed of all relevant regulatory non-compliance or 

incidents that require notification to any regulatory authority.  Acceptance of this report by the client signifies that 

all such issues have been disclosed as part of the assessment process and agreement that any such non-

compliance or incidents occurring after this visit will be notified to the BSI client manager as soon as practical after 

the event. 
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REPORT TO COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES BOARD 

DATE: 20 June 2018 

TIME: 5.30 pm 

VENUE: Room 1, Rowan House 

AGENDA ITEM: 7 

SUBJECT: Briefing regarding the Independent Review of Building 
Regulations and Fire Safety: final report, May 2018. 

REPORT BY: Mark Wright, Director of Property Services 
 (01206) 282760  
  mark.wright@cbhomes.org.uk 

FOR INFORMATION 

1. Recommendation

1.1 That the Board notes the information contained in this briefing paper and 
receive further briefings and reports as appropriate. 

2. Purpose of Report

2.1 The purpose of this report is to provide Board Members with an opportunity to 
consider the Independent Review of Building Regulations and Fire Safety’s 
final report issued by the subcommittee led by Dame Judith Hackitt:      

“Building a Safer Future Independent Review of Building Regulations and 
Fire Safety: Final Report Presented to Parliament by the Secretary of 
State for Housing, Communities and Local Government May 2018”. 

2.2 This briefing is not intended to be exhaustive, but to provide an introduction to 
the recommendations made following the Independent Review of Building 
Regulations and Fire Safety and to highlight some of the ways in which the 
recommendations could impact on both the Council and Colchester Borough 
Homes.  

3. Background & Content

3.1 Whilst there are no blocks of flats above three storeys within the Colchester 
Council domestic property portfolio, the recommendations in the report that 
reflect on the wider residential stock and the construction processes in the UK 
and how these may be applied, form the background to this briefing. 

3.2 A copy of the Executive Summary of the final report is shown at Appendix 1 to 
this report. 

k 
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3.3 A copy of the full report can be found at:  
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/independent-review-of-building-
regulations-and-fire-safety-final-report 

3.4 Based on its Terms of Reference, this review has primarily focused on 
creating a stronger regulatory framework for high-rise, multi-occupancy 
residential buildings. 

3.5 Many recommendations in this report are only intended to apply to High Rise 
Residential Blocks (HRRBs). However, in some cases the review suggests 
applying specific recommendations to a wider set of buildings. 

3.6 This is where it feels proportionate to do so and the recommendation will 
clearly benefit building standards more broadly. In particular, the review 
identifies two further classes of buildings where specific recommendations 
should equally apply:- 

 Other multi-occupancy residential buildings (e.g. blocks of flats below
10 storeys) where the Fire Safety Order already applies. In this report
these buildings are referred to as ‘multi-occupancy residential
buildings’

and 
 Institutions and other buildings used as living accommodation where

people sleep, including hospitals, care homes, hotels, prisons, halls of
residence and boarding schools. In this report these buildings are
referred to as ‘institutional residential buildings’.

3.7 In addition, some recommendations apply to all building work of any scale 
(and whether commercial, residential or otherwise). This tiered approach will 
reduce the cliff-edge between the requirements placed on HRRBs and other 
buildings. 

3.8 Whilst we await the Government’s response to the report, the following is a 
brief summary of the areas of the report and recommendations that could 
impact on the Council and Colchester Borough Homes: 

 The establishment of a new regulatory body - a Joint Competent
Authority (JCA) – terms of reference to be defined.

 The establishment of key roles and responsibilities for buildings
including a new Duty Holder role.

 A requirement on the Duty Holder to confidentially record and report (at
least annually) any engineering safety concerns

 The introduction of a different approach to regulatory oversight,
building regulation approval and change management and recording
systems for the lifetime of buildings.

 New roles and responsibilities for Local Authority Building Control and
the Fire and Rescue Services.

 The impact on the frequency and adequacy of Fire Risk Assessments
 Duties and obligations placed upon tenants and leaseholders to

maintain safety in buildings and to co-operate with landlords.
 Duties to consult and share information with residents
 The report makes significant recommendations regarding competency

at all levels, including the new Duty Holder role, those engaged in
design and construction and those undertaking Fire Risk Assessments.
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 Product specification development and testing. Of particular note here
for CBH, given that the primary concerns over cladding do not apply, is
the issue that has arisen from the Grenfell enquiry relating to fire doors
tested and approved that have subsequently been found to have failed
similar tests.

 Procurement – the report makes recommendations that would impact
on current procurement processes, both European and public
procurement regulation in place in the UK with a foreseeable financial
impact.

 The report makes recommendations to “fix” what it considers to be a
regulatory framework and industry that is no longer fit for purpose.

4. Risk Management

4.1 The purpose of this briefing is to provide early warning of potential areas of 
Risk for CBH arising from the substantive matters considered in the briefing. 
More detailed information will be provided in subsequent briefings or reports. 

5. HR Implications

5.1 To be discussed 

6. Legal Implications

6.1 To be discussed 

7. Financial Implications

7.1 To be discussed 

8. Value for Money

8.1 To be discussed 

9. Health & Safety Implications

9.1 The whole of the matters considered in this briefing refer to health and safety. 

10. Equality & Diversity Implications

10.1 To be discussed 

11. Residents at the Heart

11.1 To be discussed 

12. Decision Required?

12.1 No 
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13. Appendix 
  
13.1 The following document is appended to this report: 

 Appendix 1 – Building a Safer Future - Independent Review of Building 
Regulations and Fire Safety: Final Report – Executive Summary 
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Executive summary

103



Building a Safer Future – Independent Review of Building Regulations and Fire Safety: Final Report 11 

Executive summary

3 Covering procurement, design, construction, occupation, maintenance and refurbishment.

Overview

The interim report identified that the current 
system of building regulations and fire safety is 
not fit for purpose and that a culture change 
is required to support the delivery of buildings 
that are safe, both now and in the future. The 
system failure identified in the interim report has 
allowed a culture of indifference to perpetuate. 

More specifically: 

• the roles and responsibilities of those
procuring, designing, constructing and
maintaining buildings are unclear;

• the package of regulations and guidance
(in the form of Approved Documents)
can be ambiguous and inconsistent;

• the processes that drive compliance with
building safety requirements are weak
and complex with poor record keeping
and change control in too many cases;

• competence across the system is patchy;
• the product testing, labelling and marketing

regime is opaque and insufficient; and
• the voices of residents often goes unheard,

even when safety issues are identified.

The new regulatory framework set out in this 
report must address all of these weaknesses if 
there is to be a stronger focus on creating and 
maintaining safe buildings. It must strengthen 
regulatory oversight to create both positive 
incentives to comply with building safety 
requirements and to effectively deter non-
compliance. It must clarify roles and responsibilities. 
It must raise and assure competence levels, as 
well as improving the quality and performance 
of construction products. Residents must feel 
safe and be safe, and must be listened to when 
concerns about building safety are raised. 

This new regulatory framework must be delivered 
as a package. The framework will be based around 
a series of interdependent, mutually reinforcing 

changes where one new measure drives another. 
In doing so it reflects the reality of most high-rise 
buildings which operate as a complex inter-locking 
system. Only this genuine system transformation 
will ensure that people living in high rise buildings 
are safe and have confidence in the safety of 
their building, both now and in the future.

The new framework is designed to:

• Create a more simple and effective
mechanism for driving building safety
– a clear and proportionate package of
responsibilities for dutyholders across the building 
life cycle.3 This means more time will be spent 
upfront on getting building design and ongoing 
safety right for the buildings in scope. This will 
create the potential for efficiency gains; scope 
for innovation in building practices; and value 
for money benefits from constructing a building 
that has longer-term integrity and robustness.

• Provide stronger oversight of dutyholders
with incentives for the right behaviours, and
effective sanctions for poor performance –
more rigorous oversight of dutyholders will be
created through a single coherent regulatory
body that oversees dutyholders’ management
of buildings in scope across their entire life-
cycle. A strengthened set of intervention points
will be created with more effective change
control processes and information provision.

• Reassert the role of residents - a no-
risk route for redress will be created and
greater reassurances about the safety of their
home will be offered, as well as ensuring
that residents understand their role and
responsibilities for keeping their building
safe for themselves and their neighbours.

In making these changes, the new 
framework will also radically enhance the 
current model of responsibility so that:
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• Those who procure, design, create
and maintain buildings are responsible
for ensuring that those buildings are safe
for those who live and work in them.

• Government will set clear outcome-
based requirements for the building safety
standards which must be achieved.

• The regulator will hold dutyholders to account,
ensure that the standards are met and take action
against those who fail to meet the requirements.

• Residents will actively participate in the
ongoing safety of the building and must be
recognised by others as having a voice.

Recommendations

The recommendations for this new framework 
are explained over the following ten chapters 
of this report and are summarised below.

The key parameters of a new regulatory 
framework (set out in Chapter 1) will establish:

• A new regulatory framework focused,
in the first instance, on multi-occupancy
higher risk residential buildings (HRRBs)
that are 10 storeys or more in height;

• A new Joint Competent Authority (JCA)
comprising Local Authority Building Standards,
fire and rescue authorities and the Health and
Safety Executive to oversee better management
of safety risks in these buildings (through
safety cases) across their entire life cycle;

• A mandatory incident reporting
mechanism for dutyholders with
concerns about the safety of a HRRB.

Improving the focus on building safety during 
the design, construction and refurbishment 
phases (set out in Chapter 2) through:

• A set of rigorous and demanding dutyholder
roles and responsibilities to ensure a
stronger focus on building safety. These roles
and responsibilities will broadly align with
those set out in the Construction (Design
and Management) Regulations 2015;

4 The proposed new name for Local Authority Building Control – see Chapter 2.

• A series of robust gateway points to
strengthen regulatory oversight that will
require dutyholders to show to the JCA that
their plans are detailed and robust; that their
understanding and management of building
safety is appropriate; and that they can properly
account for the safety of the completed
building in order to gain permission to move
onto the next phase of work and, in due
course, allow their building to be occupied;

• A stronger change control process that
will require robust record-keeping by the
dutyholder of all changes made to the
detailed plans previously signed off by the
JCA. More significant changes will require
permission from the JCA to proceed;

• A single, more streamlined, regulatory
route to oversee building standards as part
of the JCA to ensure that regulatory oversight
of these buildings is independent from clients,
designers and contractors and that enforcement
can and does take place where that is necessary.
Oversight of HRRBs will only be provided through
Local Authority Building Standards4 as part of
the JCA, with Approved Inspectors available
to expand local authority capacity/expertise or
to newly provide accredited verification and
consultancy services to dutyholders; and

• More rigorous enforcement powers. A wider
and more flexible range of powers will be created
to focus incentives on the creation of reliably
safe buildings from the outset. This also means
more serious penalties for those who choose to
game the system and place residents at risk.

Improving the focus on building safety during the 
occupation phase (set out in Chapter 3) through:

• A clear and identifiable dutyholder with
responsibility for building safety of the whole
building. The dutyholder during occupation
and maintenance should maintain the fire
and structural safety of the whole building,
and identify and make improvements
where reasonable and practicable;
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• A requirement on the dutyholder to present
a safety case to the JCA at regular intervals
to check that building safety risks are being
managed so far as is reasonably practicable;

• Clearer rights and obligations for residents
to maintain the fire safety of individual dwellings,
working in partnership with the dutyholder.
This will include a combination of transparency
of information and an expectation that
residents support the dutyholder to manage
the risk across the whole building ; and

• A regulator for the whole of the
building (the JCA) in relation to fire and
structural safety in occupation who can
take a proactive, holistic view of building
safety and hold dutyholders to account
with robust sanctions where necessary.

Giving residents a voice in the system 
(set out in Chapter 4) through:

• Providing reassurance and recourse for
residents of all tenures by providing:
• greater transparency of information

on building safety;
• better involvement in decision-making,

through the support of residents
associations and tenant panels; and

• a no-risk route for residents to escalate
concerns on fire safety where necessary,
through an independent statutory body
that can provide support where service
providers have failed to take action, building
on ongoing work across Government.

Setting out demanding expectations 
around improved levels of competence 
(set out in Chapter 5) through:

• The construction sector and fire safety sector
demonstrating more effective leadership for
ensuring building safety amongst key roles
including an overarching body to provide
oversight of competence requirements.

Creating a more effective balance between 
government ownership of building standards 
and industry ownership of technical 
guidance (set out in Chapter 6) by:

• Moving towards a system where ownership
of technical guidance rests with industry
as the intelligent lead in delivering building
safety and providing it with the flexibility to
ensure that guidance keeps pace with changing
practices with continuing oversight from an
organisation prescribed by government.

• A package of regulations and guidance
that is simpler to navigate but that
genuinely reflects the level of complexity
of the building work. This new approach will
reinforce the concept of delivering building
safety as a system rather than by considering
a series of competing or isolated objectives.

Creating a more robust and transparent 
construction products regime (set 
out in Chapter 7) through:

• a more effective testing regime with clearer
labelling and product traceability, including a
periodic review process of test methods and the
range of standards in order to drive continuous
improvement and higher performance and
encourage innovative product and system design
under better quality control. This regime would
be underpinned by a more effective market
surveillance system operating at a national level.

Creating a golden thread of information 
about each HRRB (set out in Chapter 8) by:

• Obligating the creation of a digital record for
new HRRBs from initial design intent through
to construction and including any changes that
occur throughout occupation. This package
of building information will be used by the
dutyholders to demonstrate to the regulator the
safety of the building throughout its life cycle.

And in addition:

• Tackling poor procurement practices (set
out in Chapter 9) including through the roles
and responsibilities set out above, to drive the
right behaviours to make sure that high-safety,
low-risk options are prioritised and full life cycle
cost is considered when a building is procured;
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• Ensuring continuous improvement and best-
practice learning through membership of an 
international body (set out in Chapter 10).

The recommendations in this report relate 
predominantly to HRRBs which will be overseen by 
the JCA. However, it is made clear in the following 
chapters where the review believes that there would 
be merit in certain aspects of the new regulatory 
framework applying to a wider set of buildings.

Costs and savings associated with the new 
regulatory framework

These recommendations will require additional 
actions from those building and owning HRRBs. 
However, there are a number of potential 
benefits from this approach: for example, 
investing more in upfront design is likely to save 
financial resources later on in the process. 

Research from the USA suggests that net savings in 
the region of 5% in the costs of the construction 
of newly built projects are possible where a digital 
record is utilised (see Chapter 8). In addition, a 
clearer set of roles and responsibilities could:

• create certainty in the market in terms of what 
the changes look like and in both the immediate 
and longer term reduce risks of poor quality 

building work, increasing investor confidence 
and mitigating the likelihood of any slowing 
down in the pace of building work; and

• reduce confusion between different actors 
over who is responsible for specific aspects 
of the work, and minimise the likelihood 
of mistakes that need to be rectified, 
speeding up the transaction process and 
potentially deliver efficiencies that manifest 
themselves in greater productivity. 

More broadly, investing in improved competence 
levels could ensure that more skilled workers 
are able to correct errors and improve efficiency 
alongside ensuring compliance with the regulations. 
An improved product testing and marketing regime 
could also have additional quality benefits, for 
instance in ensuring sustained product performance.

Mapping the existing and future 
regulatory frameworks 

The interim report included an outline map 
of the existing regulatory system insofar as it 
applied to the design, construction, occupation 
and maintenance of a high-rise residential 
building. Even though it did not cover all detailed 
scenarios, it was still highly complex – involving 
multiple routes, regulators, dutyholders and 
differing (and overlapping) sets of legislation.

Figure 1: Map of the current regulatory system for high-rise residential buildings
Mapping the building and fire safety regulatory system – Construction of High Rise Residential Buildings
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Design phase

Building Act 1984         Building Regulations 2010         Building (Approved Inspectors, etc.) Regulations 2010
Approved Document B (fire safety) volume 2: buildings other than dwellinghouses, 2013, DCLG         Building Control Performance Standards, 2017, DCLG         Building Regulations and Fire Safety Procedural Guidance, 2015, DCLG

Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005
Fire safety in purpose-built flats, 2011, LGA; Fire safety risk assessment: sleeping accommodation, 2006, Home Office

Person wishes to construct a 
high-rise residential building

Local planning
authority consider and 

determine within
13 weeks

Professional design team 
(including architects and 

engineers) develop extensive 
building design

Building work must be undertaken in 
accordance with the Building Regulations, 
in particular regulations 4, 7 and 
Schedule 1.
Schedule 1 includes:

A – Structural safety requirements
B – Fire safety requirements:
● B1 – Means of warning and escape
● B2 – Internal fire spread (linings)
● B3 – Internal fire spread (structure)
● B4 – External fire spread
● B5 – Access and facilities for the 
 fire service

7 – Materials and workmanship

Choice of
building control 

route

Approved Inspector route
 Contract terms and fees agreed
Before or as soon as practicable 

after giving an Initial Notice in 
relation to the work, fire and 
rescue service consulted on 

B1-5 and FSO issues 

Heath and Safety at Work, etc. Act 1974         Contruction (Design and Management) Regulations 2015         Fire safety in construction, 2010, HSE

Housing Act 2004         Housing Health and Safety Rating System (England) Regulations 2005
HHSRS Operating Guidance, 2006; DCLG: HHSRS Enforcement Guidance, 2006, DCLG

Site preparation phasePlanning phase

Town and Country Planning Act 1990

Construction phase

Occupation phase

Enforcement powers apply for up to 2 years following completion of work

European Construction 
Products Regulations apply

Enforced by trading 
standards under UK 

Construction Products 
Regulations 2013

CE marking and Declaration 
of Performance required 

to market products

European Technical 
Assessment and 

CE marking process

Involvement by notified 
bodies and notified 

laboratories

Past experience
Independent Certification Scheme (UKAS 

accredited third party organisation) 
produces a Declaration of Performance

Product testing process

Laboratory testing to determined standards 
(laboratory should be UKAS accredited)

Assessment in lieu of a test (i.e. a desktop study), 
reliant on actual test results

International product
standards process

British product
standards process

Tests and calculations 
process

Materials and workmanship

Is the product a standardised product?

Is there a European Harmonised Standard for the product/workmanship?
YES NO

Independent certification e.g. BSI Kitemark 
provides additional assurance that product 

complies with standard (otherwise it is 
based on a manufacturer’s declaration)

Approved Documents (or other relevant guidance e.g. BS 9991) set properties which 
materials should meet (e.g. limited combustibility)

Where doubt exists there are powers 
for the BCB to sample and test 

materials under regulation 46 (LABC) 
or regulation 8 (AI)

YES NO

Construction (Design and Management) Regulations

If a breach is identified, single enforcement 
actions under CDM/FSO include:
● Prohibition Notice
● Improved Notice
● Prosecution
● Fine for Inspection

No breaches identified 

Client must:
● Commit to managing project including fire risk
● Compile health and safety file
● Appoint a suitable Principal Designer and Principal Contractor
● Allocate sufficient time and resources
● Provide pre-construction information

Client notifies 
project to HSE and 

key dutyholders 
where work exceeds 
a defined threshold

HSE inspects premises and assesses 
potential material breaches:
● Process fire risks
● General fire precautions

Principal Contractor is accountable for:
● Planning, managing, monitoring and co-ordinating information   
 about fire risk during construction phase including liaising with 
 the client and Principle Designer
● Organise and co-ordinating co-operation between contractors
● Commit to minimising risk of fire
● Provide information for inclusion in the health and safety file

Principal Designer is accountable for:
● Planning, managing, monitoring and co-ordinating information   
 about fire risk during design and planning phase
● Ensure designers comply with their duties to identify and eliminate risk
● Commit to ensuring pre-construction design manages fire risk
● Commit to working closely with client and Principal Contractor

Permission NOT
granted

Permission
granted

Work is undertaken 
without building control 

oversight

Process repeats: 
● If planning 
permission required, 
go to:
● If planning 
permission NOT 
required, go to:

Regulation 7 requires building work to be carried out with adequate and proper 
materials, in a workmanlike manner.

Materials include naturally occurring materials and manufactured products such 
as components, fittings, items of equipment and systems

µ
µ

Applicant seeks planning 
permission #

#

Is the refurbishment 
defined as building 

work under the 
Building Act?

Refurbishment design phase

Refurbishment work phase

Satisfactory 
action taken?

LABC accept Initial Notice

LABC reject Initial Notice Successful 
resubmission? 

Building works 
commence

(Plans do not need to 
be followed)

Agreed risk-based 
inspection plan with 
Approved Inspector 

followed

Risk-based inspection 
programme by the fire and 

rescue service

Fire
safety audit

undertaken. Compliant
fire risk assessment

and sufficient fire 
precautions

in place? 

Fire risk assessment
produced and regularly 

maintained, with sufficient fire 
precautions in place

Handover of relevant fire 
safety info to responsible 
person (reg 38 of BRs) 

Building starts
occupation 

Responsible person has a duty for there 
to be a suitable and sufficient fire risk 
assessment covering the ‘common 

parts’ of their building. They may appoint 
a competent person for this task

Final Certificate 
issued and submitted 

to LABC 

Final Certificate accepted by the LABC

Initial Notice ceases 
(within 8 weeks)

Cancellation Notice 
issued to building 
owner and LABC

FAIL: Written 
Notice 

issued on 
alleged 

breaches 

PASS: work 
meets all 

requirements
Building work 

continues
Building work 

completed

Approved
Inspector

considers whether 
work meets Building 

Regulation 
requirements

Installation by a competent 
person (e.g. for electrical or 

gas works) 

Competent person 
issues certificate of 

compliance

Building control body is 
authorised to accept certificate 

of compliance as part of the 
Completion Certificate/Final 

Certificate process

Competent person installation

 
 

Plans Certificate not
issued by Approved 

Inspector

Plans Certificate showing 
Building Regulations 
compliance is issued, 

 and sent to LABC

If Approved Inspector considers 
building work has altered materially 

against Initial Notice

YES NO

AI consults FRS then 
issues Amendment 

Notice to LABC

If the building is to be refurbished:Local Authority Building 
Control route

Full plan deposited
and fee paid

Plans assessed within 
5 weeks/8 weeks

Fire and rescue service 
consulted on B1-5 and

FSO issues

APPROVED: Full plans 
meet all Building Regulations 
requirements – if response 
not received, plans deemed 

to have passed

REJECT: Full plans show a 
contravention of Building 

Regulations or are 
defective/incomplete

APPROVED CONDITIONAL 
PASS: Full plans can 

pass subject to:
- Necessary changes made
- Further plans deposited

 

A) Notice of Approval 
issued

(with conditions)

B) Inspection
schedule determined

Determination 
process

Satisfactory 
action taken?

Notice of Intent to 
start work sent to 

LABC 2 days before 
building work 
commences

Building works 
commence

(Full plans do not 
need to be followed)

Agreed risk-based 
inspection plan with 

LABC  followed

LABC
consider whether 

building work meets 
Building Regulation 

requirements

PASS: work 
meets all 

requirements

FAIL: 
Information 

given requiring 
work to be 

altered

Building work 
continues

Building work 
completed

Completion Certificate issued in less than 8 weeks 
from the completion of the work (reg 17)

YES

NO
Full plans show 
contravention of 

Building 
Regulations

Approved
Inspector assesses

whether plans meets Building 
Regulations

Fire and rescue service
consulted on B1-5
and FSO issues

If Plans Certificate requested by 
building owner

Determination 
process

NO

YES

YES

Building work cannot 
commence

NO

Satisfactory
action taken,

successful appeal, or 
successful request to 

relax Building
Regulations? 

YES

Final inspection 
successful?

YES

LABC issues 
Enforcement Notice, 

sanctions applied

NO

NO

YES

LABC issues 
Enforcement Notice, 

sanctions applied
NO

Satisfactory 
action taken?

YES

NO

Final inspection 
successful?

(FRS consulted)

YES

Satisfactory 
action taken?

NO YES

NO

LABC enforces Building 
Regulations, may determine a 

reversion fee.

Possible enforcement/
sanctions applied

YES

Prosecution:
● Fines
● Imprisonment 

LEGEND

Building owner

Resident/Tenant

People carrying/intending to 
carry out building work

Local planning authority

Local Authority Building 
Control (LABC)

Approved Inspector

Fire and rescue service

Competent person 
(Building Act)

Responsible person (FSO)

Competent person (FSO)

Local authority 
Environmental Health Officer

Process
Indicates any process

Terminating 
process
Indicates the beginning or end 
of a process flow

Decision required
Indicates a decision point 
between two or more 
processes

Document issued
Indicates data that can be 
read by people, such as 
certificates issued

The Housing Health and Safety Rating System

No category 1 or 2 hazard

If category 1 hazard found, EHO must
take appropriate action:

Improvement Notice

Prohibition Order

Emergency Remedial Action

Hazard Awareness Notice

If category 2 hazard found, EHO 
has the power to issue notices 

as above if appropriate

Relevant 
enforcement

action applied 
e.g. fines

Risk-
based

assessment
undertaken

by EHO on HHSRS 
hazard factors

Risk score calculated on 
29 hazard factors, inc fire

Private properties and
common parts

considered

Complaint made 
to local authority by:
● Resident/Tenant

● Neighbour 

EHO undertakes
proactive 

survey/inspection

Appeal
made against

EHO
decision?

Necessary
action taken?

APPEAL 
FAILS

YES 

NO 

APPEAL 
SUCCEEDS

Prohibition
Notice 

Alterations
Notice 

Enforcement
Notice 

Informal
Notice 

Necessary
action taken?

Appeal made against
FRS decision?

APPEAL 
FAILS

APPEAL 
SUCCEEDS

Plans Certificate 
shows 

contravention
of Building 

Regulations

Satisfactory
action taken,

successful appeal, or 
successful request to 

relax Building
Regulations? 

Initial Notice
given to Local Authority Building 

Control, who have 5 days to 
reject

NO

NO

Determination process

YES
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The new regulatory framework for HRRBs attempts 
to move in the opposite direction by making 
the regime significantly more straightforward 
and comprehensible whilst also making it 
more rigorous and effective. At Appendix B 
we have included an outline map of the new 
framework based on our recommendations. It 
is significantly simpler. This greater simplicity 
is because of the following key changes:

• the same regulatory body (the JCA) oversees
building safety across the building life cycle;

• the same legislative framework applies
across the building life cycle;

• the existing overlaps between different
legislation and different regulators (in
particular the Housing Act 2004 and the Fire
Safety Order 2005) have been removed;

• there are no longer two parallel, but confusingly
different, building control bodies providing
oversight during design and construction;

• there are a new set of specific JCA interventions
across the building life cycle (gateway
points and safety case review); and

• self-certification processes (whereby aspects
of building work can be signed off by the
individuals doing the work without broader
regulatory oversight) have been removed.

The report acknowledges there are some 
areas where complexity remains, especially 
around oversight of construction products. 
The review sets a clear direction towards 
eventual greater simplification although 
there remains much more to do. 

Conclusion

Whilst the recommendations in each chapter 
are crucial, in isolation they will fail to achieve 
the systemic change sought. The framework 
operates as a mutually reinforcing package and 
requires the implementation of its interdependent 
components in order for this to be achieved. 

Implementing the package proposed in this 
report may take some time. Whilst some of 
the recommendations can be delivered in 
the short term, some will require primary 
legislation and in the meantime industry must 
start ‘living’ the cultural shift that is required 
– the most important element of achieving
that will be leadership from within industry. 

It is therefore important that government 
develops a joined-up implementation plan 
to provide a coherent approach to delivering 
the recommendations in this report.

The next chapter sets out some of the key 
parameters that underpin the new regulatory 
framework. The subsequent chapters 
set out in detail the recommendations 
covering each key element of change. 
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Engagement 

Milestones

2017
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Driving Factors

Achievement

Communication

Embedding 

Improvement

Growth
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achieving

1360 attendees

participating in 137
events Borough wide

Offering over 149
opportunities to 
influence 112



Our QAA and SQAA volunteers 

have grown to 95
members

17% above

target

We spent 40k supporting
local community groups 
and charities 

Directly improving CBH 
tenants lifestyles and 
communities
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communicating

Key Workshops and Task and Finish events this year included

Housing Futures
Your Views, Our Future
ASB Policy
CBH Strategic Plan
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Good Neighbour and Garden of the 
Year Awards 2017

‘I am completely 
spellbound with the whole 
event, thank you CBH’

‘I feel very proud to have 
been nominated and the 
choice of venue is brilliant, 
cosy, friendly and welcoming’ 

‘Brilliant night! Had a great 
time, the food was fantastic! 
Can’t believe I won something 
– thank you so much’

‘Had a lovely evening and 
met some lovely people’

115



embedding

‘Little by little, a 
little becomes a 
lot’
Tanzanian proverb
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Working together to get it right –
Service Improvement and 
Customer Satisfaction

Mary Gober
What matters most? –
Customer Insight

Making 
Engagement 
mean more117



improving

Tenant training -real skills, real 
change

Committed to supporting thriving 
communities

Accessible and inclusive
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74% of Community Fund  applications 
were from external bodies, 
demonstrating CBH’s improved reach 
within the community

12 tenants were helped 
back on the road to 
employment  through     
Reed Work Routes

66 tenants 
received 
independent 
debt advice and 
training
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growing

So what's next?
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REPORT TO COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES BOARD 

DATE: 24 April 2018 

TIME: 5.30pm 

VENUE: Room 1, Rowan House 

AGENDA ITEM: 10 

SUBJECT: Business Opportunities Panel Terms of Reference 

REPORT BY: Owen Howell 
 (01206) 282518  
  owen.howell@cbhomes.org.uk 

FOR DECISION 

1. Decision required

1.1 Board are asked to approve updated terms of reference for the Business 
Opportunities Panel. 

2. Purpose of report

2.1 This report details the need for the Business Opportunities Panel (BOP) to 
update its Terms of Reference in light of the creation of the CBH Strategic 
Plan, and particularly the Business Development Plan which forms one of its 
delivery plans. 

3. Background & Content

3.1 Point 3.3 of Item 3 from the Business Opportunity Panel’s 5 February meeting: 

‘The Business Development Plan 2018-22 sets out the high-level framework 
within which the company will seek to deliver that increased income.  It is 
anticipated that the [Business Opportunities] Panel will play a key role going 
forward in the governance and monitoring of delivery against the actions in this 
Plan.’ 

3.2 The Panel was therefore asked to consider how best to encapsulate, within its 
Terms of Reference, this development of its role. The draft Terms of Reference 
at Appendix 1 has had the addition of two new points at 3.2(b) and (c) as one 
possible approach to covering this: 

(a) to monitor performance indicators and delivery against actions within the 
Business Development Plan. 

(b) to monitor performance against any revenue targets which Board and the 
Directors Management Team might set. 
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3.3 The Panel recommended that these additions be made. 
  
3.4 A new paragraph at 3.1 is suggested as an overall summary of the Panel’s 

purpose: 
 
3.1 The Business Opportunities Panel was established to assist the 

Company to undertake trading activities so as to generate funds to be 
used in support of core services. The Panel has an important role in 
maximising the success of the Company’s commercial activities and 
reducing the risk of trading activities undermining the core work of the 
Company. 

  
3.5 A new 8.3 is recommended by the Panel to state that: 

 
8.3      The Panel shall make whatever recommendations to the Board it 

deems appropriate on any area within its remit where action or 
improvement is deemed necessary. 

  
 Amendments made to reflect Board comments on 24 April 
3.6 Following direction from the Board at its meeting on 24 April, further 

amendments were made to sections 1.1 and 1.2 to reflect the 2017 changes to 
the Memorandum & Articles of Association which allow for the creation of 
Executive Board Members, and which led to the Chief Executive (a member of 
the Panel) being appointed to the Board. The changes to 1.1 and 1.2 remove 
the ambiguity as to whether the Chief Executive sits on the Panel as a member 
appointed by the Board, or as a member of the executive, appointed by 
himself. They also keep the possibility of additional members of the executive 
being appointed to the Panel, should the Chair of the Board deem this 
beneficial. 

  
4. Business Opportunities Panel Terms of Reference 
 
4.1 

 
The amended Business Opportunities Panel Terms of Reference are included 
with this report as Appendix 1. Board is invited to examine these, evaluate the 
recommended additions and to discuss any suggestions for further 
amendments and additions. 

   
5. Risk Management 
  
5.1 The Panel has a duty to evaluate the risks relating to all new trading 

opportunities that it examines. It also has a duty to be mindful of the 
Company’s Strategic Risk Register (and Emerging Risk Register) and the 
potential effects to these which may be caused by trading decisions. 

  
6. HR Implications 
  
6.1 None 
  
7. Legal Implications 
  
7.1 None 
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8. Financial Implications

8.1 The continuing financial viability of CBH will be affected by decisions regarding 
trading, and the monitoring and oversight of trading activity. The Panel is likely 
to play an important role in this and so the setting of appropriate Terms of 
Reference will help to ensure that positive financial implications are maximised 
and negative implications mitigated or avoided. 

9. Value for Money

9.1 Ensuring effective oversight of new business opportunities will allow us to 
achieve and provide value for money, both for ourselves and for clients 
(whether CBC, tenants or outside clients). 

10. Health & Safety Implications

10.1 None 

11. Equality & Diversity Implications

11.1 None 

12. 

12.1 

13. 

13.1 

14. 

Residents at the Heart 

It is vital that any expansion in trading does not damage the service we provide 
to our tenants. By specifically detailing the BOP’s role in advising on risks, this 
will help identify any potential impact that trading could have on our core 
services. 

Decision Required? 

Yes. Approval of the updated Business Opportunities Panel Terms of 
Reference. 

Appendices 

14.1 The following documents are appended to this report: 

 Appendix 1 – Business Opportunities Terms of Reference
 Appendix 2 – CBH Trading Protocol
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ITEM 10 APPENDIX 1 

Approved by Board in April 2018on 7 December 2016 

Business Opportunities Panel 
Terms of Reference 

1. Membership

1.1 The Panel shall consist of at least three members of the Board of Colchester 
Borough Homes (‘the Board’), who will be appointed by the Board., and at least one 
member of the executive management team, who will be appointed by the Chief 
Executive. 

1.2 Additional members of the panel Panel may be added as required, which may 
include executive members from CBH or individuals from outside of the 
organisation.  Agreement for additional members is to be sought from the Chair of 
the Board.  Fees may be paid to external members, as agreed by the Board, from 
time to time. 

1.3 Membership of the Panel will ensure that Executive and appointed Board Members 
will always be in the majority on the panel. 

1.4 Panel members will abide by the Board Member Code of Conduct and Staff Code of 
Conduct as appropriate. 

2. Chair

2.1 The Chair of the Panel shall be appointed by the Board, and also be a member of 
the Board, and will have the relevant skills required.  

2.2 A Vice Chair (also a member of the Board) is to be appointed by members of the 
Panel. 

3. Statement of Purpose

3.1 The Business Opportunities Panel was established to assist the Company to 
undertake trading activities so as to generate funds to be used in support of core 
services. The Panel has an important role in maximising the success of the 
Company’s commercial activities and reducing the risk of trading activities 
undermining the core work of the Company. 

3.13.2 The purpose of the Panel is: 

(a) to seek and promote new trading opportunities. 
(b) to monitor performance indicators and delivery against actions within the 

Business Development Plan. 
(a)(c) to monitor performance against any revenue targets which Board and the 

Directors Management Team might set. 
(b)(d) to provide advice and recommendations to the Board with regard to the 

opportunities for new business. 
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Approved by Board in April 2018on 7 December 2016 

(c)(e) to initiate projects to research and evaluate opportunities. 
(d)(f) to authorise new business opportunities where permitted with regard to the 

Trading Protocol between Colchester Borough Council and Colchester 
Borough Homes (CBH). 

(e)(g) to authorise trading for contracts individually worth up to £150k per year, as 
in line with the Trading Protocol. 

4. Responsibilities of the Panel

4.1 Research and Evaluation 

(a) Consider research into the market place, evaluate the resources required and 
assess the viability of new business initiatives. 

(b) Evaluate opportunities in accordance with the Colchester Borough Homes 
Trading Strategy evaluation matrix where appropriate. 

4.2 Risk Assessment 

(a) Consider the general, operational, reputational and financial risks of each 
opportunity. 

(b) Compile a risk assessment and report on the risk judgement for each 
opportunity. 

4.3 Progress of Trading Initiatives 

(a) The Panel will consider the progress of business initiatives to inform decision 
making on future opportunities.  (It is noted that operational and financial 
reporting will be monitored by the Finance & Audit Committee). 

4.4 Advisory Role 

(a) To make recommendations, as deemed appropriate, to Board regarding both 
the opportunities for new business, as well as potential risks and mitigations of 
these risks. 

(b) To advise Board Committees as to how their governance functions could be 
affected by expansions in trading activities. 

(c) To make recommendations to Board Committees if changes to a Committee’s 
Terms of Reference are identified as being necessary to allow effective 
oversight of new business projects and the effect they have on CBH. 

4.5 General Responsibilities 

(a) To maintain a work programme that is reviewed annually. 

5. Authority
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5.1 The Panel is established by the Board under Article 23(1) of the CBH Articles of 
Association. 

 
5.2 The Panel is authorised by the Board to investigate any activity within its terms of 

reference. It is authorised to seek any information it requires from any employee 
and all employees are directed to co-operate with any request made by the Panel. 

 
5.3 The Panel is authorised by the Board to obtain outside legal or other independent 

professional advice and to secure the attendance of those with relevant experience 
and expertise if it considers this necessary. 

 
5.4 The Panel will operate with regard to any Trading Protocol between Colchester 

Borough Council and CBH as appropriate. The Panel is authorised by the Board to 
initiate any project plans for new initiatives. The Trading Protocol will determine 
what business opportunities the Panel is able to authorise and which should be 
escalated to the Board for approval. The Panel is therefore currently permitted to 
authorise trading for contracts individually valued at up to £150k per year.     

 
6. Meetings 
 
6.1 The Panel shall meet at least quarterly, or as deemed necessary by the Chair.  
 
6.2 The Board Assurance Officer shall ensure that all meetings are minuted and the 

minutes circulated to all Panel members within ten working days of the meeting. 
 
7. Quorum 
 
7.1 The quorum for meetings shall be two members, including the Chair or Vice Chair. 

 
7.2 In the event of a Committee/Panel member being unable to attend a meeting, they 

must notify the Chair of the Committee or Panel as soon as possible. If this absence 
will endanger the ability of the Committee/Panel to achieve a quorum, the Chair will 
then ask the Board Assurance Officer to inform Board Members that a Member is 
being sought for co-option to the Committee for that meeting and to request that 
volunteers express their interest. Where more than one Board Member volunteers, 
the Chair of the meeting shall then select which Board Member to co-opt. 

 

8. Monitoring 
 
8.1 The minutes of each Panel meeting will be reported to the Board at the next 

available meeting. 
 
8.2 The Chair of the Panel shall, at his or her discretion, report any other urgent and/or 

relevant matters to the Chair and/or Board. 
 

8.3 The Panel shall make whatever recommendations to the Board it deems 
appropriate on any area within its remit where action or improvement is 
deemed necessary. 

8.2  
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8.4 The Chair of the Panel will present an annual report on the Panel’s activity to the 
Finance & Audit Committee. 
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REPORT TO COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES BOARD 

DATE: 20 June 2018 

TIME: 5.30pm 

VENUE: Room 1, Rowan House 

AGENDA ITEM: 11 

SUBJECT: Staff Code of Conduct 

REPORT BY: Angelique Ryan, Head of HR and Governance 
 (01206) 282374 
  angelique.ryan@cbhomes.org.uk 

For Decision 

1. Decision Required

1.1 For the Board to formally approve the revised Staff Code of Conduct. 

2. Background

2.1 

2.2 

2.3 

The Code of Conduct applies to all employees and outlines what CBH 
expects of employees in their personal conduct.  It sets out minimum 
standards of conduct which are added to in the disciplinary rules and other 
procedures. 

The Code is outlined within the Employee Handbook with a link provided to 
the full Code of Conduct. All new starters are required to familiarise 
themselves with the document. 

The Code of Conduct was last reviewed in 2014. 

3. Amendments to the Staff Code of Conduct

3.1 

3.2  

3.3 

The Code of Conduct was reviewed to ensure that it is fit for purpose, written 
in plain English and reflects best practice. 

Views were sought from Senior Management and Unison when drawing up 
the revised document. Informal soundings were also taken from Julie Parker 
in advance of it coming to the Board for approval. All of the recommended 
changes to the Code of Conduct can be viewed as tracked changes. 

The main changes are as follows; 
 Section 3: Expansion to the ‘disclosure of information’ section, making

reference to data protection and the sharing of personal information.

 Section 4: Expansion of the ‘organisational behaviours’ section to include
full details of these.
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3.4 

 Section 6: A new section has been added to the Code of Conduct making
reference to ‘maintaining professional boundaries’. The addition of this
section is to inform employees that they should disclose personal
relationships with colleagues, customers or Board Members to their
Manager or HR. The aim of this is to safeguard the organisation, our
customers, staff and Board Members against any possible abuse of
position.

 Section 10: In order to avoid any potential conflict of interest employees
are now being asked to declare if they are a CBH tenant or leaseholder, or
a tenant of stock managed by CBH.

 Section 16: A new section on ‘social media’ has been added signposting
employees to the social media policy.

Other changes have been made throughout the document to improve the 
clarity and language used within the Code of Conduct and can be viewed as 
tracked changes. 

4. Financial Implications

4.1 There are no direct financial implications to the revised Code of Conduct. The 
Code aims to safeguard the organisation and staff against any abuse of 
financial resources, or corruption. 

5. HR Implications

5.1 There are no direct HR implications to the revised Code of Conduct other than 
to make employees more aware of the standards of conduct expected from 
them. 

6. Legal Implications

6.1 The Staff Code of Conduct forms part of all employees’ terms and conditions 
of employment. 

7. Health & Safety Implications

7.1 There are no direct Health and Safety implications to the revised Policy. 

8. Equality & Diversity Implications

8.1 The Code of Conduct applies to all staff equally and does not disadvantage 
any particular employee group.  

9. Residents at the Heart

9.1 The Policy aims to safeguard all residents from any abuse of power or 
position by a member of staff.  

10. Appendices

10.1 Appendix 1: Draft CBH Staff Code of Conduct 
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Staff Code of Conduct 
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 Head of HR and Governance 

Version 32 

November 2014AprilJune 2018 
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1. Introduction & purpose

1.1 This Code of Conduct applies to all Colchester Borough Homes (CBH) 
employees and tells you what CBH expects of you in your personal 
conduct.  It sets out minimum standards of conduct which are added to 
in CBH’s general disciplinary rules and other procedures. 

1.2 The purpose of the Code is to give you guidance about the standards 
of conduct expected of you.  At CBH we provide a public service and 
the public expects very high standards of personal conduct.  You must 
ensure that your personal conduct both inside and outside work 
maintains public confidence in your integrity and the services provided 
by CBH. 

1.3 The Code has been written to guide and encourage you to discuss 
matters with your manager.  This way you can get advice and ensure 
that you meet the standards.  CBH wants to avoid situations where 
there could be any suggestion of your conduct falling below the 
expected standards. You should be aware that your actions or 
comments, even outside of working hours, may have an impact on 
CBH’s reputation and compromise your position. 

1.4 CBH is responsible for telling you about the standards, but you are 
responsible for familiarising yourself with them.  If you are not clear 
how the code of conduct applies to you, talk to your manager or 
Human Resources and ask for advice. 

2.  Standards 

2.1 CBH strives to conduct all its activities efficiently, to the highest ethical 
standards and in compliance with its legal obligations. CBH can only 
realise this ambition through its employees and it is therefore essential 
that all employees conduct themselves according to the highest 
standards of behaviour, in the most professional manner and with a 
commitment to perform their work to the best of their ability. 

2.2     The public expects local government employees to have high standards 
off personal conduct. Even in your own time and you must ensure that 
this confidence in you is maintained.  What you do in your own time is 
your own concern but you should not put your own private interests 
before your job and you should avoid situations where your own private 
interests and those of your job might be in conflict. 

2.32 When you give advice on behalf of CBH, whether to a Board Member 
another employee, the public or external organisation you must ensure 
that your advice is impartial. 
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2.43 You must tell your senior manager if you are concerned that CBH or 
any of its employees have not followed CBH rules and regulations, 
there is a failure in service provision or if you suspect that there is has 
been a matter of misconduct as soon as you become aware of it. 

2.54 Similarly, if you are ever arrested and refused bail or convicted by a 
court of a criminal offence you must tell your senior manager as soon 
as possible. 

2. 3. Disclosure of information 

3. 1 You must not use any information you learn during your job for
personal gain.  or benefit and you should not pass on information to
others without approval from CBH or your Senior Manager. CBH
provides training, on and has guidelines on access to information and
data protection which you should also read.should be adhered to at all
times. Breaches of data protection will be treated very seriously and
may lead to disciplinary action. If you are unsure of what information
you can or can’t access or share then please seek advice from the
Board Assurance Officer or Data Protection Officer. 

3.2    Employees should not share their personal information e.g. address, 
telephone numbers, email address, social media accounts etc, with any 
customer in order to undertake their work duties.  Equally, employees 
should not request such information about a customer, other than what 
is necessary for an official task when working on behalf of CBH. If 
personal information is sent unsolicited and unnecessarily this should 
not be retained. 

3.4. Organisational Behaviours 

4.1 16.1  Employees of CBH are expected to adhere to demonstrate the 
oOrganisation’s behaviours at all times. Further details can be seen in 
the Organisational Behaviours document.The Organisational 
behaviours are central to the culture of CBH and any employee or 
manager who is not demonstrating these behaviours should expect to 
be challenged on this. Where behaviour continues to breach these then 
performance capability or disciplinary action may be necessary. The 
behaviours are outlined below; 

Respect 

Treating everyone as they would wish to be treated, so they feel valued and 
their needs respected in the most appropriate way. Diversity is an asset to the 
team and the organisation. 
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Consistency 

A consistent approach is taken when we make decisions or give advice within 
the boundaries of current legislation and guidance, ensuring equity. 

Ownership and Empowerment 

Taking responsibility for your work from start to finish. 

Management give staff at all levels the freedom to make decisions when 
appropriate and able to do so, supporting them through the process. 
Whenever possible, communication is with the most appropriate person to 
take forward the task. 

Honesty and Integrity 

Building trust within our organisation and the community in which we work, 
through honest and open communication. 

Organisational Loyalty 

Understanding that we are all ambassadors of CBH and it is our responsibility 
to act with professionalism at all times. 

Self- Development 

Taking the initiative to access learning and development opportunities and 
keeping up to date with new legislation, rules and processes to ensure we 
provide correct and appropriate information to our customers and colleagues. 

4.5. Political neutrality 

5.1. Employees should not allow their own political views to interfere with 
their work and should respect the rights and views of all Councillors. 
We all serve CBH as a whole.  You must serve all Board Members, not 
just those of the controlling group, and you must respect the individual 
rights of all Councillors. 

5.2. You must follow every lawfully expressed policy of CBH and you must 
not allow your own personal or political opinions to interfere with your 
work. 
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5.6. RelationshipsMaintaining Professional Boundaries 

65.1 Employees should be very aware of the potential risk of personal 
relationship formation with customers, employees or Board members 
such as the reputational risk to the company for example from 
accusations of favouritism, fraud or abuse. 

6.2 In situations where a personal relationship with an employee, Board 
member or customer exists or develops which could have a detrimental 
impact on the business or leave the employee vulnerable to 
accusations then the employee must disclose this fact to their line 
manager.  If you are unsure whether this applies then it would be best 
to check this with HR or your line manager.  

6.3   You should not involve yourself in any employment matter (for example 
the recruitment process, employment relations issue) where there 
could be any suggestion that you have acted improperly either because 
you are related to the person concerned or have a personal 
relationship with them inside or outside work. 

6.4    Employees are in a powerful position in relation to customers and 
should be careful not to abuse this position, treating all customers 
equally. Any abuse of this power will be dealt with as a disciplinary 
issue. 

6.5     There should never be any physical contact between employees and 
customers during the course of your work, unless it is part of your role 
or in an emergency situation such as when you are providing first aid.  

6.6 Money should never be exchanged during the course of your work. 

6.7    All Employees should make themselves aware of CBH’s Safeguarding 
Policy and their duties under this towards vulnerable adults and 
children. All employees should follow best practice, participating in 
safeguarding training and reporting any disclosure, concern, incident or 
allegation to the appropriate Designated Officer 

 Good working relationships between employees and between 
employees and The Board are essential to the success of the CBH. 
You must ensure that you treat all employees and The Board equally 
and with proper courtesy and respect.  You must also ensure that you 
do not become personally familiar with Board Members (beyond that 
expected in the proper conduct of your duties) which can damage 
relationships and be embarrassing to other employees and other Board 
Members. 
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5.3 You must remember CBH provides a service to the whole community 
and you must ensure that you provide a polite, efficient and impartial service 
to all groups and individuals in the community. 

5.4 
If you are involved in any employment matter concerning another employee 
you must always ensure you treat all employees equally. 

You should not involve yourself in any employment matter where there 
could be any suggestion that you have acted improperly either because 
you are related to the person concerned or have a personal 
relationship with them inside or outside work. 

6.7. Interests in tenders and contracts 

7.1 If you are involved in tenders and contract matters you must ensure 
that you act with impartiality and do not show any special favour to any 
particular contractor, group or individual.  If you have any relationship 
(beyond that expected in the proper conduct of your duties) with any 
potential contractor you must tell your senior manager as soon as 
possible so that a decision can be taken regarding your involvement in 
that contract or tender. 

7.2 You must comply with CBH standing orders and financial regulations 
on contracts and tenders and you must make yourself familiar with 
these. 

7.8. Other paid and voluntary work 

8.1 You must ask your senior manager for permission to do any other paid 
work, completing a secondary employment form.  This applies to any 
other work even if it is for another department in CBH.  You should also 
talk to your manager about any voluntary work you do.  The reason for 
this is to discuss any potential areas of conflict which may arise. This 
will also allow CBH to ensure, wherever possible, that legislative 
matters, e.g. Working Time Directive are considered. 

8.9. Designs & inventions 

9.1 If you invent or design something during the course of your work it 
belongs to CBH.  You must tell your senior manager about your 
invention or design immediately and you must not discuss it with 
anyone else until CBH gives you permission. 
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10. Personal Interests

9. If you think you have a personal interest in any contract being
considered by CBH then you must discuss this with your senior 
manager immediately. 

10.1    In order to avoid any potential conflict of interest you must declare if 
you are a CBH tenant or leaseholder, or a tenant of stock managed by 
CBH. You can do this by completing the declarations of interest form 
on the intranet.  

10.2 You must declare any financial or related interest you have in a 
contract or proposed contract which is under consideration by CBH.  
You must also declare an interest if you have shareholdings  which are 
more than £5,000 or 1/100th of the total nominal value of the issued 
shared capital of a company with which you are involved during the 
course of your job with CBH. 

10.32 You are also encouraged to declare voluntarily to your senior manager 
any associations and groups to which you belong so that any potential 
areas of conflict can be discussed or avoided. 

10.4   CBH does not wish to be unduly restrictive or to intrude into your private 
affairs and understands that many of its staff may live in Colchester 
and already have friends or acquaintances who are CBH residents or 
customers. 

10.11. Equality Issues 

11.1  CBH expects standards of behaviour amongst its employees which 
recognise and respect the dignity of individuals at work and, that it 
regards any form of victimisation, intimidation, bullying and harassment 
as unacceptable behaviour. In all aspects of your job you must comply 
with CBH’s equal opportunities and fairness policies and guidelines on 
harassment. 

11.12. Corruption 

12.1  As an employee of CBH you must not corruptly receive or give any 
loan, fee, reward or advantage for doing, or not doing anything or show 
favour or disfavour to any person.  To do so is a criminal offence. 
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12.13. Use of financial resources 

13.1  You must ensure that you use any public funds that you are 
responsible for in accordance with CBH’s financial regulations and 
procedures. 

13.14. Hospitality 

14.1  You must read the guidelines on hospitality and gifts and ensure that 
you complete a hospitality and gifts form for any gifts that you accept or 
provide. 

14.15. Sponsorship 

145.1  Any sponsorship offered to or by CBH must be approved by a senior 
manager. You must declare any interest you may have in the proposed 
sponsorship. 

16. Social Media

17.1 You must read the guidelines within the Social Media Policy, ensuring 
that any information posted by you online does not bring either CBH or your 
position into disrepute.  

15.17. Consultation 

 DMT- November 2017- January 2018

 Unison – November 2017- January 2018

16.18. References 

Working Time Directive 

17.19. Related documents 

Disciplinary policy & procedure 
Social Media Policy 
Safeguarding Policy 
Hospitality & Gifts pPolicy 
Anti-fraud & corruption pPolicy 
Standing fFinancial iInstructions & contract procedures 
Information & cConfidentiality policy 
Equality & Diversity Strategy 
Organisational behaviours 
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REPORT TO COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES BOARD 

DATE: 20 June 2018 

TIME: 5.30 pm 

VENUE: Room 1, Rowan House 

AGENDA ITEM: 12 

SUBJECT: Repairs & Rechargeable Repairs Policy Report 

REPORT BY: Mark Wright, Director of Property Services 
 (01206) 282760  
  mark.wright@cbhomes.org.uk 

 DECISION 

1. Decision Required

1.1 That the draft Repairs and Rechargeable Repairs Policy (V2.0, April 2018) 
shown as Appendix 1, together with its appendices, be accepted and that 
officers submit this to Colchester Borough Council (CBC) for consideration 
and approval. 

1.2 That consultation with residents regarding the supporting Tenants’ Repairs 
Handbook (Including an on-line offering) should commence. 

1.3 That the Board should receive the final proposal for the Repairs and 
Rechargeable Repairs Policy from CBC, together with a final draft of the 
Tenants’ Handbook for adoption.   

2. Purpose of Report

2.1 The purpose of this report is to present to Board a revised Repairs Policy 
(incorporating the Rechargeable Repairs Policy) to reflect the outcomes of the 
Housing Futures project and the subsequent revised Asset Management 
Strategy (AMS) and supporting CBC Policies. 

2.2 As the Repairs Policy is a Landlord (CBC) document under the terms of the 
Management Agreement, the Board are asked to approve the policy as a draft 
for consideration and approval by CBC. Once approved by CBC, a final 
version will be presented to the Board for final adoption. 

3. Background & Content

3.1 As a result of the Housing Futures project, a revised investment plan and a 
revised Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Business Plan were developed 
together with the subsequent revised Asset Management Strategy and a 
number of supporting policies, which were approved by CBC and the Board 
earlier this year.  
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3.2 As a consequence the Repairs and Rechargeable Repairs Policies have been 

reviewed and amended as necessary to reflect the provisions of the AMS and 
supporting policies. 

  
3.3 Due to the number of changes between this and the previous policies this 

should be considered as a redrafting rather than an amended policy. As such, 
officers have incorporated detail in the policy, particularly around tenants’ 
rights to improve and the Right to Repair legislation. 

  
3.4 The opportunity has also been taken to formalise service standards to support 

the objectives of the Strategic Customer Plan approved by Board. 
  
4. Risk Management 
  
4.1 The repairs service is rated by residents as one of the most important 

services that presents one of the highest reputational risks to the Company. 
The repairs service also addresses Health and Safety risks and key Landlord 
liabilities defined in legislation. 

  
4.2 As such a robust Repairs Policy setting out how the landlord intends to 

discharge its duties is considered to be a cornerstone of the CBC/CBH risk 
management strategy. 

  
5. HR Implications 
  
5.1 None 
  
6. Legal Implications 
  
6.1 The Repairs and Rechargeable Repairs Policies address matters covered by 

legislation and it is considered essential that CBC should have a suitable and 
sufficient Repairs Policy in place.  

  
7. Financial Implications 
  
7.1 The Repairs and Rechargeable Repairs Policy has been drafted to reflect the 

Investment Programme and planned revenue budgets for the next planning 
period (5 Years). 

  
8. Value for Money 
  
8.1 None 
  
9. Health & Safety Implications 
  
9.1 The Repairs and Rechargeable Repairs Policy addresses matters of 

compliance with health and safety legislation and it is considered essential 
that CBC should have a suitable and sufficient Repairs Policy in place. 
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10. Equality & Diversity Implications 
  
10.1 None arising from the adoption of the Repairs and Rechargeable Repairs 

Policy, however members are asked to note the references to service 
modification to meet individual needs set out in the draft policy.  

  
11. Residents at the Heart 
  
11.1 The draft policy as presented has been developed as a direct result of 

consultation undertaken through the Housing Futures project, The revision of 
the Asset Management Strategy and the consultation undertaken in respect of 
the supporting policies. 

  
11.2 The Board are asked to direct officers to undertake resident consultation in 

the development of a revised Tenants Handbook and then the officers to 
present this back to the Board for approval. 

  
12. Decision Required? 
  
12.1 Yes 
  
13. Appendix 
  
13.1 The following document is appended to this report: 

 Appendix 1 – Repairs & Rechargeable Repairs Policy 
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1.0 INTRODUCTION 
As a social landlord, Colchester Borough Council/Homes (CBC) recognises that  meeting 
residents’ expectations of a high standard of service delivery is essential. CBC and its 
appointed housing management organisation Colchester Borough Homes (CBH) 
acknowledge that the provision of a value for money repairs service that is both 
responsive and of the highest technical competence is one of its core priorities. CBC/CBH 
has prepared this policy after consultation a n d  as a result of a fundamental review of the 
Council’s Housing Asset Management Strategy. This policy should be considered in 
conjunction with the corresponding CBC/CBH Repairs and Maintenance procedures, the 
Repairs Guide and other policies referred to within this document. 

 
1.1 Definitions 
For the purpose of this policy, the following definitions apply: 
Repair - The process of rectifying a component or installation in a Colchester Borough 
Council/  Homes owned and/or managed property for which it is responsible, when it is 
faulty or in a state of disrepair.  
Maintenance - The upkeep of components or installations in a Colchester Borough 
Council/Homes owned and/or managed property, for which it is responsible. 
Resident - A tenant of a Colchester Borough Council property, including intermediate rent 
customers. This policy includes some services and obligations to leaseholders and shared 
owners. Where applicable, it is clearly stipulated. This policy does not apply to private 
market rent customers. 

 
2.0 AIMS & OBJECTIVES 
Aims 

 To effectively manage the repairs and maintenance obligations of CBC/CBH, for its 
residents 

 To comply with all relevant government legislative requirements 
 To ensure that all residents live in a safe and habitable environment at all times 

 
Objectives 

 To run an effective and reliable responsive repairs service 
 To continuously improve performance 
 To give the highest levels of residents satisfaction 
 To provide a service that gives value for money 
 To engage openly and responsively with residents about repairs to their home 
 To provide technical expertise via CBC/CBHs internal staff and contractors 
 To maintain up-to-date information about CBC residents, homes and CBH 

 
3.0 POLICY STATEMENT 
CBC/CBH is committed to providing a high quality service and all staff and suppliers are 
trained to work towards this aim. This policy recognises that a successful Repairs and 
Maintenance Service considers its residents, its resources, its statutory obligations and 
external affecting factors. As a landlord, CBC have a responsibility to protect the value of 
its housing stock and to ensure that the service standards and obligations made to its 
residents, in respect of their homes, are honoured. CBC/CBH expect to work together with 
residents to ensure the high quality of its homes, through the meeting of mutual 
responsibilities. 

 
4.0 LEGISLATION AND REGULATION 

 Landlord & Tenant Act 1985 
 Housing Act 2004 
 Secure Tenants of Local Housing Authorities (Right to Repair) Regulations 1994 
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 Defective Premises Act 1972
 Commonhold & Leasehold Reform Act 2002
 Gas Safety (Installation and Use) Regulations 1998
 Management of Health and Safety at Work Regulations 1999
 Building Regulations Act 1984
 Health and Safety at Work Act 1974, Sections 2, 3 and 4
 Housing Health and Safety Rating System 2006
 Equality Act 2010
 HCA – The Regulatory Framework for Social Housing in England from April 2012
 2006 Decent Homes Standard

5.0 STANDARDS 
5.1  Service Standards 

 Provide a 24hr, 7 day a week service to report emergency repairs
 To attend and complete repairs works to published timescales
 Offer a choice of appointment times
 Carry out a gas safety check where required each year
 Aim to inspect at least 5% of all repairs and any repair subject to a complaint
 Aim to inspect 5% of communal repairs.

5.2 Responsibilities 

Tenant responsibilities 
Tenants are responsible for all internal decoration and a range of minor repairs together with 
any damage caused by themselves or their visitors as set out in the Repairs guide 

Vulnerable tenants 
CBC/ CBH recognises that management discretion is required in the operations of its Policies. 
If a Tenant is deemed vulnerable, service variations may be authorised. This will only be given 
if the reported fault has a negative effect on the reported condition. We may also offer extra 
assistance, such as accompanied visits or arranging an interpreter, or other special 
arrangements that will meet identified needs and be appropriate for the repair. 

Some examples of vulnerable tenants include: 

 Disabled people who use a wheelchair or walking frame
 Tenants with an advanced terminal illness
 Tenants who use medical equipment such as ventilators or kidney dialysis machines
 Tenants with mental health problems or learning difficulties
 Tenants whose first language is not English.
 Tenants who are aged 70 plus and not in sheltered accommodation

Accidental damage 
Any accidental damage caused by repair work carried out in a Tenants home may be covered 
by the Tenants home insurance policy. If damage was caused by our staff being negligent, 
Tenants can apply for compensation to recover their losses by submitting a claim to our Risk 
Management Section. 

Right-to-buy 
If a Tenant applies to buy their property repair rights reduce accordingly. They will still have a 
right to limited repairs until the purchase is completed, or the application withdrawn. Repairs 
will be restricted to those ensuring that the structure and exterior of the property are safe and 
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secure as well as all installations for the supply of water, gas, electricity and sanitation. 
 
 
6.0 HEATING AND HOT WATER: PROVISION & SERVICING 
CBC/CBH will ensure necessary arrangements are in place to provide: 

A reactive repairs service, which includes a 24 hour emergency response for some 
repairs, in line with our Repairs and Maintenance responsibilities 
 
The annual gas safety inspection programme for individual, communal and commercial 
gas boilers and appliances for which it is responsible 

 
CBC is committed to meeting its legislative requirements ensuring all of its homes with a 
gas supply have a valid Landlord Gas Safety Record (LGSR). CBH will ensure that the Council 
discharges their duties and will service all gas appliances and boilers for all of its (The 
Council’s) homes within 12 months of the previous service date. CBC/CBH will seek to ensure 
that annual safety checks and servicing is undertaken in domestic and commercial 
properties in accordance with their tenancy agreement or lease, and prior to a new tenancy. 
Failure to allow access for servicing will result in CBC/CBH following formal procedures to 
gain access. However, CBC/CBH are not responsible for the gas safety and servicing for 
leaseholder and shared owner properties, it will work to assist and enable owners to comply 
with their obligations, where possible. 

 
 Failing Safety Checks 
CBC/CBH will upgrade boilers and remove any gas fires that fail their annual inspection. Any 
faulty gas appliance owned by the resident that is discovered to be connected to the 
system will have a ‘defective appliance’ label attached and will be disconnected. It is the 
resident’s responsibility to maintain, or remove, their own defective appliances, once advised. 

 
 Communal Systems 
Where CBC/CBH has the responsibility of the maintenance or servicing of a communal   
system, it will always make sure it does so in line with published repairs and maintenance 
service standards. Where third parties such as managing agents have an interest, own or 
control the systems, CBC/CBH will endeavour to communicate and work closely with them to 
ensure the service received by residents is satisfactory. 

 
 

7.0 AIDS & ADAPTATIONS 
CBC/CBH commits to facilitating and supporting independent living, by carrying out alterations 
to meet the special needs of individuals, to enhance their quality of life and where appropriate 
enable them to remain in their current home. 

 
CBC assists eligible residents to secure aids and adaptations to their homes, by directly funding 
aids and adaptations work in its own housing stock, and undertaking the work where possible.  

 
Aids are additional equipment installed to assist the usability of and mobility around a 
resident’s home. An adaptation is an alteration to an existing installation in a resident’s home 
that assists the usability of and mobility around a resident’s home. 

 
 

CBH will service and maintain all adaptations and maintain all aids, where supplied by the   
Council. CBH will also replace these at the end of their economic life, provided they are still 
demonstrably required. 
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Please see the CBC/CBH Aids and Adaptations Policy for more information on how the 
service is provided. 

 
8.0 PLANNED AND PROGRAMMED MAINTENANCE 
Planned maintenance is work carried out on a planned basis to maintain the general condition 
of property and fittings. This includes cyclical maintenance of the exterior of the building, 
communal areas, of Decent Homes key building components and the periodic servicing of 
certain equipment and installation. All planned maintenance work will be carried out in 
accordance with regulatory standards, relevant legislation, manufacturer’s instructions or 
good trade practice. Full details of this service will be outlined in the CBC/CBH Asset 
Management Strategy. 

 
Improvements 
CBC have a responsibility to repair and maintain and therefore are not obliged to carry out 
any improvements to their properties, outside of those which are part of planned programmes 
of work. This includes requests for secondary glazing or sound insulation. Any 
improvements that CBC/CBH make to individual properties outside of planned works will be 
done so on an individual case basis. Should residents wish to make improvements to their 
home at their own cost and management, they must do so in line with the process outlined 
in the Tenants Right to Improve clauses below(14.0) or in line with their lease or tenancy 
agreement. 

 
 

EMPTY PROPERTIES 
 

The Council maintains and lets properties to certain minimum standards of condition, the 
lettings standard is shown in full in the CBC/CBH Asset Management Strategy 

 
9.0 RESPONSIVE DAY TO DAY REPAIRS 
For responsive repairs, our aim is to arrange an appointment during first contact with the 
resident and complete the repair in one visit. During normal working hours (8:00am to 5:00pm) 
CBC/CBH operate a Customer Contact Centre, through which all repair requests must be 
made. We will aim to ensure that all urgent and routine repairs (with the exception of specialist 
work requiring contact with a third party) will be made by appointment with the resident. 
Residents may report repairs by any of the following means: 

 By telephone on  
 Via the CBC/CBH website 
 In person at a local CBC/CBH office 
 In writing 

 
Out of Hours Emergency Repairs 
Provisions for emergency repairs outside of normal working hours can be accessed by the 
standard responsive repairs telephone number. Calls will be redirected automatically through 
to CBC/CBH’s out of hours service at 5:00pm. Only those repairs categorised as emergencies 
are dealt with out of office hours. If the reported repair is deemed not to be an emergency, 
then the resident will be asked to call back during working hours to make an appointment. 

 
9.1 Appointment Times 
CBC/CBH offer weekday appointments for the completion of repairs and pre and post 
inspections. The following options will be given: 

Morning - 8am to 1pm 
Afternoon - 12pm to 4pm 
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TYPES OF REPAIRS 
 

9.2 Priority Categories 
Timescales for the commencement and completion of works will be arranged within 
CBC/CBH’s approved priority categories listed below. Extra consideration will be given to 
those residents who are vulnerable, (see page 4). 

 
Emergency Repairs – Attend within 4 hours (2 hours for heating and hot water breakdowns) and 
make safe and complete within 24 hours, if possible. Any follow up work to be raised as a 
new job and placed within its appropriate category. 
Urgent Repairs - Attend within 3 working days, complete within 5 working days. Routine 
Repairs - Attend within 5 working days, complete within 20 working days. 

 
Resident requests for appointments beyond these timescales will be accommodated with the 
exception of emergency repairs. 

 
9.3 Batched Repairs 
These will be completed within 4 months of issue to our partners, with the exception of those 
repairs which are larger, or more complex in nature, that can be scheduled as part of a 
programme of works. This will reduce administrative and overhead costs for both Colchester 
Borough Council/Homes and our contractors and adhere to economies of scale. These repairs 
include: 
Batch repairs: 
Path renewals 
Rebuilding of brick walls 
Fence and boundary maintenance 
Repairs works requiring consultation with Leaseholders under section 20 of the Landlord and 
tenant Act 1985 (as amended by the Leasehold Reform Act 2002) 

 
Examples of works to be scheduled as part of a programme: 
Roof replacement 
Window and door replacement  
Kitchen replacement 
Bathroom replacement 

 
9.4 Pre-Inspection 
Some jobs will require a pre-inspection before the repair appointment can be arranged, to 
establish the extent of the works. These will be where the scope of the job is not known, or 
if the diagnosis given by the resident is not detailed enough. Such inspections may be carried 
out by a surveyor, or a nominated contractor representative. Staff will always advise where 
this is to be the case. Repairs will then be issued in the appropriate timescales, or programmed 
into planned or batched works. 

 
9.5 No Access 
Where requested, residents must allow for access to repairs. Where access cannot be gained 
for a standard appointment, CBH will operate an Access procedure 
In accordance with the law, CBH shall implement an ‘Access Procedure’ for situations where 
we need to carry out urgent work in a property. If a Tenant refuses to comply with a reasonable 
request for access we will enter the property. 

 
In these cases, we will charge an administration fee to cover our expenses and the associated 
costs unless the Resident can evidence compelling reasons not to do so. Unaffordability does 
not constitute a reasonable defense. 
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9.6 When We Call 
Repairs will only be carried out where a responsible adult is present to allow us access. If no 
responsible adult is present, we will reschedule one further appointment. If there is no 
responsible adult to allow entry a second time, we will cancel the repair request, unless doing 
so would result in a health and safety risk. If a repair presents a health and safety risk, and 
there is no one at the property during the appointment, we may have no option but to force 
access to the property. This is detailed above  

Customer Standards for Repairs 

Residents CBC/CBH 
To use and inhabit CBC/CBH homes 
(internal and communal) and installations 
responsibly

To ensure that CBC/CBH approved operatives 
work in a clean and tidy manner 

To allow access for repair works which CBC/CBH To show ID when attending resident homes 
are responsible 
To maintain areas of the home for which they 
are responsible – in accordance with the 
conditions of the tenancy agreement or lease 

To only enter a resident’s home where a 
responsible adult is present, unless there is 
evidence of a clear risk to any person(s). 

To ensure that a responsible adult is present for To only carry out work that is stated on the work 
any repair appointment specification 
To clear repair work area of personal items or 
valuables prior to a scheduled appointment 

To inform residents of what work is to be carried 
out in their home prior to the work commencing 
(except in emergencies) 

To not obstruct or deny works to their home or To ensure that operatives work in a way that is 
the communal areas healthy and safe; protecting themselves and the 

environment in which they are working 
To be responsible for the repair or replacement To give advice and information on what work to 
of items in a property damaged due to neglect, their internal home has been done at the end of 
carelessness or deliberate action on the part of a scheduled visit and advise if further visits are 
the resident household or visitors. To pay any required 
charges for such repairs that are undertaken by 
CBC/CBH (see Chargeable Repairs 9.8)) 

9.7 Customer Satisfaction and Complaints  

We want to make sure that we deliver a high quality service every time a repair is reported. 
However, mistakes do happen and we are equally committed to resolving complaints and 
problems when we receive them. 

We will also conduct customer satisfaction surveys for all non-emergency repairs, the results 
of the surveys are used to monitor our performance and to review our service. 

Our Feedback Policy helps us listen to and respond to the views of people using our services. 
We provide all tenants with a copy of our complaints procedure at the start of their tenancy. 

9.8 Chargeable Repairs 

Where willful damage or neglect of the Council’s property by a tenant, their family, or a visitor, 
results in the Council having to replace or repair items, the tenant will be charged the full cost 
of the repair. This sum will need to be paid in full before any repairs are undertaken, unless 
there are exceptional circumstances (affordability is not a reasonable defense against charges 
for willful damage).  CBH will offer other limited services to tenants on a rechargeable basis, 
such as gaining entry upon loss of keys. 
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9.9 Zero Tolerance 
CBC/CBH have zero tolerance towards the abuse of any staff or contractors by residents. All 
customers of CBC/CBH are expected to treat all staff with respect and dignity. This means 
that they must refrain from behaving in a way that is aggressive, threatening, abusive, or 
insulting. Nor must they engage in any behaviour, intentional or otherwise, that constitutes 
harassment or discrimination. CBC/CBH will take reasonable measures to protect staff from 
such behaviour where appropriate. 
 
10.0 THE RIGHT TO REPAIR 
In accordance with Secure Tenants of Local Housing Authorities (Right to Repair) 
Regulations 1994, if a qualifying repair cannot be completed within an agreed timescale, the 
resident has the right to request our management team to instruct a second contractor to 
complete the work. Where the second attempt, or second contractor, also fails to complete 
the work within the agreed time, CBC/CBH will pay compensation to the resident. This 
statutory requirement applies to tenants with a secured tenancy.  
 
10.1 The Right to Repair does not apply in the following circumstances: 

 The resident has told CBC/CBH that they no longer want the qualifying repair carried 
out 

 Where the resident fails to provide details for the contractor to gain access to their 
home 

 Access for an inspection or for the repair to be carried out has not been provided 
 Where the contractor needs to order special parts to complete the repair (time scales 

only) 
 Where severe weather conditions prevent the contractor from completing the repair 
 Leaseholder properties 

 
10.2 Qualifying Repairs 
Repairs that qualify for the terms noted above are those to a resident’s home, which do 
not cost more than £250 and which, if not carried out within a specified period are likely 
to jeopardise the health, safety, or security of the resident. These are: 
 

 
Total loss of electric power 1 
Partial loss of electric power 3 
Unsafe power or lighting socket or electrical fitting 1 
Total loss of water supply 1 
Partial loss of water supply 3 
Total or partial loss of gas supply 1 
Blocked flue to open fire or boiler 1 
Total or partial loss of space or water heating between 31 October and 1 May 1 
Total or partial loss of space or water heating between 30 April and 1 November 3 
Blocked or leaking foul drain, soil stack or toilet pan (where only one in dwelling) 1 
Toilet not flushing (where there is no other working toilet in the dwelling house) 1 
Blocked sink, bath or basin 3 
Tap which cannot be turned 3 
Leaking from water or heating pipe, tank or cistern 1 
Leaking roof 7 
Insecure external window, door or lock 1 
Loose or detached banister or hand rail 3 
Rotten timber flooring or stair treads 3 
Door entry-phone not working 7 

Defect prescribed period (in working days) 
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11.0    REPAIR RESPONSIBILITIES 
Some repairs are the responsibility of the tenant and not CBC/CBH; such repairs are 
defined within the CBC/CBH Tenant Handbook, as well as the respective tenancy 
agreement or lease. The resident is responsible for the maintenance, repair or 
replacement of the categories set out in their tenancy agreement. The tenant will also be 
responsible for the repair, or replacement, of any damaged items in a property. The 
repair responsibilities and obligations for Leaseholders or Shared Owners are as 
outlined in their lease. 

 
12.0    FIXED FLOOR AND WALL COVERINGS 
It is not advisable for residents to lay fixed floor coverings (tiles, hard wood or laminate) 
in their homes. This is due to the difficulty in removing them to carry out essential works 
such as under floor pipe work, without damaging the fixed covering. CBC/CBH do not 
advocate the installation of fixed floor coverings.  

 
13.0    TV AERIALS & SATELLITES 
CBC/CBH makes provisions for communal aerial systems on blocks of flats. Many blocks 
also have communal arrangements for satellite systems. Any resident seeking to install 
further satellite dishes on the external wall of their flat or street property must contact their 
local authority Planning Department and obtain written permission.. Some CBC/CBH 
properties are listed buildings, where this is the case, or the resident wishing to erect an 
installation is not sure of the listed status, they must contact the authority Planning 
Department and may need to apply for additional listed building consent. 

 
Where CBC/CBH identifies an unauthorised satellite dish on one of its properties we will 
contact the resident, who will have to provide a copy of their obtained written permission 
within 28 days. If this has not been provided then CBC/CBH reserves the right to remove 
the unauthorised satellite dish.  

 
Where residents have undertaken their own installation of a TV/Radio reception installation 
and damage has been caused to the fabric of the building due to the quality of installation 
work, CBC/CBH may rectify this damage and recharge the costs to the resident. 

 
14.0    COMMUNAL AREA REPAIRS 
CBC/CBH will manage repairs to shared communal areas to the same timescale and 
standard as internal repairs. Reports of these repairs will generally be identified during 
monthly estate inspections by CBC/CBH staff. However, some repairs may become 
apparent between inspections. For these, we rely on residents of the block to report these 
directly to CBC/CBH. 
 
Occasionally repairs to such installations may be temporarily remedied and the bulk of the 
work may be deferred in to a planned programme for cost efficiency. Affected residents will 
be notified if this is to be the case. For further information please see the CBC/CBH Asset 
Management Strategy.  
 
Where third parties such as managing agents have responsibility for these repairs, 
CBC/CBH will endeavour to communicate and work closely with them to ensure the service 
received by residents is satisfactory. 
 

Tenants Right to Improve 
 
Tenants on secure and flexible tenancies can carry out improvements to their home, but only 
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secure tenants may be compensated for any improvements made. 

A statutory 'Right to Compensation' came into effect on 1st April 1994 and the 'Secure Tenants 
of Local Authorities (Compensation for Improvements) Regulations 1994' applies to 
improvements carried out by secure tenants after this date. 

All tenants must contact Colchester Borough Homes  first to ask for permission to carry out 
alterations before any works take place. Failure to obtain  Colchester Borough Homes or ,where 
appropriate, the Council’s permission to carry out works may result in tenants paying for the 
cost to rectify works, or asked to return the property to its original condition. 

Some improvements may also need planning permission or building regulations approval from 
the Council and the tenant is responsible for obtaining these. Any permission given by the 
Housing Officer for planned works is not planning or building regulations permission and this 
may still need to be sought. 

Any value that is added to the property as a result of major improvements will be excluded from 
the price paid if tenants exercise the Right to Buy and buy their home. 

If tenants go ahead with works after permission has been refused, they will be breaking the 
conditions of their Tenancy Agreement which may result in court action. 

Secure Tenant’s Right to Compensation for Improvements 

Tenants with secure (lifetime) tenancies may be able to claim compensation for certain 
improvements that have been made when the tenancy ends. The right to compensation for 
improvements applies to improvements if they were started on or after 1 April 1994. 

The compensation is calculated to take into account wear, tear and depreciation. Tenants can 
claim compensation for the cost of materials (but not appliances such as cookers or fridges) 
and labour costs (but not their own labour). Internal decoration (such as painting or 
wallpapering) does not qualify for compensation. Compensation cannot be claimed for 
professional fees (such as architects), or the cost of any relevant planning permission or 
consent under Building Regulations. 

All claims must be made not more than 28 days before or 14 days after a tenancy 

15.0    DEFECT PERIOD REPAIRS 
For newly built buildings, the repairs and maintenance are managed through the contractors 
who constructed the building for the first year from the building completion. The terms and 
conditions of these will be outlined within each building contract. This is known as the defect 
rectification period. During this time residents should report their repairs via the customer 
contact centre in the usual way. CBC/CBH will aim to ensure that these repairs are carried 
out in the appropriate timescales. 

Latent defects 
These are faults to the property that could not have reasonably have been discovered 
through inspection before sale or sign up e.g. faults in hidden fabric or cavities of building 
structure. In such cases CBC/CBH does not take automatic responsibility for rectifying or 
improving the defect. These will be managed on a case by case basis.  

16.0 ACHIEVING VALUE FOR MONEY 
Operating as an efficient and effective business and demonstrating value for money to its 
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customers, with a high level of service, are key strategic objectives for CBC/CBH. CBC/CBH 
has a range of mechanisms in place to demonstrate and improve this, including: 

1. Benchmarking cost and performance data such as average costs per property
2. Market testing of the repairs service against other social and external housing

providers
3. Undertaking reviews on processes, services and systems
4. Analysing emergency jobs issued to determine long term remedial or planned works
5. Robust tendering process
6. Statutory consultation process with leaseholders

17.0    CONFIDENTIALITY  
Under the Data Protection Act 1998 and the Human Rights Act 1998 and the enhanced 
requirements of the General Data Protection Regulations – 2018.  

Officers will ensure that they comply with CBC/CBH Data Protection Policy and that they 
only involve other agencies and share information with the consent of the resident 
concerned, unless: 

 CBC/CBH is required to by law
 The information is necessary for the protection of children

18.0    EQUALITY & DIVERSITY 
CBC/CBH recognises the needs of a diverse population and always acts within the scope 
of its own Equality and Diversity Policy, Human Rights Act 1998 and the Equality Act 2010. 

It has a clear understanding of its resident community, with clear regularly updated service 
user profiles. The Performance Improvement & Policy Team is responsible for recording, 
analysing and monitoring information on ethnicity, vulnerability and disability. 

19.0 RESIDENT PARTICIPATION & FEEDBACK 
Resident involvement plays a key role in developing the future direction of the repairs and 
maintenance service. CBC/CBH works with a recognised Maintenance Forum and a 
Leasehold Forum of residents to obtain feedback on the service. Other ad hoc forms of 
resident consultation are employed as and when required. 

20.0    MONITORING & EVALUATION 
CBC/CBH will evaluate and measure its performance and benchmark itself against other 
Social Housing Providers through the use of Performance Indicators.  

21.0    HEALTH, SAFETY & THE ENVIRONMENT 
Officers will follow CBC/CBH’s Health and Safety Policy and procedures at all times. 
CBC/CBH will work closely with the requirement outlined in the Housing Health and Safety 
Rating System when diagnosing the condition of its homes and communal areas. CBC/CBH 
staff and contractors when on site will use appropriate personal protective equipment, when 
necessary. In addition, environmental checks shall be undertaken covering waste and carbon 
management. As a commitment to health, safety and the environment, CBC/CBH have a 
number of related policies to assist in the management of its homes and communal areas, 
such as the Asbestos Management Policy. 

156



CBC/CBH\PS\02\00004

Colchester Borough 
Council /  Homes

Repairs & Maintenance Policy Page 13 of 16 

Associated Policies and procedures 

Aids and Adaptations Policy 
Asset Management Strategy 
Data Protection Policy 
Equality & Diversity Policy 
Health & Safety Policy 
Asbestos Management Policy 
Repairs Guide 
Mobility Scooter Policy 
Boundary Definition Policy 
Tenants Alteration Policy 
Electrical Testing Policy 
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Repairs Policy 
Appendix 1 – Our Responsibilities 
As your landlord, CBC are responsible for: 

 All structural work to the building fabric such as brickwork, slates, chimneys and roofs
 Boilers and hot water tanks
 Fixed heating equipment such as fires, radiators, storage heaters and panel heaters
 Electrical fittings such as existing sockets, light switches and electric storage radiators
 All water systems such as pipes and tap washers
 Central heating systems
 All bathroom fittings including toilets, basins, baths and shower appliances fitted by us
 Repairs to cooker appliances supplied by the Council
 Kitchen and bathroom fixtures (toilets, baths, basins, sinks, gas and water pipes)
 Repairs to plaster, skirtings and doors
 Ropes, fasteners, lifts and safety catches on windows
 Various small items such as letterboxes, draught excluders and spy holes if fitted by us
 Stair lighting and maintenance in communal areas
 Carrying out annual central heating servicing and other safety checks, including periodic

inspection/testing
 Carrying out yearly smoke and carbon monoxide alarms and detectors checks
 Windows and doors
 External painter work
 Outside lighting which was installed by us
 Paths that are laid by us to reach your front door or that follow your house to the back

door if you have one
 Fences supplied by us
 Clothes poles and whirly gigs supplied by us
 Major pest infestations where public health concerns exist, for example major rodent or

significant flea infestations.

Some repairs follow different procedures from others. These are explained in the Types of Repair 
section, beginning on page 7. 

Some repairs are classified as ‘qualifying repairs’ and must be carried out within a given time. 
These are detailed in the Right to Repair section, beginning on page 9. 

Your responsibilities 

As a tenant, you are responsible for the following repairs: 
 All internal decoration, including tiles
 All paving not included in our responsibilities, as mentioned above in Appendix 1
 Attempting to clear plumbing blockages in the first instance
 Bleeding air from radiators, where appropriate
 Blocked waste-traps caused by neglect
 Cleaning of communal stairs and passageways as per local arrangements
 Doorbells that were not installed by us
 Fitting additional locks
 Maintaining fittings or fixtures that you have installed with our consent
 Lock changes due to loss or theft of keys
 Maintenance of fences, gates, driveways and any garden structure including, patio,
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decking or other decorative surfaces that you have erected/installed with our permission 
or taken responsibility for at the start of your tenancy 

 Regular testing of smoke and carbon monoxide detectors, and replacing their batteries
where required 

 Repairing minor cracks and holes in walls and ceilings that can be reasonably filled
before decoration

 Replacing or repairing small fixtures and fittings such as coat hooks, stoppers and
chains for sinks

 Resetting tripped switches, replacing fuses, fluorescent tubes and light bulbs (unless it
is communal stair lighting)

 Television aerials, satellite dishes, internet communication equipment and reception
equipment

 Uplifting and re-laying of laminate floors or floor coverings for access required by our
tradesperson/s

 Uplifting broken glass (unless caused by vandalism, which has been reported to the
police).

If you are in any doubt about how you can carry out any of the tasks mentioned above, please 
contact us. 
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Repairs Policy 
Appendix 2 – Service Standards 

When you report a repair to us: 

 We will answer the phone within thirty seconds
 We will be polite and helpful on the phone and in your home
 We will take details of your repair request, give you a job number and agree with you

an appointment date on which the work will be done or set a target date for either a
surveyor or if necessary a partner organization to contact you to make an appointment
to inspect or schedule a repair.

 We will offer you convenient appointment times for day-to-day repairs
 We will make every effort to keep all appointments. If there is any delay, we will let you

know in advance
 There may be occasions when a surveyor has to call in the first instance. Where this

happens you will be given a target date by which time a surveyor should have contacted
you to make an appointment to allow an inspection to take place before we begin any
work.

Code of Conduct for tradespersons 

Our tradespersons and external contractors will: 
 Be tidily dressed and wear any designated uniform
 Introduce themselves to you and show proof of identity
 Explain the nature and purpose of the job
 Be polite and courteous
 Respond to your complaints
 Treat your details in confidence
 Behave properly and professionally at all times
 Not smoke, work under the influence of alcohol, use bad language, play radios or

cassette players or use your facilities without permission
 Minimise disruption and mess to your home
 Take care of your property and possessions and protect these from dust, paint etc.
 Keep your home secure at all times
 Keep safe all materials and equipment used on site to avoid danger to you and visitors
 Reconnect and test services such as water, gas and electricity at the end of each

working day
 Clear any rubbish from inside of tenanted properties at the end of each working day
 Remove any rubbish from the garden of void houses and other areas outside the

property
 Comply with health and safety legislation and relevant codes of practice
 Treat you equally, regardless of your ethnic background, disabilities, religious beliefs,

age or sexual orientation.
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REPORT TO COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES 
BOARD 

DATE: 20 June 2018 

TIME: 5.30 pm 

VENUE: Room 1, Rowan House 

AGENDA ITEM: 13 

SUBJECT: Strategic Risk Register 

REPORT BY: Michael Hadjimichael, Director of Resources 
 01206 507815  
  Michael.hadjimichael@cbhomes.org.uk 

FOR DECISION 

1. Purpose

1.1 

1.2 

To approve the Strategic Risk Register and progress on mitigating actions. 

For the Board to suggest and consider any emerging risks that should be 
included on the Strategic Risk Register. 

2. Background & Content

2.1 The Board approved a revised Risk Management Strategy at its meeting on 
12 September 2016. Under this strategy the Finance and Audit Committee 
(F&A) has a remit to scrutinise the Risk Register and to report to the Board on 
high-level and difficult to manage risks.  This is now a standing item on the 
agenda for all future meetings. 

Strategic Risk Register 
2.2 

2.3 

2.4 

2.5 

The strategic risk register was presented at the most recent Board meeting on 
24 April 2018 and Finance & Audit Committee on 7 June 2018.  No new 
emerging risks were identified by the Board at that meeting. 

The register can be found at Appendix 1. 

New Risks 
No new risks have been separately identified by management since the last 
Board Meeting on 24 April 2018. 

Removed Risks 
No risks have been removed from the register since the last meeting. 
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2.6 
Progress on Further Actions: 
All identified actions remain in progress and are reviewed monthly by the 
DMT. 

3. Financial Implications

3.1 Robust risk management and financial management is required to ensure that 
service delivery is not compromised and that financial exposure is mitigated.   

4. Value for Money Implications

4.1 Strong financial control will identify and drive efficiencies, enabling resources 
(both financial and people) to service provisions that may require it. 

5. HR Implications

5.1 All senior members of staff review their operational risks on a quarterly basis 
and are escalating these if deemed necessary. Risk management training will 
be provided to managers later in the year. 

6. Residents at the Heart Implications

6.1 An action plan, including a communications strategy, will be developed to 
ensure that the impact of the Housing and Planning Act 2016 is made known 
to residents and to ensure that those affected will be assisted where possible. 

7. Legal, Health & Safety and Equality & Diversity Implications

7.1 All of the above are given due consideration when determining the risk 
exposure to the organisation.  Where the position is unclear, professional third 
party advice is sought. 

8. Risk Management

8.1 

8.2 

The Director Management Team and Senior Management Teams are 
currently engaging with Mazars LLP (Internal Auditors) to enhance the Risk 
Management Framework and awareness at CBH. 

If the Company does not have a robust Risk Management Strategy and Action 
Plan, then its progress to achieving its key goals will be impaired or 
unachievable. 

9. Appendix

9.1  Appendix 1 – Strategic Risk Register
 Appendix 2 – Risk Heat Map
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Risk Register - Current

Risk No Area Risk Potential Consequences Risk Type Unmitigated 
Score Assurances Current Score Further Actions Completion date Target Score Comments/Progress Update

Performance Management Action Plan developed for redesign of reporting 
and new structure Apr-18

Consider system options for new business. Ongoing

Properly resourced initiatives.  Ongoing

Assessment for each project Ongoing

Establish a trading subsidary On-Hold

Review approach/methodology for collated information and monitoring and 
consider resourcing requirements where necessary

Ongoing

Develop partnership with the DWP to make most effective use of resources Ongoing

Continual Review and reforecasting of the financial position to enable efficient 
deployment of resources within CBH and the wider HRA Business Plan

Ongoing

Implementation of Private Sector Letting Scheme (PSL) to offset escalating 
costs of Temporary Accommodation

In Place

Engage CBC for early discussions as to possible consequences for the social 
housing provision in the borough Ongoing

Develop Action Plan to manage the impact of the new regulations TBC

CBC engaged in discussions around demand and supply of affordable 
housing 

Ongoing

Review of approach to Temporary Accommodation Ongoing

Develop communication and information plan Ongoing

Failure of our Housing Management Systems and 
associated modules/support to enable CBH to 
deliver its core services

Service delivery impeded, restricted or 
compromised by IT systems breaking 
down or not meeting new business 
requirements, resulting in poor service 
and additional cost

Technological / 
Economic and Financial 

/ Reputational

2 Strategic

New Trading Opportunities Detract from Core 
Business,  and insufficent income achieved through 
new ventures and may compromise the viability of 
the CBH in the medium term

Reduced Performance - Increase in 
complaints and loss of reputation       
Reduction in Council's confidence in CBH 
through failing to meet key expectations

Reputational/  
Professional/  

Economic

Key personnel TUPED from Capita to CBC from 1 April 2017. 6 month tranisition 
period completed where key processes/knowledge are appropriately documented and 
transferred.  New Structure now in place and established.  Review of Housing 
Management Systems on 'Application Refresh' project list

12 9

Corporate ICT and DOR are in regular dialogue to ensure there is no compromise to CBH's 
service provision. Initial scoping solution on new Housing Solution took place in June 2017. 
Timeframe for a decision on a solution has yet to be determined.  Housing Systems 
currently in consultation about transferring to CBH.  Potential synergies of team moving 
identified.

151 Strategic

The appointment of the CEO in September 2016, who worked for CBC, has further 
strengthened the relationship between the two organisations, with regular meetings 
between the Chair, both CEOs and Porfolio Holder now taking place. The CEO has also 
been appointed to the Board of Colchester Amphora Homes (CBC's development 
company)

Carry out a core business risk assessment before agreeing new projects. Ongoing
6

Business Development is a key theme of Proposed Strategic Plan and will be presented at 
the Feb'18 Board for approval. There continues to be opportunities via CBC to provide 
professional services for Corporate Projects with other potential opportunities presented to 
the Business Opportunities Panel at each meeting. All opportunties considered and those 
approved are in line with the Trading Protocol.

12
Ring fence new business wherever possible.       
Trading protocol created. Business Opportunities Panel in place.  
Financial Risk Management for new business agreed.

9

Relationship with CBC not maintained or effective

Detract focus of Board and senior 
management leading to damaging service 
delivery and new initiatives, ultimately 
closure of ALMO.

Reputational 12

4 Strategic Impact of Welfare Reform adversely affecting the 
ability to collect rents from tenants

Increasing financial pressure on tenants 
leading to possibility of increasing rent 
arrears, possible transfers and increase in 
homelessness, increase in court actions

Economic/  
Reputational 16

Maintaining the regular liaison meetings at all levels. Chief Executive keeping a 
watching brief that these are maintained and effective. 6

No surprises, no blame culture
Celebrate what is good
One organisation - where there is a joint accountability across teams and 
resolve       

Ongoing 43 Strategic

15

Increased resources to support tenants to maintain payment and claim Discretionary 
Housing payments; Close work with CBC Housing Benefits. Revision to financial 
inclusion strategy. Creation of digital inclusion strategy. Worklessness strategy. 
Increased payment methods available. Increased financial support and assistance. 
Increased opportunity for DD. Staff trained.  Risk actively reviewed at each 
Operations Committee.

12 9

5 Strategic Changes in Economic & Political environment may 
impact on financial viability of organisation

The Economic Environment 
(Inflation/Interest Rates), Reduction in 
social housing due to RTB extension, 
selling vacant high value properties and 
changes in planning requirements, leading 
to Management Fee reductions and not 
being able to maintain contracted level of 
services. CBH service delivery adversely 
affected due to financial constraints

Economic/  
Reputational

Welfare Reform Strategic Action Group set up with key partners within CBC 
and CBH Ongoing

Financial inclusion team supporting those in financial difficulty. Postive outcomes achieved 
from this and Grant agreement with CAB for debt advice. Ongoing partnership for delivery 
of change with the local Job Centre Plus 

6 Strategic Impact of Homelessness Reduction Act Increase in demand for housing options 
and temporary accommodation 

Economic/  
Reputational 15

Maintaining close contact with DCLG to follow and comment on the implementation 
of the Act. Board will be breifed on the Act and the likely consequences. Risk actively 
reviewed at each Operations Committee.

15

Maintaining the regular liaison meetings at all levels and work closely with CBC 
colleagues to ensure impact is minimalised to continue to provide a social housing 
solution that fits the requirements of the Borough. Annual management fee budget 
setting process. Annually agreed Delivery Plan. Regular liaison with Portfolio Holder.

10 10

Uncertainty remains in the sector as it awaits the publication of the Social Housing Green 
Paper and how/whether the findings of the Hackett review on Building Regulations and Fire 
Safety become legislation.                                                        CBH has developed its first 
iteration of a Business Plan that will be monitored by Board and DMT.   CBH supports the 
wider HRA business plan as well and is subject to regular review and stress testing. 

10

The Legislation came into effect from 1 April 2018. The Housing Options team has been 
restructured with the requirements of the new legislation taken into consideration. C.£500k 
grant funding for prevention initiatives received by CBC.  MHCLG have reviewed CBH's 
implementation plans and readiness for the 1 April and are comfortable with the progress 
made.  The score on this risk will be reviewed during 2018, once the effectiveness of these 
measures is known.
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CBH Strategic Risk Register - Heat Map
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REPORT TO COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES BOARD 

DATE: 20 June 2018 

TIME: 5.30 pm 

VENUE: Room 1, Rowan House 

AGENDA ITEM: 14. 

SUBJECT: Audit of Company Accounts 2017/18 

REPORT BY: Michael Hadjimichael, Director of Resources 
 01206 507815 
  Michael.Hadjimichael@cbhomes.org.uk 

FOR DECISION 

1. Decisions Required

Following its meeting on 7 June 2018, the Finance & Audit Committee (F&A) 
recommends that the Board: 

1.1 Approves the 2017/18 Audited Financial Statements. 

1.2 Agrees that the Chair of the Board signs the Financial Statements. 

1.3 Agrees that the Chair of the Board signs the Directors’ Report. 

1.4 Agrees that the Chair of the Board signs the Letter of Representation. 

1.5 Agrees that the Chair of the Board and the Chair of the Finance & Audit 
Committee sign the Annual Governance Statement.  

2. Supporting Information

2.1 The Final Accounts for the Company for 2017/18 have been completed and 
audited. An unqualified opinion has been issued and the accounts are being 
submitted to Board for approval.  

2.2 A summary report to the Board and the detailed statutory Company Accounts 
are attached for your information as Appendices 1&2. 

3. CBH Accounts

3.1 The Company made a deficit of £26,011 for 2017/18 before FRS17 
adjustments. The accounts have now been fully audited and this original figure 
has been verified. This deficit position reflects the significant investment 
agreed by Board for the ‘Working Smarter’ project. 
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3.2 The completion of the year-end process was achieved within agreed 
timescales, thanks to support by key staff and our auditors, Scrutton Bland. 

3.3 Set out below is a reconciliation between the surplus from the management 
accounts to the Financial Accounts: 

£ 
Management Accounts Deficit (26,011) 
FRS 102 Staff Costs Accounting 
Adjustment 

(1,049,000) 

Interest Charges (272,000) 

Deficit for Year (per statutory accounts) (1,347,011) 

4. Director’s Responsibilities

4.1 As part of the consideration of the Financial Statements, the Chair of the 
Board is required to sign the Directors’ Responsibilities on behalf of the 
Directors. These are set out on pages three and four of the Financial 
Statements. The following arrangements have been put in place to provide 
confidence to Members in supporting this: 

 All accounting policies have been presented to the Board and are
discussed with the External Auditors each year.

 The Accounts have been closed on an accrual basis and any estimates or
provisions have been supported by detailed workings.

 UK Accounting Standards have been followed, and this is the second year
that the financial statements have been prepared under FRS102.

 The Accounts have been prepared on an ongoing basis and the External
Auditor is satisfied that the FRS17 liability is supported by future funding
levels from Colchester Borough Council.

 Regular Management Accounts updates have been provided to the
Finance & Audit Committee and expenditure has been maintained within
the Management Fee.

 Meetings have taken place between the External Auditor and the Director
of Resources where all relevant audit information has been given to the
Auditor. The Finance section has also provided the Auditor with a bundle
of information and supporting evidence to meet the Auditor’s list of
requirements for the audit.

5. Letter of Representation

5.1 In addition, the Chair of the Board is required to sign a letter of representation 
on behalf of the Board to the Auditors. In a change to previous years, the Chief 
Executive will also sign the letter of representation on behalf of the Directors 
Management Team. 

6. Financial Implications

6.1 The financial implications are included in the body of the report. 
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7. Risk Management 
 

7.1 If the Company’s Annual Accounts are not signed by the Board and filed at 
Companies House within nine months of the financial year-end (31 December 
2018) the Company will be liable for a penalty and the Directors (Board 
Members) would also become liable. Subject to the Board’s approval on 20 
June, the accounts will be submitted to Companies House following the Board 
meeting and the Chair of the Finance and Audit Committee will be informed 
once this submission has been carried out. 

 
8. HR Implications 
 
8.1  There are no direct HR implications arising from this report. 

 
9. Equality and Diversity Implications 

 
9.1  There are no direct equality implications arising from this report. 
 
10. Legal Implications 
 
10.1  The legal implications are set out in the risk paragraph. 

 
11. Residents at Heart 

 
11.1 Not applicable. 

 
12. Appendices 
 
12.1 Appendix 1 – Auditors’ Report to the Board 

 
12.2 Appendix 2 – The Statutory Accounts (incl. Annual Governance Statement) 
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1 Introduction 
 
1.1 In accordance with International Standards on Auditing 260 (“Communication with 

those charged with governance) we are setting out various matters relating to our 
audit of the financial statements of Colchester Borough Homes (“the Company”) for 
the year ended 31 March 2018.  

 
1.2 We can confirm that we have completed our audit work, subject only to the 

finalisation of our work in respect of events since the balance sheet date and the 
receipt of a signed letter of representation. We currently anticipate being able to give 
an unqualified opinion on these financial statements in accordance with the 
requirements of the Companies Act 2006.  

 

2 The Financial Statements 
 
 The financial statements can be summarised as follows:  
 
2.1 Income and expenditure account 
 

 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
 £   £     
   
Turnover 13,195,259 14,194,990 
   
Staff costs (6,627,010) (6,513,161) 
Other operating charges (6,601,877) (7,638,233) 
 ________ ________ 
 (33,628) 43,596 
Interest income 7,617 7,170 
 _______ _______ 
Operating (deficit)/surplus before taxation (26,011) 50,766 
   
Tax on ordinary activities - 750 
 _______ _______ 
Operating (deficit)/surplus after taxation (26,011) 51,516 
   
FRS 102 defined benefit pension scheme 
charges: 

  

    Staff costs adjustment  (1,049,000) (522,000) 
    Interest costs (272,000) (204,000) 
 _______ _______ 
Deficit after defined benefit pension 
charges per financial statements                    

 
£ (1,347,011) 

 
£ (674,484) 
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2.2 The income and expenditure account has been presented in the above format in this 

report in order to show the results before and after adjustments under FRS 102 in 
respect of the defined benefit pension scheme. The results before the FRS 102 
defined benefit pension scheme adjustments are the results that management are 
able to influence and control. The FRS 102 defined benefit pension scheme 
adjustments are only known after the end of the financial year and are determined by 
the actuary of the Essex County Council Pension Scheme (“LGPS”) 

 
2.3 The income and expenditure account of the Company can be considered to have 

three discrete components:  
 

• There are the costs of the direct labour work force and costs of materials which 
are invoiced at cost to Colchester Borough Council: therefore these transactions 
produce neither a surplus nor a deficit;  

 
• There are then the various overheads costs of the Company which are funded, in 

accordance with a budget, by a management fee from Colchester Borough 
Council. To the extent that the actual costs are greater than or less than the 
management fee, the Company records either a deficit or a surplus.  

 
• Finally, commercial activities such as the management of properties for external 

organisations. 
 
2.4 We do not consider that the surplus made by the Company in respect of the ALMO 

activity with Colchester Borough Council to be taxable. Any other surpluses made will 
be subject to corporation tax. Our work in respect of taxation is set out in Section 5.  

 
2.5 Balance sheet 
 

 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
 £   £     
   
Net current assets 1,431,656 1,386,720 
   
Less: Provisions (195,700) (124,753) 
 _______ _______ 
Net assets before FRS 102 defined benefit 
pension scheme adjustments 

1,235,956 1,261,967 

   
FRS 102 net pension liability (8,368,000) (10,100,000) 
 ________ ________ 
Net liabilities including FRS 102 defined 
benefit pension scheme adjustments 

 
£ (7,132,044) 

 
£ (8,838,033) 

 
2.6 The balance sheet of the Company shows net liabilities of £7,132,044 compared to 

£8,838,033 in the previous year.  
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2.7 We consider that the most meaningful figure in considering the ability of the 

Company to continue as a going concern is the net current assets of £1,431,656    
(2017: £1,386,720). This is the surplus of the current assets over the current liabilities 
and is therefore closer than other figures on the balance sheet to a cash flow 
measure. This, together with the knowledge that the Company generally forecasts to 
breakeven, and that the management fee is received on a profiled basis from 
Colchester Borough Council, is indicative of the robustness of the balance sheet.  

 
2.8 The large liability of £8,368,000 (2017: £10,100,000) in respect of pension obligations 

is not an immediate liability to be met from cash flows: it represents the current best 
estimate of the pension deficit for those Company employees in the LGPS. The 
expectation is that future budgets presented to Colchester Borough Council will 
include the appropriate amounts in respect of future employer contributions and that 
these contributions will be then be funded by the management fee.  

 
2.9 Under FRS 102 there is a requirement for the pension surplus or deficit to be shown 

on the face of the balance sheet. As noted above, there is also a requirement for the 
income and expenditure account to be amended in order to show pension costs 
based on the current costs accruing, rather than on the basis of the employer 
contributions payable to the scheme. 

 
2.10 The net movements in the pension scheme liability are set out in Appendix 1. The 

liability has fallen from £10,100,000 to £8,368,000, being a reduction of £1,732,000. 
The fall in the assumed rate of increase in salaries and pensions in payment, which 
reduced from 4.2% and 2.7% in 2017 to 3.8% and 2.3% respectively, have assisted 
in the reduction of the estimated scheme liability. The impact of these factors has 
been lessened by the impact of the discount rate falling which has reduced from 
2.8%, as used in the 2017 calculation, to 2.6% for the 2018 calculation. 

3 Main Areas of Audit Risk 
 
3.1 There is always a concern that certain material or subcontractors’ costs incurred by 

the Company may not be accepted by Colchester Borough Council. The Company 
makes no margin on the recharge of such materials and there is therefore no surplus 
available to absorb costs in such a situation. We have obtained confirmation from the 
management of the Company that there have been no such cases; we are able to 
confirm this by reviewing the recharges made to Colchester Borough Council and the 
accounting evidence that all costs have been recharged and not challenged to date.  

 
3.2 There is an audit risk that late costs may be incurred in relation to overheads of the 

Company. We therefore carry out a review of purchase invoices and payments after 
the end of the year in order to identify any such costs. We also seek to agree larger 
supplier balances on the bought ledger to statements from those suppliers.  
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3.3 There is a significant audit risk that the information in respect of the defined benefit 

pension scheme accounting requirements under FRS 102 may be presented 
incorrectly or may be based on inappropriate assumptions. We therefore review the 
detailed figures provided by the Actuary, including the assumptions, and carry out 
detailed reviews of the information provided in the financial statements with regard to 
the net pension liability and the pension costs. 

4 Controls 
 
4.1 During our audit we examined certain control procedures operated by the 

management team. We also reviewed the various reports issued by Mazars, the 
internal audit service to the Company. We note that there were various issues raised 
in respect of the payroll systems by Mazars, but do not consider that these have a 
material impact upon the financial statements or our report thereon. 

5 Taxation  
 
5.1 We are responsible for the corporation tax compliance work for the Company.  
 
5.2 It is our opinion that the nature of the surpluses made by the Company (comprising 

the making of savings on a management fee awarded by the sole member of the 
Company) is such that they are not subject to corporation tax as they do not 
represent surpluses from a taxable undertaking.   

 
5.3 During the year the Company has engaged in a number of trading activities, and as 

such any surplus in this area is subject to Corporation Tax.  

6 Independence 
 
6.1 We can confirm that we consider the partners and employees of Scrutton Bland LLP 

and Scrutton Bland Limited to be independent of both the Company and also 
Colchester Borough Council.  

 
6.2 In addition to the audit services, we provide tax compliance services to the Company. 

The fee in respect of these tax compliance services is very much less than our audit 
fee; we therefore do not consider that our undertaking this extra service impacts on 
our independence from the Company.  

 
 
 
 
Scrutton Bland LLP 
 
18 May 2018 
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Appendix 1 
 
Defined Benefit Pension Charge Adjustment 
 
 
  Balance Sheet  I & E 
  Dr Cr  Dr Cr 
    
    
FRS 102 interest adjustment   272,000 

Employer service costs   1,049,000 

FRS 102 interest adjustment  272,000   

Employer service costs  1,049,000   

Balance brought forward  10,100,000   

Actuarial gain  3,053,000   

Balance carried forward  8,368,000   

Adjustment to reserves  1,321,000   

  11,421,000 12,742,000  1,321,000 0
   

Effect on pension reserve  (1,321,000) 
   

Effect on deficit:    

- Pension charge   (1,321,000) 

Deficit after tax per CBH draft   (26,011) 

Deficit after tax per accounts   (1,347,011) 
   

 
 

 
 
 
  

179



 
COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES 
REPORT TO THE BOARD 
___________________________________________________________________ 

6 
 

Appendix 2 
 

Letter of Representation 
 

COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED 
1st Floor 

Rowan House 
33 Sheepen Road 

Colchester 
CO3 3WG 

Company Number: 04843624 
A company incorporated in England and Wales 

 
Scrutton Bland LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
And Statutory Auditor 
820 The Crescent 
Colchester Business Park 
Colchester 
CO4 9YQ 
 
Dear Sirs 
 

LETTER OF REPRESENTATION FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 
 
We confirm that the following representations are made on the basis of enquiries of 
management and staff with relevant knowledge and experience and where appropriate, of 
inspection of supporting documentation, sufficient to satisfy ourselves that we can properly 
make each of the following representations to you in connection with your audit of the 
company's financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018. 
 
We acknowledge our legal responsibilities regarding disclosure of information to you as 
auditors and confirm that so far as we are aware, there is no relevant audit information 
needed by you in connection with preparing your audit report of which you are unaware.  
Each director has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director in order to 
make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that you are 
aware of that information. 
 
Financial Statements: 
 
1. We acknowledge, and have fulfilled, as directors, our collective responsibility under 

the Companies Act 2006 for presenting financial statements (in accordance with the 
Companies Act 2006 and United Kingdom Accounting Standards), which give a true 
and fair view of the financial position of the company at the reporting date, and of its 
result for the period then ended, and for making accurate representations to you.  We 
confirm that we have approved the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 
2018. 

 
2. We confirm that the accounting policies and estimation techniques adopted for the 

preparation of the financial statements are the most appropriate to the circumstances 
in which the company operates. 
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3. Other than as disclosed in the financial statements, the company has not entered into 

any transactions involving directors, officers or other related parties, which require 
disclosure under the Companies Act or Financial Reporting Standards. Appropriate 
disclosure has been made of the control of the company. 

 
4. We have disclosed all known or possible litigation and claims whose effects should 

be considered when preparing the financial statements and these have been 
disclosed in accordance with the requirements of accounting standards. 

 
5. The financial statements of the company have been prepared on the going concern 

basis as we believe that adequate cash resources will be available to cover the 
company’s requirements for working capital and capital expenditure for at least the 
next twelve months. We are not aware of any other factors which could put into 
jeopardy the company’s going concern status during or beyond this period, other 
than as disclosed in the financial statements. 

 
6. There have been no events since the reporting date which necessitate revision of the 

figures included in the financial statements or inclusion of a note thereto.  Should 
further material events occur, which may necessitate revision of the figures included 
in the financial statements or inclusion of a note thereto, we will advise you 
accordingly. 

 
7. We confirm that we have been notified by you that either no unadjusted or only 

clearly trivial errors were identified during the audit. 
 
8. We confirm that we have agreed the adjustments appended to this letter which have 

been made to the Trial Balance which we presented to you for audit. 
 
9. We confirm we have no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying 

value or classification of any assets and liabilities reflected in the financial 
statements. 

 
10. With regard to the defined benefit pension plan, we are satisfied that: 
 

 the actuarial assumptions underlying the valuation are consistent with our 
knowledge of the plan and our business; 

 all significant retirement benefits have been identified and properly accounted 
for; and 

 all settlements and curtailments have been identified and properly accounted 
for. 

 
Information provided: 
 
11. All the accounting records have been made available to you for the purpose of your 

audit and all the transactions undertaken by the company have been properly 
reflected and recorded in the accounting records.  We have provided to you all other 
information requested and given unrestricted access to persons within the entity to 
whom you have deemed it necessary to speak. All other records and relevant 
information, including minutes of all management and shareholders’ meetings, have 
been made available to you. 
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12. Other than those disclosed in the financial statements we are not aware of any 

material liabilities, provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets or contracted 
for capital commitments, that need to be provided for or disclosed in the financial 
statements. 

 
13. We confirm that we have notified you of all related party relationships, and 

transactions that the company has entered into with those related parties during the 
year of which we are aware. 
 

14. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design and implementation of internal 
controls to prevent and detect errors or fraud, and have disclosed to you the results 
of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially 
misstated as a result of fraud. We are unaware of any irregularities, including fraud 
and suspected fraud, involving management, employees or others who have 
significant roles in internal control, or those employed by the company where the 
fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.  No allegations of such 
irregularities or breaches have come to our notice. 

 
15. We are unaware of any breaches or possible breaches of statute, regulations, 

contracts, agreements or the company's Memorandum and Articles of Association 
which might result in the company suffering significant penalties or other loss.  No 
allegations of such irregularities or breaches have come to our notice. 

 
16. We confirm that we have been notified by you that there are no matters which you 

are required to raise with us to comply with your profession’s ethical guidance which 
are in addition to the matters included in your external audit plan. 

 
17. We confirm receipt of your external audit plan and we confirm receipt of your 

management letter. 
 

18. We confirm that only one director received remuneration during the year and that the 
remuneration of this director, excluding benefits in kind, was £6,752 in the period. 

 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
 
 
Signed on behalf of the Executive 
 
Date: 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors 
 
Date: 
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Appendix 3 
 

Management Letter 
 
The Directors 
Colchester Borough Homes Limited 
1st Floor 
Rowan House 
33 Sheepen Road 
Colchester 
CO3 3WG 
 
 
 
Dear Sirs 
 
Colchester Borough Homes Limited 
 
Following our recent final audit in connection with the financial statements of Colchester 
Borough Homes Limited for the year ended 31 March 2018, we are writing to bring to your 
attention certain matters that arose during the course of our work, together with suggestions 
for improvements of procedures operated by the company. We hope that you will find our 
comments helpful and constructive. 
 
Our work during the audit included an examination of some of the company’s transactions 
and procedures with a view to expressing an opinion on the financial statements for the year. 
This work was not directed primarily towards discovering weaknesses or towards the 
detection of fraud. We have only considered matters that have come to our attention as a 
result of our normal audit procedures and consequently our comments should not be 
regarded as a comprehensive record of all weaknesses that may exist or of all 
improvements that might be made. 
 
Our work also included a review of the adequacy of disclosures in the financial statements 
and consideration of the appropriateness of the accounting policies and estimation 
techniques adopted by the company. This review identified no significant matters which we 
believe are necessary to draw to your attention. 
 
We would particularly draw your attention to the following matters: 
 
Going Concern - Pension liability 
 
The balance sheet includes a large provision of £8,368,000 in respect of the FRS 102 
defined benefit pension fund deficit. The inclusion of this provision means that there is a 
deficit of member’s funds of £7,132,000. If the future performance of the pension scheme 
remains identical to the assumptions made by the Actuary, then there would need to be an 
increase in total contributions into the pension scheme in order to cover the funding shortfall. 
 
We consider that the financial statements should continue to be prepared on the going 
concern basis, provided that the directors are of the view that increased pension 
contributions in future years will be met by the funding received each year from Colchester 
Borough Council. 
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Part-time Staff Rates of Pay 
 
Upon completing a walk through test on a single member of part time staff, it was noted that 
the rate of pay for that staff member was overstated. The pay rate had been calculated 
based upon a full time salary for a 37 hour week. It was apparent however that the salary 
used in the calculation was for a 40 hour week, meaning that the hourly pay rate the part-
time member of staff was receiving was actually higher than it should have been. 
 
Although this is not material to the audit of the financial statements, we recommend that a 
review of part-time members of staff pay rates is undertaken to ensure that this is an isolated 
incident and that pay rates are not generally being set at levels in excess of those intended. 
 
Conclusion 
 
If you require any further information or assistance, we shall be very pleased to help you. 
 
We would appreciate an acknowledgement of the receipt of this letter and look forward to 
receiving your comments when you have had the opportunity of considering the matter that 
we have raised. 
 
This letter is for private use only. It has been prepared on the understanding that it will not be 
disclosed to any third party, or quoted to or referred to, without our prior written consent and 
we assume no responsibility to any other party. 
  
We should like to take this opportunity of thanking you and your staff for the assistance and 
co-operation we have received during the course of our work. 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
 
 
Scrutton Bland LLP 
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The directors have pleasure in presenting their strategic report for the year ended 
31st March 2018. 
 
Principal activities and business review 
The principal activity of the company during the period was the repair and improvement of 
council properties, tenancy management, rent collection and arrears, and other property 
management associated services. 
 
The maintenance and repairs service contract with Colchester Borough Council (the 
‘Council’) continued throughout the year. 
 
Results 
The initial deficit after tax, but before FRS 102 defined benefit pension scheme adjustments 
for the year was £26,011 (2017 : surplus £51,516). This resulted in a deficit of £1,347,011   
(2017 : deficit £674,484) for the year, after adjustments for FRS 102 defined benefit pension 
scheme. 
 
The company made a significant investment in the year, which it was able to absorb through 
business efficiencies rather than reserves on a company-wide initiative called ‘Working 
Smarter’ (£213,751) which is aimed at delivering further business efficiencies and enhanced 
customer experience. 
 
Financial risk management objectives and policies 
The directors consider that the main risks to the company are that expenditure is not 
controlled in line with the core funding provided by the ‘Council’.  The company has 
budgeting and management accounting procedures in place so as to control these risks.  
The company is also exposed to the prospect of greater cash outflows in future years in 
order to fund the deficit in the pension scheme, to the extent that this is not covered by 
improved investment performance. 
 
The company is assessed by various metrics applicable to similar housing organisations and 
is looking to be in the upper quartile in the various cost and quality benchmarks. The main 
key performance indicators include tenant satisfaction, the levels of overdue rents, the length 
of time taken to re-let empty properties, customer satisfaction with repairs, and the length of 
time taken to pay invoices. 
 
The company retains sufficient cash for its working capital needs and does not use other 
financial instruments for treasury management.  The company therefore has very little 
exposure to cash flow risk. 
 
New legislation, in the form of “The Housing and Planning Act” and “Homelessness 
Reduction Act” will have a significant effect on the way that the Company manages its 
operations on behalf of the Council. This could lead to substantial additional costs to 
maintain performance if not managed effectively. The Company reviewed its controls and 
procedures in the year with the Council to identify the key areas of risk and have put in place 
arrangements to mitigate these risks. 
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The directors are committed to ensuring that proper governance arrangements are in place. 
 
 
 
Registered office: Signed on behalf of the directors 
1st Floor 
Rowan House 
33 Sheepen Road 
Colchester 
Essex Ms A Grahamslaw     
CO3 3WG Director 
  
 
 
Approved by the directors on      
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The directors present their report and the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 
2018. 
 
Matters covered in the strategic report 
Financial risk management objectives and policies are disclosed in the strategic report. 
 
Directors 
The directors who served the company during the year were as follows: 
 
Mr A Blois 
Mr M Campbell (appointed 2nd November 2017)  
Miss M Carey 
Cllr N Chapman 
Cllr D Ellis (resigned 15th January 2018) 
Mr G Foster   
Ms A Grahamslaw   
Mrs C Graves (resigned 2nd November 2017) 
Cllr M Hogg   
Mr G Houchell 
Cllr C Liddy  
Mr G Mitchell (appointed 28th November 2017)  
Miss J Parker  
Miss D Philp (resigned 2nd November 2017) 
 
 
The Memorandum and Articles of Association were reviewed and approved during the year 
to allow flexibility of membership on the Board.  The Board will now consist of at least 9 
members (with equal constituent representation of Councillors, Residents and 
Independents). In addition, members of the Directors Management Team are able to join the 
Board, with the Chief Executive appointed at the November 2017 Annual General Meeting. 
 
Directors' responsibilities 
The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in 
accordance with applicable law and regulations. 
 
Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. 
Under that law the directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance 
with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting 
Standards and applicable law). Under company law the directors must not approve the 
financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of 
affairs of the company and of the surplus or deficit of the company for that period. In 
preparing those financial statements, the directors are required to: 
 
• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 
 

• make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
 

•  prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to  
 presume that the company will continue in business. 
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The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to 
show and explain the company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any 
time the financial position of the company and enable them to ensure that the financial 
statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding 
the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and 
detection of fraud and other irregularities. 
 
The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial 
information included on the company website.  Legislation in the United Kingdom governing 
the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other 
jurisdictions. 
 
In so far as the directors are aware: 
 
• there is no relevant audit information of which the company's auditor is unaware; and 
 

• the directors have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as directors to make 
themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the company’s 
auditor is aware of that information. 

 
 
 
Registered office: Signed on behalf of the directors 
1st Floor 
Rowan House 
33 Sheepen Road 
Colchester 
Essex 
CO3 3WG Ms A Grahamslaw 
 Director 
 
Approved by the directors on 
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Opinion on financial statements 
We have audited the financial statements of Colchester Borough Homes Limited for the year 
ended 31st March 2018 which comprise the Income Statement, Statement of Other 
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Changes in Equity, 
Statement of Cash Flows, and the related notes numbered 1 to 15. The financial reporting 
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom 
Accounting Standards, including FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in 
the UK and Republic of Ireland” (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). 
 
In our opinion the financial statements: 
 
• give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31st March 2018 and 

of its deficit for the year then ended; and 
 
• have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted 

Accounting Practice; and 
 
• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. 
 
Basis for opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs 
(UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in 
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We 
are independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical 
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
Conclusions relating to going concern 
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs 
(UK) require us to report to you where: 
 
• The directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the 

financial statements is not appropriate; or  
 
• the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material 

uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the company’s ability to continue to 
adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from 
the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. 
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Other information  
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the annual report other than the financial statements and our auditor’s 
report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information 
and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form 
of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our 
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other 
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained 
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material 
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether 
there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the 
other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a 
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.  
 
We have nothing to report in this regard. 
 
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 
In our opinion based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given 
in the strategic report and the directors' report for the financial year for which the financial 
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements and the strategic report 
and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal 
requirements. 
 
Matters on which we are required to report by exception 
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment 
obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the 
strategic report or the directors’ report. 
 
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion: 
 
• adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have 

not been received from branches not visited by us; or 
 
• the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; 

or 
 
• certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or 
 
• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit. 
 
Responsibilities of directors  
As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement set out on pages 4 to 5 the 
directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being 
satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors 
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
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In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the 
company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either 
intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to 
do so. 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements  
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error 
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements.  

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located
on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This 
description forms part of our auditor’s report. 

Use of our report 
This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with 
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so 
that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to state to 
them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, 
we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the 
company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have 
formed. 

TIMOTHY O’CONNOR (Senior Statutory Auditor) 
For and on behalf of  
SCRUTTON BLAND LLP 
Chartered Accountants & Statutory Auditor 

820 The Crescent 
Colchester Business Park 
Colchester 
CO4 9YQ 

194



COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED
COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE 

Income Statement (including Income and Expenditure Account) 

Year ended 31st March 2018 
 

 2018   2017
Note   £   £ 

The notes on pages 14 to 26 form part of these financial statements. 
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Turnover 3 13,195,259 14,194,990

Staff costs 4 (6,627,010) (6,513,161)
FRS 102 staff costs adjustment 4/14f (1,049,000) (522,000)
Other operating charges (6,601,877) (7,638,233)

--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- 

Operating deficit 5 (1,082,628) (478,404)

Interest receivable 7,617 7,170
FRS 102 interest adjustment  14f   (272,000) (204,000)

--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- 

Deficit on ordinary activities before taxation (1,347,011) (675,234)

Tax on ordinary activities 6 - 750
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- 

Deficit for the financial year (1,347,011) (674,484)
================================================== ================================================= 

The deficit for the financial year before and after adjustments 
required under FRS 102 in respect of defined benefit pension 
schemes is as follows: 

Operating (deficit)/surplus after tax (26,011) 51,516

FRS 102 defined benefit pension scheme charges: 
Staff costs adjustment (1,049,000) (522,000)
Interest costs (272,000) (204,000)

----------------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------------------------- 

Deficit for the financial year (1,347,011) (674,484)
===================================================== =================================================== 

All of the activities of the company are classed as continuing. 
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        2018        2017

Note            £            £ 

 
 The notes on pages 14 to 26 form part of these financial statements. 
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Deficit for the financial year  (1,347,011) (674,484)
 
Actuarial gains/(losses) arising from pension liabilities 14b 1,253,000 (6,969,000)
  
Difference between expected and actual return on 
pension fund assets and other actuarial losses  14b

 
1,800,000 3,430,000

 ----------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------------- 
 
Total recognised gains and (losses) for the year  1,705,989 (4,213,484)
 ========================================== ========================================== 
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Current assets 
Debtors  7 803,925 1,407,255
Cash at bank and in hand 1,769,285 1,408,507

------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------------------------

2,573,210 2,815,762
Creditors: Amounts falling due within one 
year  8 (1,141,554) (1,429,042)

------------------------------------------------ ------------------------------------------------------

Net current assets 1,431,656 1,386,720
---------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------------------

Total assets less current liabilities 1,431,656 1,386,720

Provisions for liabilities 
Other provisions  9 (195,700) (124,753)

-------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------------------- 

Net assets excluding pension fund 1,235,956 1,261,967

Estimated pension fund liability     14a (8,368,000) (10,100,000)
-------------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------------------- 

Net liabilities (7,132,044) (8,838,033)
================================================ =============================================== 

Reserves 
Income and expenditure account – 
excluding FRS 102 defined benefit 
pension scheme reserve  13  1,235,956 1,261,967
FRS 102 defined benefit pension  
scheme reserve (8,368,000) (10,100,000)

-------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------------------- 

Member's funds deficit (7,132,044) (8,838,033)
============================================ ============================================ 

Under the Companies Act 2006, s454, on a voluntary basis, the directors can amend these 
financial statements if they subsequently prove to be defective. 

These financial statements were approved by the directors and authorised for issue on  
and are signed on their behalf by: 

Ms A Grahamslaw 
Director 

Company Registration Number: 04843624  
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 Income and 
  Defined    expenditure 
 benefit     account 

 pension   excluding 
 scheme  pension 
 reserve   reserve   Total 

£       £      £       

At 1st April 2017 (5,835,000) 1,210,451 (4,624,549)

Surplus/(deficit) for the year (726,000) 51,516 (674,484)

Other comprehensive income 
for the year (3,539,000) - (3,539,000) 

_________________ ________________ ________________ 

At 31st March 2017 (10,100,000) 1,261,967 (8,838,033) 

Surplus/(deficit) for the year (1,321,000) (26,011) (1,347,011)

Other comprehensive income 
for the year 3,053,000 - 3,053,000 

_________________ _______________ ________________ 

At 31st March 2018 (8,368,000) 1,235,956 (7,132,044) 
=================================================== =============================================== =================================================
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  2018    2017 
        £  £ 
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Cash flows from operating activities
Deficit for the financial year  (1,347,011) (674,484)
Interest received (7,617) (7,170)
Taxation - (750)
Decrease/(increase) in debtors   603,330 (221,145)
(Decrease)/increase in creditors   (287,488) 200,242 
Increase in provisions   70,947 34,583 
FRS 102 defined benefit pension  
scheme  adjustment  1,321,000 726,000 

_________________ _________________ 

Cash from operations 353,161 57,276

Taxation paid - 750 
_________________ _________________ 

Net cash generated from operating activities 353,161 58,026 

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received 7,617 7,170 

 ___________ _____________ 

Net cash inflow from investing activities 7,617 7,170 
_________________ ________________

Increase in cash and cash equivalent 360,778 65,196 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning 
of year 1,408,507 1,343,311 

_______________ _______________ 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 1,769,285 1,408,507 
================================================ ============================================ 
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1. Accounting policies 
 
 Company information 
 
 Colchester Borough Homes Limited is a company limited by guarantee, incorporated in 

England and Wales.  Its registered number is 04843624.  The registered office is Rowan 
House, 33 Sheepen Road, Colchester, Essex, CO3 3WG. 

 
 Basis of accounting 
 
 The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and in 

accordance with applicable United Kingdom accounting standards, including Financial 
Reporting Standard 102 ‘The Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK and 
Republic of Ireland’, with the Companies Act, and FRC Abstracts.   

 
 The financial statements are presented in Sterling (£) and are rounded to the nearest 

£1. 
 
 The financial statements show net assets before pension liabilities of £1,235,956            

but net liabilities of £7,132,044 once the provision for pension liabilities is included. The 
financial statements have been prepared on the basis of a going concern, on the 
assumption that the core funding from the ‘Council’ in future years will enable the 
increased pension contributions to be met. 

 
 After reviewing the company’s forecasts and projections, the directors have a 

reasonable expectation that the company has adequate resources and support to 
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.  The company therefore 
continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing its financial statements.  

 
 Turnover 
 
 Turnover principally comprises of income derived from the ‘Council’ and is stated 

exclusive of Value Added Tax. 
  
 Income received from the ‘Council’ is for the management of Colchester Borough 

Homes and also relates to specific projects for which the money is earmarked. Costs 
are also recharged direct to the ‘Council’ in respect of additional property services work 
outside the management fee. 

 
 Included in turnover is an amount of £3,135,096 (2017 : £4,913,996) which relates to the 

recharging of property services costs incurred by the company.  A property services 
management fee of £4,947,957 was received in the year (2017 : £4,795,448). 

 
 Within turnover is also an amount of £37,210 (2017 : £22,000) relating to grants 

received and redistributed in due course. 
 
 Debtors 
 
 Short term debtors are measured at the transaction price, less any impairment/provision 

for irrecoverable amounts. 
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1. Accounting policies (continued)

Creditors

Short term creditors are measured at the transaction price.

Operating lease agreements

Rentals applicable to operating leases where substantially all of the benefits and risks of
ownership remain with the lessor are charged against income on a straight line basis
over the period of the lease.

The benefits of lease incentives are recognised in the Income Statement over the lease
term on a straight line basis.

Pension costs and other post-retirement benefits

The company participates in the Local Government Pension Scheme, administered by
Essex County Council.  The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the
company.

Pension scheme liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using a projected unit
method and are discounted to their present value using a quality corporate bond rate.

Pension scheme assets are valued at fair value at the balance sheet date.

The pension scheme deficit is recognised in full on the balance sheet. There are no
deferred tax implications.

Provisions for liabilities and charges

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, and it is probable that the company will be
required to settle the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

A provision has been included for the expected reinstatement costs of the company’s
offices at the end of the lease.

The company recognises a provision for the annual leave accrued by employees as a
result of services rendered in the current period, and which employers are entitled to
carry forward.  The provision is measured as the salary cost payable for the period of
absence.
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1. Accounting policies (continued) 
 
 Bank balances 
 
 The company’s bank balances are managed as part of the treasury operations of the 

‘Council’.  Each evening the balances are aggregated with those of the Council and 
placed on overnight deposit. 

 
 Taxation 
 
 Any operating surplus of the company, before FRS 102 defined benefit pension scheme 

adjustments, arising from savings of overhead costs compared to the core funding 
provided by the ‘Council’, is non-taxable.  Taxation is chargeable only on the surplus 
from its activities with other housing organisations. 

 
2. Judgements in applying accounting estimates and key sources of estimation 

uncertainty 
 
 The preparation of the financial statements requires the company’s directors to make 

judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial 
statements. The key judgements and estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk 
of causing material misstatement to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within 
the next financial year are those made in respect of the defined benefit pension scheme. 

 
 Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of complex 

judgements relating to the discount rate used, the rate at which salaries are projected to 
increase, changes in retirement rates and expected returns on pension fund assets. An 
independent firm of consulting actuaries has been engaged to provide expert advice 
regarding the assumptions to be applied in the calculation of the defined pension 
scheme liability, which at 31st March 2018 amounts to £8,368,000. Further details of the 
assumptions made are disclosed in note 14. 

 
3. Turnover 
 
 The turnover and profit before tax are attributable to the one principal activity of the 

company. 
 
 All turnover arose in the United Kingdom. 
 
 An analysis of turnover by class of business is given below: 
 
 

 
 
 
 

      2018      2017
          £              £ 
  
Rendering of services 13,195,259 14,194,990
 =================================================== =================================================== 
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4.  Particulars of employees 
 
 The average number of staff employed by the company during the financial year 
 amounted to: 

 2018 2017
 
Housing          

 
85 89 

Property services 77 76 
Resources 23 26 
Senior management 13 13 
 ---------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------------- 

Number of staff  198 204 
 ============================================== ============================================== 

  
 The aggregate payroll costs of the above were:                                                   

 2018 2017
 £ £ 
 
Wages and salaries  5,340,217 5,371,374
Social security costs 485,645 473,412
Employer pension contributions 784,663 641,528
Redundancy payments  16,485 26,847
 --------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- 

 6,627,010 6,513,161
FRS 102 defined benefit  pension costs adjustment 1,049,000 522,000
 --------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- 

 7,676,010 7,035,161
 ============================================ ============================================ 

  
 The directors’ aggregate remuneration in respect of qualifying services was: 
 

 2018 2017
 £ £ 
  
Directors’ remuneration 40,199 6,655
Directors’ pension contributions 5,446 -
Board expenses 9,854 10,651
 ---------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------------- 

 55,499 17,306
 ====================================== =========================================== 
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5. Operating deficit

The operating deficit is stated after charging:
2018 2017

£ £ 

====================================== =========================================== 

Internal audit relates to services provided by Mazars PSIA Limited. 

6. Taxation on ordinary activities

Analysis of charge in the year
2018 2017

£ £ 
Current tax: 

UK Corporation tax for the year at 19% (2017 : 20%)
- -

Under provision in previous period - (750)
------------------------------------------ ------------------------------------------ 

Total current tax - (750)
===================================== ==================================== 

The company is not subject to tax on its activities performed for the ‘Council’. 
Corporation tax is charged on services provided to other organisations. 

7. Debtors

Auditor’s remuneration -  audit of the financial statements 12,000 13,450 
Internal audit 23,346 23,483 
Operating lease costs: 
 Other operating leases 374,807 416,372 

  2018   2017
  £    £ 

The Council 705,100 1,254,454
Other debtors 8,528 13,336
Prepayments and accrued income 90,297 27,710
VAT - 111,755

-------------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------------------------- 

803,925 1,407,255 
=========================================== ============================================== 
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8.  Creditors:  Amounts falling due within one year 

9.    Other Provisions 

   
  
 The holiday pay provision represents holiday balances accrued as a result of services 

rendered in the current period and which employees are entitled to carry forward.  The 
provision is measured as the salary cost payable for the period of absence. 

 

         2018           2017
              £               £  

  
 PAYE and social security 119,340 114,258
 VAT 13,819 -
 Accruals and deferred income 860,004 1,142,419
 Trade creditors 60,959 95,945
  Other creditors      87,432 76,420 
   -------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------------------ 

 1,141,554 1,429,042 
 ============================================ =============================================== 
   

Provision for building reinstatement:   
Balance brought forward 26,136 23,100 
Movement for year 46,064 3,036 
 ---------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------- 

 72,200 26,136 
                                        ==================================== ==================================== 

 
Environmental provision:  

 

Balance brought forward 4,180 9,120 
Movement for year - (4,940)
 ---------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------- 

 4,180 4,180 
                                        ==================================== ==================================== 

 
Provision for privately leased building venture:  

 

Balance brought forward 4,684 3,502 
Movement for year 1,172 1,182 
 ------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------- 
 5,856 4,684 
                                        ==================================== ======================================

 
Provision for holiday pay:  

 

Balance brought forward 89,753 54,448 
Movement for year 23,711 35,305 
 ------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------- 

 113,464 89,753 
 ====================================== ======================================

   
   
Total provisions carried forward 195,700 124,753 
                                        ==================================== ===================================== 

205



COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED
COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
Notes to the Financial Statements 

Year ended 31st March 2018 
 

- 20 -

10. Commitments under operating leases

At 31st March 2018 the company had total commitments under non-cancellable
operating leases as set out below.

  Land & Buildings  
 2018   2017
   £    £ 

Operating leases which expire: 
Less than 1 year 177,568 187,990 
Within 2 to 5 years 604,054 646,110 
Over 5 years 227,074 269,750 

=======================--------=================== ========================================== 

 Other 
 2018   2017
   £    £ 

Operating leases which expire: 
Less than 1 year 132,035 114,685 
Within 2 to 5 years 401,229 61,089 

==================================== ===================================== 

11. Related party transactions

The company is an Arms Length Management Organisation under the ultimate control
of the ‘Council’.  The company is taking advantage of the exemption not to disclose
related party transactions with the ‘Council’ as the consolidated accounts of the ‘Council’
are publicly available.

Key management personnel received remuneration of £421,204 ( 2017 : £405,143).

12. Company limited by guarantee

The company is limited by guarantee and has no share capital. The liability of the
member, the ‘Council’, in the event of winding-up is limited to £1.
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13. Income and expenditure account 
 

  
        2018     2017
            £          £ 
  
Balance brought forward  (8,838,033) (4,624,549)
Deficit for the year (1,347,011) (674,484)
Actuarial gain/(loss) in respect of the pension scheme 3,053,000 (3,539,000)
 ----------------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------------------------- 

Balance carried forward (7,132,044) (8,838,033)
 ============================================== ============================================== 

  
Being:  
Defined benefit pension scheme reserve (8,368,000) (10,100,000)
Other 1,235,956 1,261,967
 ---------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------------------------- 

 (7,132,044) (8,838,033)
 ============================================== ================================================ 

 
 The overall level of reserves the company can hold is not capped however the council 

can request any HRA or General Fund reserves be repaid. The responsive repair 
reserve is capped at £300k as per schedule 6 of the management agreement, and any 
underspends over this amount in any one year is to be repaid to the council. 

 
 At 31st March 2018 there were committed reserves of £1,077,000 and uncommitted 

reserves of £158,956.                   . 
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14. Pension commitments

(a) The assets and liabilities of the pension scheme and the expected rate of return at 
31st March were: 

  2018  2017 
    % of
 scheme 
  assets    Value 

  % of 
 scheme 
 assets  Value

   £   £ 

Equities 65.8% 20,093,000 68.3% 18,582,000 
Bonds 10.4% 3,193,000 7.8% 2,135,000 
Properties 9.2% 2,823,000 9.7% 2,647,000 
Cash 3.7% 1,119,000 3.0% 819,000 
Alternative assets 6.8% 2,087,000 6.7% 1,814,000 
Other managed funds 4.1% 1,224,000 4.5% 1,209,000 

------------------------- -------------------------
Total market value of assets 30,539,000 27,206,000 

Present value of scheme liabilities (38,907,000) (37,306,000)
------------------------------------------------------------------ ------------------------------------------------------------------ 

Net estimated pension liability (8,368,000) (10,100,000)
===================================================== =================================================== 

(b) Asset and liability reconciliation: 

 2018   2017
  £    £ 

Reconciliation of liabilities 

Liabilities at start of period 37,306,000 28,394,000
Service cost 1,823,000 1,154,000 
Interest cost 1,044,000 1,046,000 
Employee contributions 317,000 304,000 
Change in financial assumptions (1,253,000) 7,492,000 
Change in demographic assumptions - (260,000)
Experience gain on defined benefit obligation - (263,000)
Benefits paid (330,000) (561,000)

---------------------- ---------------------- 
Liabilities at end of period 38,907,000 37,306,000 

=================================================== ======================================================
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14. Pension commitments (continued)

(b) Asset and liability reconciliation: (continued) 

(c) Return on scheme assets: 

The overall return on scheme assets is estimated to be 9% in 2017/18. This figure will 
vary year on year depending on the assumptions made and the underlying distribution 
of the fund’s assets which will vary during the year and as a result it is not appropriate to 
break down the return on assets across the different asset categories. Actual returns on 
scheme assets have been £2,572,000 for the year to 31st March 2018. 

(d)   A full actuarial valuation was carried out for the defined benefit scheme at 31st March 
2016 and updated to 31st March 2018 by Barnett Waddingham using the Projected unit 
method. The major assumptions used by the actuary were: 

  2018  2017
        %         % 

Main assumptions: 
Rate of increase in salaries 3.8 4.2
Rate of increase in pensions in payment 2.3 2.7
Discount rate 2.6 2.8

  2018   2017
£           £ 

Reconciliation of assets 

Assets at start of period 27,206,000 22,559,000
Interest on assets 772,000 842,000 
Return on assets less interest 1,800,000 3,604,000 
Other actuarial losses - (174,000)
Employer contributions 784,000 641,000 
Employee contributions 317,000 304,000 
Benefits received (330,000) (561,000)
Administrative expenses (10,000) (9,000)

-------------------- -------------------- 
Assets at end of period 30,539,000 27,206,000

================================================== =====================================================
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14.  Pension commitments (continued) 
 
(e) Movement in deficit during the year: 
   
       2018        2017
 £  £  
 

At  1st April 2017 (10,100,000) (5,835,000)
Current service cost (1,823,000) (1,154,000)
Net interest cost  (272,000) (204,000)
Actuarial gains/(losses)       (note 14(b)) 3,053,000 (3,539,000)
Employer contributions 784,000 641,000
Administrative costs  (10,000) (9,000)
             ----------------------------------------------------           ------------------------------------------------------- 

At  31st March 2018 (8,368,000) (10,100,000)
  ============================================== ================================================ 

  
 The Council supports the annual pension contributions due from Colchester Borough 

Homes, including the back funding, through the management fee. 
  

FRS 102 disclosures are not on the same basis as the triennial actuarial review of the 
pension fund valuation and the two are for different purposes. These disclosures are a 
one off assessment at the year end for accounting disclosure purposes. The FRS 102 
calculations are more prescriptive. At the current time they emphasise the liabilities and 
produce a balance sheet position worse than the triennial valuation position.  
 
While the figure is substantial it should be remembered that: 

 
• It is not an immediate deficit that has to be met now. The sum is the current 

assessment taking a long term view of the future liabilities both for existing 
pensioners and current employees who are accruing pension entitlement. 

 
• It is not a problem unique to Colchester Borough Homes or indeed ALMOs 

generally. There is a national problem for pension funds both private and public 
sector. 

 
• The Essex County Council Pension Fund is regularly reviewed and additional 

contributions have already been initiated to address the problem over a period of 
years. 
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14.  Pension commitments (continued) 
 

(f) Analysis of the amount charged to the income and expenditure account:  
 

  2018   2017
          £              £  

 
Current service cost  1,823,000 1,154,000 
Employer contributions (784,000) (641,000) 
Administration Costs  10,000 9,000 
             --------------------------------------------            -------------------------------------------------- 

FRS 102 adjustment 1,049,000 522,000 
   ========================================== ============================================ 

 
 Analysis of amounts charged to finance costs:  
 

      2018          2017
          £  £ 

 
Other finance costs: expected return on assets in 
the scheme 772,000 842,000 
Other finance costs: interest costs (1,044,000) (1,046,000) 
              ---------------------------------------------------            --------------------------------------------------- 

Net cost (272,000) (204,000)
   ============================================ ============================================== 

  
During the year to 31 March 2018 the employer contribution rate was 16.6%.  

 
(g) Life assumptions: 
 

          2018            2017
Life expectancy:    

 
 Current pensioner aged 65  
  male 22.2 22.1
 female 24.7 24.6

 
 Future pensioner aged 65 in 20 years’ time  
  male 24.4 24.3
 female 27.0 26.9
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15. Financial Instruments

2018  2017
        £    £ 

Financial assets which are debt instruments 
measured at amortised cost £ 713,628 £ 1,267,790 

========================================== ============================================== 

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost £ 998,895 £ 1,301,784 
========================================== ============================================== 

Financial assets measured at amortised cost comprise balances due from the Council 
and other debtors. 

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost comprise trade creditors, other creditors 
and accruals.
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The following pages do not form part of the statutory financial statements 
which are the subject of the independent auditor's report on pages 6 to 8.
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             £            £            £    
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Turnover 
Management fee  9,253,561 8,947,948
Property services and recharges  3,321,478 4,913,996
Grant income  37,210 22,000
Other income  583,010 311,046
  --------------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------------------------  

  13,195,259 14,194,990
Operating costs (before FRS 102 defined  
benefit pension scheme adjustment) 
Staff costs 6,627,010  6,513,161
Other operating charges 6,601,877  7,638,233
 ---------------------------------------------------  -------------------------------------------------------- 

  13,228,887 14,151,394
  ------------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------------------- 

Operating (deficit)/surplus  (33,628) 43,596
Interest on management fee 7,617 7,170
 -------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------------------- 

(Deficit)/surplus on ordinary activities (26,011) 50,766
FRS 102 defined benefit pension scheme
staff cost adjustments (1,049,000) (522,000)
FRS 102 defined benefit pension scheme
interest adjustment (272,000) (204,000)
 --------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- 

Deficit on ordinary activities post FRS 102
defined benefit pension scheme 
adjustment and pre taxation (1,347,011) (675,234)
 ============================================== =============================================  
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             £            £            £    
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Staff costs 
Salaries 5,340,217  5,371,374
Employers national insurance contributions 485,645  473,412
Staff pension contributions 784,663  641,528
Redundancy payments  16,485  26,847
 ----------------------------------------------------  ---------------------------------------------------- 

  6,627,010 6,513,161
FRS 102 pension costs adjustment   1,049,000 522,000
  -------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------------------- 

  7,676,010 7,035,161
  ============================================ ============================================== 

Other operating charges 
Establishment expenses: 
Rent, rates, water and management fees 279,382  304,092
Light and heat 9,892  9,519
Insurance 106,249  109,284
Repairs and maintenance 4,613  2,883
Other establishment expenses 127,100  64,710
 --------------------------------------------------  -------------------------------------------------- 

 527,236 490,488
  
General expenses: 
Travel and subsistence  13,586  13,819
Telephone 120,626  71,685
Publicity, printing, postage and stationery 79,901  113,995
Staff subscriptions 7,370  7,848
Staff training 103,666  89,628
Other staff related expenses 21,064  22,470
Recruitment 7,311  4,251
Grants 34,766  22,000
Catering 9,312  9,213
Support services 554,464  580,446
Internal auditors remuneration 23,346  23,483
Auditors remuneration 12,000  13,450
Accreditation expenses 4,127  5,962
Consultancy, support and subcontract costs 23,736  26,088
Bad debts -  -
Materials, repairs and equipment 436,261  437,903
Motor expenses 204,774  256,987
Sub contractors 4,202,591  5,348,779
Working smarter project 213,752  50,598
Assure -  45,430
Provisions 825  2,649
 ----------------------------------------------  -------------------------------------------------- 

  6,073,478 7,146,684
Financial costs: 
Bank charges  1,163 1,061
  -------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- 

  6,601,877 7,638,233
  ============================================ =========================================== 
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1. Scope of Responsibility

Colchester Borough Homes (CBH), formed in October 2003, is the Arms-Length
Management Organisation of Colchester Borough Council (CBC), responsible for the
management and maintenance of the Council's homes and transferred general fund
services. In 2017/18, these were primarily financed from the Council through a
Management Fee of £9,253,561. This fee also includes Property Services professional
fees, Corporate Facilities management fee and CBH Revenue work costs. Property
Services also manages capital and revenue work costs paid directly by CBC, totalling
£4,669,200.

There is a formally binding Management Agreement between the Council and CBH in
place until August 2023, with a review in 2020. This clearly sets out the governance
arrangements that should apply between the two parties and complies with national best
practice.

CBH is managed by a Board comprising at least three Council nominees, three tenants,
three independent members and the Chief Executive.  The Memorandum and Articles of
Association were revised and approved in 2017 to change the number of members on
the Board, and to give the flexibility to add member(s) of the Executive Management
Team. In discharging this overall responsibility, Colchester Borough Homes is
responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs and
facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, which includes arrangements for the
management of risk. Three committees reported directly to the Board: Finance & Audit,
Governance & Remuneration and Operations.  Additionally, there is also a Business
Opportunities Panel. These all have formal, approved terms of reference, which have
been reviewed biennially.

2. The Purpose of the Governance Framework

Good governance leads to good management, good performance, good stewardship,
good public engagement and ultimately good outcomes for citizens and the service user.
Good governance enables the Company to pursue its vision effectively, as well as
underpinning that vision with mechanisms for control and management of risk.

The governance framework comprises the systems, processes, culture and values by
which the Company is directed and controlled and its activities through which it accounts
to, engages with and serves the community. It enables the Company to monitor the
achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led
to the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services.

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to
manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies,
aims and objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable, not absolute, assurance
of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process,
designed to:

• identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the Company’s policies, aims
and objectives

• to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they
be realised
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• to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.

The governance framework has been in place at Colchester Borough Homes for the year 
ended 31 March 2018 and up to the date of approval of the financial statements of 
accounts. 

Colchester Borough Homes exercises control through: 

• Corporate governance arrangements outlined in the Memorandum & Articles of
Association, the Code of Governance and the Standing Financial Instructions.

• The employment of suitably qualified and experienced staff to take responsibility
for key areas of the business. This is supported by a formal annual appraisal
system.

• The preparation of forecasts and budgets that allow the committees and the
executive officers to monitor the key business risks and financial objectives, and
identify variances arising during the monthly reporting cycle.

• Business planning is based on an approved Strategic Plan that sets out key
actions to enable CBH to achieve its goals for the ensuing year (effective from 1
April 2018). This complements the Medium Term Delivery Plan that was approved
by CBC. This cascades through supporting Service Plans and individual
performance appraisals. The key aims of the new Strategic Plan are:

 Customer Plan
o To deliver services that reflects the needs and diversity of our

customers
o To make it easy for customers to do business with us
o To improve Customer Satisfaction

 Value for Money, Technology and Investment Plan
o To invest money in a way that helps customers and communities
o To use technology to do things better
o To get the most for the money we spend

 People Plan
o To support our staff to do the best job possible
o To make CBH a great place to work

 Business Development Plan
o To protect services by looking after the future of the business
o To bring in extra income to invest in our services
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 Leadership Plan 

o To show we can be trusted to do what say we will 
o To be clear about our organisational goals and how to achieve 

them 

 
 Community Plan 

o To raise awareness of our work in the community 
o To bring together organisations and residents for the benefit of the 

community 

 
 The Executive Management and the Board will carry out regular reviews of performance 

against objectives and targets detailed in the Strategic Plan. 
 
3.   Review of Effectiveness 
 
 Colchester Borough Homes conducts, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of 

its governance framework, including the system of internal control. The review of 
effectiveness is informed by the work of the Executive Directors and Senior Management 
Team within the Company, who have responsibility for the development and maintenance 
of the governance environment. This is supported by the Internal Audit’s annual report, 
and by comments made by external auditors and other review agencies and 
inspectorates. 

 
 The company has produced a Strategic Plan, setting out the direction of the company 

until 2022.  This now complements the Medium Term Delivery Plan which also runs until 
2022. From the Delivery Plan, Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) and projects are 
produced, relating to the Company’s obligations to provide core services to the Council. A 
performance and scrutiny framework is in place to review and monitor delivery against 
these. This is a combination of Company, tenants and CBC scrutiny as well as 
benchmarking against other providers. The Strategic Plan is a wider document and sets 
out an overarching framework within which CBH can develop and improve as a well-
established organisation both within the Council’s service delivery arrangements and in 
obtaining contract work for other clients.  

 
 CBH’s internal arrangements for ensuring the effectiveness of its governance 

arrangements during the year consisted of: 
 

• The Operations Committee receiving quarterly performance reports. 
(Committee dissolved in May 2018, to be replaced by a Resident Services 
Panel from July 2018) 

• The Governance & Remuneration Committee monitoring the implementation 
of the Governance Action Plan and significant staffing matters. (Committee 
dissolved in March 2018, and replaced by an Appointments and 
Remuneration Committee from 1 April 2018.  Governance matters to be dealt 
with by Board). 
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• The Finance & Audit Committee considering Internal Audit reports throughout 
the year, reviewing how well strategic risks are identified and managed, and 
monitoring financial performance against budgets. 

• The Finance & Audit Committee monitoring the regular review of key policies 
against an agreed policy review timetable. 

 
 As stated above, CBH reviewed its governance arrangements during the year and 

approved the changes to take effect from 1 April 2018. CBH will ensure that its measures 
to monitor the effectiveness of its governance arrangements remain in place and reflect 
best practice and are appropriate to oversee the approved Strategic Plan and Medium 
Term Delivery Plan. 

 
 Internal Audit 
 

Internal Audit is delivered through a contract with Mazars LLP (Mazars). A five-year risk-
based Strategic Audit Plan was initially approved by the Finance and Audit Committee in 
June 2016, following the successful re-appointment of Mazars in April 2016. This is 
refreshed on an annual basis in consultation with the Directors Management Team. The 
updated plan was approved by the Finance & Audit Committee in March 2018.   

 
The audit plan was delivered, with reports issued to senior managers at the conclusion of 
each audit highlighting internal control weaknesses identified and the actions required to 
address them. Recommendations were also reviewed to ensure they were implemented 
properly by the due date. Reports were presented to each Finance & Audit Committee of 
progress against the audit plan as well as the status of outstanding recommendations.  

 
The Head of Internal Audit prepares an annual Head of Internal Audit Opinion (HOIA) 
report that includes an overall opinion on CBH’s internal control environment based on 
the results of the audit work completed. This was considered by the June 2018 Finance & 
Audit Committee. 

 
Internal Audit performance is subject to annual review by the external auditor of CBH in 
order that they can place reliance on its audit work. The Company provided the Council 
with the following assurance regarding the robustness of its governance arrangements 
during the year: 

 
• Internal Audit reports 

• Summary results of Manager Assurance Statements 

• The Annual Report, which incorporates the Head of Internal Audit’s annual report 
(including an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s systems of internal 
control) 
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External Audit 

External Audit of the annual financial statements is undertaken by Scrutton Bland LLP 
with a view to expressing an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with 
applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK). 

In carrying out the audit work, Scrutton Bland LLP will consider whether the financial 
statements are free from ‘material misstatement’. Materiality is an expression of the 
relative significance of a particular matter in the context of the financial statements as a 
whole. An item will normally be considered material if its omission would reasonably 
influence the decisions of those using the financial statements.   

Scrutton Bland LLP will issue a report to management at the conclusion of the audit work. 
This will include a management letter that will contain comments and recommendations 
for improvements in operations and internal control in respect of the Company. This will 
be discussed with management prior to the issue of the final report. The report will also 
include details of significant adjusted and unadjusted items that arise as a result of the 
audit work.  

The Finance & Audit Committee considers the external auditor’s report and recommends 
adoption of the financial statements to the Board. 

4. Significant Governance Issues from 2016/17 - Update

Insurances
In the 2016/17 Annual Report the key issue with the insurance audit was regarding the
timing of the renewal process.  As a consequence of the audit, we commenced the
annual process for 2017/18 a month earlier than previously to ensure adequate review
and approval of the insurances recommended by the broker were both fit for purpose and
value for money.

Payroll
CBC provide the payroll function on behalf of CBH.  In April 2016, CBC commenced the
transition to a new system, which resulted in the short-term use of a payroll bureau
system whilst the new system was being developed.  The system is now embedded with
appropriate control frameworks now established which are reviewed thoroughly by
Internal Audit.

5. Significant Governance Issues 2017/18 – Nothing to Report

CBH is pleased to report that it received Full Assurance for its Budgetary Control, and
Substantial Assurance on the remaining areas reviewed.

CBH has an effective Risk Management Strategy in place where the Board and Finance
& Audit Committee review the Strategic Risk Register at each meeting and gives
members a solid foundation for effective decision making.  In the year, an emerging risk
register was produced for the first time, that allows for pro-active planning and mitigations
to be put in place where appropriate.  The strategy provides a solid foundation for
communicating the importance of risk to staff and is key to strong governance on risk
management.
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Signed: 
(Chair of the Board) 

Signed: 
(Chair of the Finance & Audit Committee) 

Signed: 
(Chief Executive Officer) 
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REPORT TO COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES BOARD 

DATE: 20 June 2018 

TIME: 5:30pm 

VENUE: Room 1, Rowan House 

AGENDA ITEM: 15. 

SUBJECT: Code of Governance 

REPORT BY: Owen Howell, Board Assurance Officer 
 (01206) 282518  
  owen.howell@cbhomes.org.uk 

FOR APPROVAL 

1. Decision Required

1.1 Board is asked to approve the redrafted Code of Governance - Appendix 1. 

2. Purpose of Report

2.1 To review the Code of Governance and present it to Board for approval. This 
new Code has been reviewed by the Governance & Remuneration (G&R) 
Committee who recommend it to Board for their approval. 

3. Background & Content

3.1 The 2017 Code of Governance was not just an amended version of the 2016 
Code. The production of the latest principles of good governance from the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) in 2016 
meant that a full rewrite of CBH’s Code of Governance was necessary. The 
2016 principles were comprehensively rewritten and are not comparable with 
the previous principles from 2007. The sub-principles were greatly expanded 
and cover far more detail than those from 2007.  

3.2 Owing to the full review in 2017 bringing our Code of Governance into line 
with the current CIPFA principles, it is not proposed to substantially alter the 
Code at this time, however some alterations are required to reflect the 
changes in our corporate documents. The most significant change has been 
the inception of the CBH Strategic Plan, and the delivery plans associated 
with it. 

The Strategic Plan and its delivery plans have replaced a number of 
strategies and plans, and this has been reflected in changes to the supporting 
documents which are included within the code. Where these changes have 
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been recommended, they have been noted on the updated Code, found at 
Appendix 1. 

  
3.3 The second set of changes made to the Code of Governance relate to the 

restructuring of our Board’s governance arrangements, with the dissolution of 
the Governance & Remuneration (G&R) Committee and Operations 
Committee. G&R Committee has been replaced by Appointments & 
Remuneration (A&R) Committee, whilst Operations Committee’s remit has 
been split: 

 Rolling updates and exception reporting to the Board of KPIs and 
performance information 

 Operational policy approval at DMT level (with Board retaining the right 
to examine any policy it wishes to, and to exercise itself any powers 
delegated to DMT) 

 Scrutiny of operational performance and procedures to be carried out 
by the newly-formed Resident Panel 

These changes have been reflected in the redrafting of the Code of 
Governance and include an updating of the Terms of Reference for the 
Committees and Panels (which are supporting documents within the Code). 

  
3.4 Several changes to note are: 

 References to G&R Committee replaced by references to A&R Committee. 
 References to Operations Committee have been removed. 
 Inclusion of references to Resident Panel Terms of Reference as a 

supporting document to show compliance with Principles A, B and F. 
 Replacement of Value for Money Strategy with Value for Money Plan 

(under Principle A). 
 Customer Service Strategy replaced by Customer Plan (under Principle B). 
 Trading Strategy superseded by Business Development Plan (Principle D). 
 HR Strategy has been replaced with the People Plan (Principle E) 
 The Leadership Plan has been included within Principle E, as a supporting 

document for Principle E’s sub-principles 1, 2, 3, 10, 11 and 13.  
 New Fire Safety Policy included under Principle E, as evidence of 

compliance with the final sub-principle (Ensuring arrangements are in place 
to maintain the health and wellbeing of the workforce)  

  
3.5 If Members wish to be given copies of the documents recommended for 

addition at 3.4, these will be made available and sent out on request.  
  
3.6 Please note that documents on the Code of Governance can be kept 

confidential, should they contain content that is commercially sensitive. 
Current documents kept confidential include the Trading Strategy and 
Protocol, and the Management Agreement. Board Members are asked to 
consider whether there are other documents listed within the Code which 
should be kept confidential. Board will then vote on whether to keep any 
further documents confidential. 

  
4. Risk Management 
  
4.1 The production of, and adherence to, a comprehensive Code of Governance 

is an important way to mitigate a wide range of risks for the Company. It also 
ensures that risks are effectively identified and monitored. 
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5. HR and Health & Safety Implications 
  
5.1 The Code of Governance has no direct HR implications relating to staffing 

levels. However, the importance of Board oversight on issues such as staff 
development and Health & Safety management is significant. The Code of 
Governance ensures that policies and strategies are in place to show 
members of staff what is expected of them and details how the Company will 
support them, help them develop and safeguard them at work. 

  
6. Legal Implications 
  
6.1 Adherence to a strong and clear Code of Governance can help ensure that 

Board Members carry out their duties and take heed of their liabilities as 
directors. The documents which are included on the Code are vital to ensure 
that Board Members and members of staff adhere to ethical values, statutory 
requirements and the rule of law.  

  
7. Financial Implications 
  
7.1 No specific implications, but a strong Code of Governance assists officers and 

Board Members in avoiding unnecessary financial losses. 
  
8. Value for Money 
  
8.1 None. 
  
9. Equality & Diversity Implications 
  
9.1 The Code emphasises the commitment by Colchester Borough Homes to 

ensuring fair access to our services and an awareness of the importance of 
equality & diversity considerations in decision making and service provision. 

  
10. 
 
10.1 

Residents at the Heart 
 
The Code of Governance shows our commitment, as a Company, to good 
governance and shows our service users and the general public what they 
can expect from us as an organization. The Code and the documents 
contained within it show how we are committed to providing the best possible 
services by ensuring CBH is an effectively- and ethically-run company. 

  
11. 
 
11.1 
 
12. 
 
12.1 

Decision Required? 
 
YES: Approval required 
 
Appendices 
 
Appendix 1 – Draft 2018 Code of Governance 
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Glossary 

Business 
Opportunities 
Panel 

A Panel which examines potential trading opportunities. The 
majority of Members of this panel are serving Board Members. 
Sometimes referred to as ‘BOP.’ 

CIPFA Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy. A 
professional institute for accountants working in the public 
sector. 

Finance & 
Audit 
Committee 

An official Board Committee which chiefly scrutinizes issues 
regarding the finances of Colchester Borough Homes, as well as 
monitoring the Company Strategic Risk Register. Possesses 
delegated powers to make certain decisions within these fields. 
Sometimes referred to as ‘F&A.’  

Governance & 
Remuneration 
Committee 

An official Board Committee which chiefly scrutinizes 
governance and HR issues. Possesses delegated powers to 
make certain decisions within these fields. Sometimes referred 
to as ‘G&R.’ 

Key 
Performance 
Indicators 
(KPIs) 

The set of quantifiable measures which the Company uses to 
gauge and compare performance in meeting strategic and 
operational goals and standards. These are also used to 
compare our performance with that of other housing providers. 

Memorandum 
and Articles of 
Association 

The Constitution of Colchester Borough Homes, detailing the 
responsibilities and powers of Board Members, the obligations 
and powers of the Company and the objects of the Company. 

Operations 
Committee 

An official Board Committee which chiefly scrutinizes operational 
matters within the Company and monitors performance 
measured against KPIs. Possesses delegated powers to make 
certain decisions within these fields. Sometimes referred to as 
‘Ops.’ 

Scheme of 
Delegation 

A document detailing where responsibilities and/or authority for 
authorizing certain actions lie within an organization. 

SOLACE Society of Local Authority Chief Executives and Senior 
Managers. A representative body for senior managers working 
within local government. 
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1. Introduction & purpose 

Governance is about how organisations ensure that they are doing the right 
things, in the right way, for the right people, in a timely, inclusive, open, honest 
and accountable manner. 
 
Governance comprises the systems and processes, and culture and values, by 
which organisations are directed and controlled and through which they account 
to, engage with and, where appropriate, provide leadership to their communities. 
 
At Colchester Borough Homes we recognise that: 

 Good governance leads to good management, good performance, good 
stewardship of an organisation’s money, good public engagement and, 
ultimately, good outcomes for citizens and service users; 

 Good governance enables organisations to pursue their visions in an effective 
manner, as well as underpinning their visions with appropriate mechanisms 
for control and management of risk; 

 All organisations should aim to meet the highest standards, and 
governance arrangements should not only be sound but also be 
seen to be sound. 

 
We are committed to applying the core principles set out in the SOLACE / CIPFA 
Good Governance Framework (2016) of: 

 Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical 
values, and respecting the rule of law. 

 Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement. 
 Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and 

environmental benefits. 
 Determining the interventions necessary to optimize the achievement of the 

intended outcomes. 
 Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and 

the individuals within it. 
 Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong 

public financial management. 
 Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver 

effective accountability. 
 

The key principles, policies and strategies that set out the way Colchester Borough 
Homes will conduct its overall governance arrangements are outlined below. 
 
Colchester Borough Homes is mindful of its duty to promote good governance for 
its tenants & leaseholders and the wider community of Colchester. The Company 
has a range of policies and governance documents in place to achieve this, 
alongside its Memorandum 
& Articles of Association and the Management Agreement with Colchester 
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Borough Council. 
The purpose of this Code of Governance, therefore, is to provide a simple 
document with links to relevant documents relating to governance, which are 
available free of charge on the Company's website: 
http://www.cbhomes.org.uk/governance 
 
All documents within this Code of Governance are reserved for the approval of the 
full Board of Colchester Borough Homes.  
 
For further information on Colchester Borough Homes Governance arrangements, 
please contact: 
 
Owen Howell 
Board Assurance Officer Colchester Borough Homes Rowan House,  
33 Sheepen Road Colchester CO3 3WG 
  (01206) 282518 
  owen.howell@cbhomes.org.uk 
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2. Code of Governance 

Principle Sub-principles CBH documents 

Principle A 

Behaving with 
integrity, 
demonstrating 
strong commitment 
to ethical values, 
and respecting the 
rule of law. 
 
Colchester Borough 
Homes are 
accountable not only 
for how much we 
spend, but also for 
how we use the 
resources under our 
stewardship. This 
includes 
accountability for 
outputs, both positive 
and negative, and for 
the outcomes we 
have achieved. In 
addition, we have an 
overarching 
responsibility to serve 
the public interest in 
adhering to the 
requirements of 
legislation and 
government policies.  

• Ensuring members and officers behave with integrity and lead a culture where 
acting in the public interest is visibly and consistently demonstrated, thereby 
protecting the reputation of the organization. 

• Ensuring members take the lead in establishing specific standard operating 
principles or values for the organisation and its staff and that they are 
communicated and understood. These should build on the Seven Principles of 
Public Life (the Nolan Principles)  

• Leading by example and using the above standard operating principles or 
values as a framework for decision making and other actions. 

• Demonstrating, communicating and embedding the standard operating 
principles or values as a framework for decision making and other actions. 

• Seeking to establish, monitor and maintain the Company’s ethical standards 
and performance. 

• Underpinning personal behaviour with ethical values and ensuring they 
permeate all aspects of the Company’s culture and operation. 

• Developing and maintaining robust policies and procedures which place 
emphasis on agreed ethical values. 

• Ensuring that external providers of services on behalf of the organisation are 
required to act with integrity and in compliance with ethical standards expected 
by the organisation  

• Ensuring members and staff demonstrate a strong commitment to the rule of 
law as well as adhering to relevant laws and regulations. 

• Creating the conditions to ensure that the statutory officers, other key post 
holders, and members, are able to fulfil their responsibilities in accordance with 
legislative and regulatory requirements. 

• Striving to optimize the use of the full powers available for the benefit of 
citizens, communities and other stakeholders. 

 Code of Governance 

 Board Member Code of 
Conduct 

 Board Member Expenses 
Scheme 

 Board Member Register 
of Interests 

 Staff Code of Conduct 

 Hospitality & Gifts Policy 

 Equality Strategy 

 Business 
Opportunities 
Panel terms of 
reference 

 Finance & Audit 
Committee terms 
of reference 

 Governance 
Appointments & 
Remuneration 
Committee terms of 
reference 

 Operations Committee 
Resident Panel terms of 
reference 

 Value for money strategy Commented [OH1]: Replaced by VFM Plan (below) 

232



Building Trust • Delivering Tenant Led Services • Commitment to our Communities 
 Delivering Professional Services • Providing Value for Money 

15a. Cbh Code Of Governance - June 2018CBH Code Of Governance - June 2017                7 

Principle Sub-principles CBH documents 

It is essential that, as a 
whole, the Company 
can demonstrate the 
appropriateness of all 
our actions across all 
activities and have 
mechanisms in place to 
encourage and enforce 
adherence to ethical 
values and to respect 
the rule of law. 

 Value for money Plan 

 Anti-fraud & Corruption 
Policy 

 Standing Financial 
Instructions 

 Contract Procedure 
Rules 

Principle B 
Ensuring openness 
and comprehensive 
stakeholder 
engagement. 
 
Colchester Borough 
Homes is run for the 
public good and 
therefore should 
ensure openness in 
our activities. Clear, 
trusted channels of 
communication and 
consultation should be 
used to engage 
effectively with all 
stakeholders, such as 
individual 
citizens/service users, 
and institutional 
stakeholders such as 

• Ensuring an open culture through demonstrating, documenting and 
communicating the Company’s commitment to openness. 

• Making decisions that are open about actions, plans, resource use, forecasts, 
outputs and outcomes. The presumption is for openness. If that is not the 
case, a justification for the reasoning for keeping a decision confidential should 
be provided.  

• Providing clear reasoning and evidence for decisions in both public records 
and explanations to stakeholders and being explicit about the criteria, rationale 
and considerations used. In due course, ensuring that the impact and 
consequences of those decisions are clear.  

• Using formal and informal consultation and engagement to determine the most 
appropriate and effective interventions/ courses of action.  

NB institutional stakeholders are the other organisations that local government 
needs to work with to improve services and outcomes (such as commercial 
partners and suppliers as well as other public or third sector organisations) or 
organisations to which they are accountable.  

• Effectively engaging with institutional stakeholders to ensure that the purpose, 
objectives and intended outcomes for each stakeholder relationship are clear 
so that outcomes are achieved successfully and sustainably.  

• Developing formal and informal partnerships to allow for resources to be used 

• Annual report 
• Anti-fraud & Corruption 

Policy  
• Risk Management Policy & 

Strategy 
• Whistleblowing Policy 
• Safeguarding Policy 
• Information & 

cConfidentiality pPolicy 
• Resident insight & 

engagement strategy 
• Communication strategy 
• Complaints policy 
• Customer service strategy 
• Customer Plan 
• Resident Panel Terms of 

Reference 

Commented [OH2]: Replaced by the Customer Plan (below) 
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Principle Sub-principles CBH documents 

Colchester Borough 
Council.  
 

more efficiently and outcomes achieved more effectively.  
• Ensuring that partnerships are based on:  

I. trust and shared values 
II. a shared commitment to change 
III. a culture that promotes and accepts challenge among partners 

and that the added value of partnership working is explicit  

 Establishing clear policy on the type of issues that the Company will 
meaningfully consult with or involve communities, individual citizens, service 
users and other stakeholders to ensure that service (or other) provision is 
contributing towards the achievement of intended outcomes  

 Ensuring that communication methods are effective and that members and 
officers are clear about their roles with regard to community engagement.  

 Encouraging, collecting and evaluating the views and experiences of 
communities, citizens, service users and organizations of different 
backgrounds including reference to future needs.  

 Implementing effective feedback mechanisms in order to demonstrate how 
views have been taken into account.  

 Balancing feedback from more active stakeholder groups with other 
stakeholder groups to ensure inclusivity.  

Taking account of the impact of decisions on future generations of tax payers and 
service users. 

Principle C 
Defining outcomes 
in terms of 
sustainable 
economic, social, 
and environmental 
benefits.  

• Having a clear vision, which is an agreed formal statement of the Company’s 
purpose and intended outcomes containing appropriate performance 
indicators, which provide the basis for the Company’s overall strategy, 
planning and other decisions.  

• Specifying the intended impact on, or changes for, stakeholders including 
citizens and service users. It could be immediately or over the course of a 
year or longer.  

• CBH Vision, Mission and 
Values 

• Management Agreement 
(Confidential) 

• Memorandum & Articles of 
Association 

• Medium Term Delivery Plan 
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Principle Sub-principles CBH documents 

The long-term 
nature and impact of 
many of the 
Company’s 
responsibilities 
mean that it should 
define and plan 
outcomes and that 
these should be 
sustainable. 
Decisions should 
further the 
Company’s purpose, 
contribute to 
intended benefits 
and outcomes, and 
remain within the 
limits of authority 
and resources. Input 
from all groups of 
stakeholders, 
including citizens, 
service users, and 
institutional 
stakeholders, is vital 
to the success of 
this process and in 
balancing competing 
demands when 
determining priorities 
for the finite 
resources available.  
 

• Delivering defined outcomes on a sustainable basis within the resources that 
will be available.  

• Identifying and managing risks to the achievement of outcomes. 
• Managing service users’ expectations effectively with regard to determining 

priorities and making the best use of the resources available.  
• Considering and balancing the combined economic, social and environmental 

impact of policies and plans when taking decisions about service provision.  
• Taking a longer-term view with regard to decision making, taking account of 

risk and acting transparently where there are potential conflicts between the 
Company’s intended outcomes and short-term factors such as the political 
cycle or financial constraints.  

• Determining the wider public interest associated with balancing conflicting 
interests between achieving the various economic, social and environmental 
benefits, through consultation where possible, in order to ensure appropriate 
trade-offs.  

• Ensuring fair access to services. 

• Equality Strategy 
• Asset management strategy 
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Principle Sub-principles CBH documents 

Principle D 
Determining the 
interventions 
necessary to 
optimize the 
achievement of 
the intended 
outcomes.  

The Company achieves 
its intended outcomes 
by providing a mixture 
of legal, regulatory, and 
practical interventions 
(courses of action). 
Determining the right 
mix of these courses of 
action is a critically 
important strategic 
choice that the 
Company has to make 
to ensure intended 
outcomes are 
achieved. Robust 
decision-making 
mechanisms are 
needed to ensure that 
defined outcomes can 
be achieved in a way 
that provides the best 
trade-off between the 
various types of 
resource inputs while 

• Ensuring decision makers receive objective and rigorous analysis of a variety
of options indicating how intended outcomes would be achieved and
associated risks. Therefore ensuring best value is achieved however services
are provided.

• Considering feedback from citizens and service users when making decisions
about service improvements or where services are no longer required in order
to prioritize competing demands within limited resources available including
people, skills, land and assets and bearing in mind future impacts.

• Establishing and implementing robust planning and control cycles that cover
strategic and operational plans, priorities and targets.

• Engaging with internal and external stakeholders in determining how services
and other courses of action should be planned and delivered.

• Considering and monitoring risks facing each partner when working
collaboratively, including shared risks.

• Ensuring arrangements are flexible and agile so that the mechanisms for
delivering goods and services can be adapted to changing circumstances.

• Establishing appropriate key performance indicators (KPIs) as part of the
planning process in order to identify how the performance of services and
projects is to be measured.

• Ensuring capacity exists to generate the information required to review service
quality regularly.

• Preparing budgets in accordance with objectives, strategies and the medium
term financial plan.

• Informing medium and long term resource planning by drawing up realistic
estimates of revenue and capital expenditure aimed at developing a
sustainable funding strategy

• Ensuring the medium term financial strategy integrates and balances service
priorities, affordability and other resource constraints.

• Scheme of Delegation
• Medium Term Delivery Plan
• Annual Budgets
• Trading protocol

(Confidential)
• Trading strategy

(Confidential) 
• Business Development Plan

Commented [OH3]: Replaced by the Business Development 
Plan. 

Commented [OH4]: A delivery plan for the Strategic Plan. 
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Principle Sub-principles CBH documents 

still enabling effective & 
efficient operations. 
 
Decisions made need 
to be reviewed 
frequently to ensure 
that achievement of 
outcomes is optimised.  
 

• Ensuring the budgeting process is all-inclusive, taking into account the full 
cost of operations over the medium and longer term.  

• Ensuring the medium term financial strategy sets the context for ongoing 
decisions on significant delivery issues or responses to changes in the 
external environment that may arise during the budgetary period in order for 
outcomes to be achieved while optimizing resource usage.  

• Ensuring the achievement of ‘social value’ through service planning and 
commissioning. 

Principle E 

Developing the 

Company’s 

capacity, including 
the capability of its 
leadership and the 
individuals within it.  

Appropriate structures 
and leadership is 
required, as well as 
people with the right 
skills, appropriate 
qualifications and 
mindset, to operate 
efficiently and 
effectively and achieve 
intended outcomes 
within the specified 
periods.  

A public sector 
organisation must 
ensure that it has both 

• Making sure Board Members and staff have the skills, knowledge, experience 
and resources they need to perform well in their roles. 

• Developing the capability of people and evaluating their performance, 
both as individuals and as a group. 

• Encouraging new talent for membership of the Company so that best use can 
be made of individuals’ skills and resources for balancing continuity and 
renewal. 

• Reviewing operations, performance and use of assets on a regular basis to 
ensure their continuing effectiveness.  

• Improving resource use through appropriate application of techniques such as 
benchmarking and other options in order to determine how resources are 
allocated so that defined outcomes are achieved effectively and efficiently.  

• Recognizing the benefits of partnerships and collaborative working where 
added value can be achieved.  

• Developing and maintaining an effective workforce plan to enhance the 
strategic allocation of resources.  

• Developing protocols to ensure that elected and appointed leaders negotiate 
with each other regarding their respective roles early on in the relationship 
and that a shared understanding of roles and objectives is maintained.  

• Publishing a statement that specifies the types of decisions that are delegated 
and those reserved for the collective decision making of the governing body.  

• Board Member Recruitment 
Policy 

• Board Member Code of 
Conduct 

• HR Strategy 
• People Plan 
• Leadership Plan 
• Asset Management Strategy 
• Management Agreement 

(confidential) 
• Scheme of Delegation 
• Strategic Health & Safety 

Policy 
• Health & Safety Policy 

Statement 
• Fire Safety Policy 
• Wellbeing Plan 
• Residents Panel Terms of 

Reference 

Commented [OH5]: Superseded by the People Plan 

Commented [OH6]: Strategic Plan delivery plan – covers 
development of Board and management’s leadership 
functions. 

Commented [OH7]: A new policy. Previously covered under 
the Health & Safety Policy but now stand-alone, to emphasise 
its importance. 

Commented [OH8]: Hybrid scrutiny body giving involved 
residents direct access to Board and ability to participate in 
oversight of core service delivery. Also to be used to give skills 
and training to potential future Board Members. 
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Principle Sub-principles CBH documents 

the capacity to fulfil its 
own mandate and to 
make certain that there 
are policies in place to 
guarantee that its 
management has the 
operational capacity for 
the organisation as a 
whole. Because both 
individuals and the 
environment in which 
Colchester Borough 
Homes operates will 
change over time, there 
will be a continuous 
need to develop our 
capacity as well as the 
skills and experience of 
individual staff 
members.  

Leadership in the 
Company is 
strengthened by the 
participation of people 
with many different 
types of backgrounds, 
reflecting the structure 
and diversity of 
communities. 

• Ensuring the Board and the Chief Executive have clearly defined and
distinctive leadership roles within a structure whereby the chief executive
leads in implementing strategy and managing the delivery of services and
other outputs set by members and each provides a check and a balance for
each other’s authority.

• Developing the capabilities of members and senior management to achieve
effective leadership and to enable the Company to respond successfully to
changing legal and policy demands as well as economic, political and
environmental changes and risks by:

I. Ensuring members and staff have access to appropriate induction tailored 
to their role and that ongoing training and development matching 
individual and organizational requirements is available and encouraged  

II. Ensuring members and officers have the appropriate skills, knowledge,
resources and support to fulfil their roles and responsibilities and ensuring
that they are able to update their knowledge on a continuing basis

III. Ensuring personal, organizational and system-wide development through
shared learning, including lessons learnt from governance weaknesses
both internal and external.

 Ensuring that there are structures in place to encourage public participation.

 Taking steps to consider the leadership’s own effectiveness and ensuring
leaders are open to constructive feedback from peer review and inspections.

 Holding staff to account through regular performance reviews which take
account of training or development needs.

• Ensuring arrangements are in place to maintain the health and wellbeing of the
workforce and support individuals in maintaining their own physical and mental
wellbeing.

Principle F 
Managing risks and 
performance 

• Recognizing that risk management is an integral part of all activities and must
be considered in all aspects of decision making.

• Implementing robust and integrated risk management arrangements and

• Risk Management Policy &
Strategy

• Scheme of Delegation
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through robust 
internal control and 
strong public 
financial 
management.  

Colchester Borough 
Homes must ensure 
that its governance 
structure that it has 
implemented, can 
sustain an effective 
performance 
management system 
that facilitates 
effective and efficient 
delivery of planned 
services.  
Risk management 
and internal control 
are important and 
integral parts of a 
performance 
management system 
and are crucial to the 
achievement of 
outcomes. Risk 
should be considered 
and addressed as part 
of all decision making 
activities.  
A strong system of 
financial management 
is essential for the 
implementation of 

ensuring that they are working effectively. 
• Ensuring that responsibilities for managing individual risks are clearly

allocated.
• Monitoring service delivery effectively including planning, specification,

execution and independent post implementation review.
• Making decisions based on relevant, clear objective analysis and advice

pointing out the implications and risks inherent in the Company’s financial,
social and environmental position and outlook.

• Ensuring an effective scrutiny or oversight function is in place which provides
constructive challenge and debate on policies and objectives before, during
and after decisions are made thereby enhancing the Company performance
and that of any organization for which it is responsible.

• Encouraging effective and constructive challenge and debate on policies and
objectives to support balanced and effective decision making.

• Providing members and senior management with regular reports on service
delivery plans and on progress towards outcome achievement.

• Ensuring there is consistency between specification stages (such as budgets)
and post implementation reporting (e.g. financial statements).

• Aligning the risk management strategy and policies on internal control with
achieving objectives.

• Evaluating and monitoring risk management and internal control on a regular
basis.

• Ensuring effective counter fraud and anti-corruption arrangements are in place.
• Ensuring additional assurance on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the

framework of governance, risk management and control is provided by the
internal auditor.

• Ensuring an audit committee or equivalent group/ function, which is independent
of the executive and accountable to the governing body:

I. Provides a further source of effective assurance regarding arrangements for 

• Business
Opportunities Panel
tTerms of rReference

• Finance & Audit
Committee tTerms
of rReference

• Governance
Appointments & 
Remuneration 
Committee tTerms of 
rReference 

• Operations Committee terms
of reference 

• Resident Panel Terms of
Reference

• Board Member Code of
Conduct

• Anti-Fraud and Corruption
Policy

• Internal Audit Charter
• External Audit Terms of

Reference
• Information & Confidentiality

Policy
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Principle Sub-principles CBH documents 

policies and the 
achievement of 
intended outcomes, 
as it will enforce 
financial discipline, 
strategic allocation of 
resources, efficient 
service delivery and 
accountability. 

It is also essential that 
a culture and structure 
for scrutiny are in 
place as a key part of 
accountable decision 
making, policy making 
and review. A positive 
working culture that 
accepts, promotes 
and encourages 
constructive challenge 
is critical to successful 
scrutiny and 
successful service 
delivery. Importantly, 
this culture does not 
happen automatically, 
it requires repeated 
public commitment 
from those in 
authority.  

managing risk and maintaining an effective control environment 
II. That its recommendations are listened to and acted upon
• Ensuring effective arrangements are in place for the safe collection, storage,

processing and sharing of data, including processes to safeguard personal data.
• Ensuring effective arrangements are in place and operating effectively when

sharing data with other bodies.
• Reviewing and auditing regularly the quality and accuracy of data used in

decision making and performance monitoring.
• Ensuring financial management supports both long-term achievement of

outcomes and short-term financial and operational performance.
• Ensuring well-developed financial management is integrated at all levels of

planning and control, including management of financial risks and controls.
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Principle G 
Implementing good 
practices in 
transparency, 
reporting, and audit 
to deliver effective 
accountability.  

Accountability is about 
ensuring that those 
making decisions and 
delivering services are 
answerable for them. 
Effective accountability 
is concerned not only 
with reporting on 
actions completed, but 
also ensuring that 
stakeholders are able 
to understand and 
respond as Colchester 
Borough Homes plans 
and carries out its 
activities in a 
transparent manner. 
Both external and 
internal audit contribute 
to effective 
accountability.  

• Writing and communicating reports for the public and other stakeholders in a
fair, balanced and understandable style appropriate to the intended audience
and ensuring that they are easy to access and interrogate.

• Striking a balance between providing the right amount of information to satisfy
transparency demands and enhance public scrutiny while not being too
onerous to provide and for users to understand.

• Reporting at least annually on performance, value for money and stewardship
of resources to stakeholders in a timely and understandable way.

• Ensuring members and senior management own the results reported.
• Ensuring robust arrangements for assessing the extent to which the principles

contained in this Framework have been applied and publishing the results on
this assessment, including an action plan for improvement and evidence to
demonstrate good governance (the annual governance statement).

• Ensuring that this Framework is applied to jointly managed or shared service
organizations as appropriate.

• Ensuring the performance information that accompanies the financial
statements is prepared on a consistent and timely basis and the statements
allow for comparison with other, similar organizations.

• Ensuring that recommendations for corrective action made by external audit
are acted upon.

• Ensuring an effective internal audit service with direct access to members is in
place, providing assurance with regard to governance arrangements and that
recommendations are acted upon.

• Welcoming peer challenge, reviews and inspections from regulatory bodies
and implementing recommendations.

• Gaining assurance on risks associated with delivering services through third
parties and that this is evidenced in the annual governance statement.

• Ensuring that when working in partnership, arrangements for accountability are
clear and the need for wider public accountability has been recognized & met.

• Board meeting reports
published on website

• Annual Report
• Communications Strategy
• Customer Plan
• AGM
• Annual Governance

Statement (within Financial
Statements)

• Annual Financial Statements
• Finance & Audit

Committee terms of
reference

• Internal Audit Plan
• External Audit Plan

Commented [OH9]: Superseded and in part replaced by 
Customer Plan (below). 
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3. Consultation

Best practice and guidance from CIPFA. Consultation with DMT, the Chair of the 
Board and Head of HR & Governance. The Governance & Remuneration Committee 
examined the draft of this code in March/April 2017 and recommended the updated 
code to Board for approval as it appears here. 

4. References

The document was produced and compiled in line with the SOLACE/CIPFA 
‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Framework (2016). 

5. Related documents

All documents included within the Code of Governance. These can be found on the 
CBH website. Please note that some documents are confidential for reasons of 
commercial sensitivity. These are not available to the public. 
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2014 
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Version Type Date Notes 

2.3 Minor 
revision 

Sept 
2016 

Two additions and one deletion of corporate 
documents included on the Code. Code put 
into current corporate format. 

3.0 Major 
revision 

June 
2017 

Replacement of 2007 CIPFA principles with 
2016 principles. Complete restructure of 
documents listed as providing evidence of 
compliance. 

3.1 Minor 
revision 

June 
2018 

Updating of documents and policies within the 
Code which evidence compliance with the 
Code’s principles. 
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REPORT TO COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES 

DATE: 20 June 2018 

TIME: 5.30pm 

VENUE: Room 1, Rowan House 

AGENDA ITEM: 16 

SUBJECT: Finance Assurance Report 

REPORT BY: Michael Hadjimichael, Director of Resources 
 (01206) 507815 
  michael.hadjimichael@cbhomes.org.uk 

FOR INFORMATION 

1. Purpose of the Report

1.1 To provide the Board with a high-level statement of the financial position at 31 
March 2018 as presented to Finance & Audit Committee 7 June 2018. 

2. Background

2.1 The accounts for the Company for 2017/18 have now been audited and our 
original figures submitted have been verified without any adjustments. 

2.2 The figures presented do not include any adjustments in respect of pensions 
(FRS17), though this will be incorporated into the statutory accounts. 

3. CBH Financial Position

3.1 CBH made a deficit for the year of £26,011 which is broken down as follows: 

2016-17 Summary - Income and Expenditure 

Cost centre description 
Actual 

Surplus/(Deficit) 

Management Fee (196,980) 
Property Services 108,663 
Trading Services 62,306 
Total Deficit 26,011 

      A more detailed analysis of this deficit is demonstrated in the following table 
overleaf: 
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2017-18 

£ 

Operating surplus before adjustments 297,989 
Reserves drawn down in year (224,000) 
Repairs surplus returned to CBC (76,000) 
FRS102 holiday pay adjustment (24,000) 

-26,011 

3.3 Trading Account 
CBH continued to develop its trading activities during 2017/18, resulting in a net 
surplus of £62,306. A breakdown of this is shown in Appendix 1, with 
performance reviewed at the Business Opportunities Panel throughout the year. 

3.4 Carry Forwards 
CBH carry forward requests totalling £51,000 were submitted to F&A Audit 
Committee for approval. 

3.5 In addition carry forwards of £27,700 on delegated budgets were requested and 
these have been submitted to CBC for approval. 

3.6 Reserves 
The overall reserves position total is £1,236,000. Of this balance £849,000 is ring 
fenced or committed to specific projects, £228,000 is a request for approval to 
F&A leaving an uncommitted balance at 31 March 2018 of £159,000. 

4. CBC delegated accounts

4.1 The final position for the year is an under spend of £263,300 compared to 
budget. This is primarily as a result of an underspend on Grounds Maintenance. 
A review of Grounds Maintenance was undertaken in year to bring spending in 
line with agreed services charge limits and the unspent budget was returned to 
CBC for reallocation. 

5. Risk Management

5.1 A strong financial control framework is essential for the successful delivery of the 
annual budget. Monthly review of all expenditure items takes place and income 
invoiced and collected in a timely manner. Any material items that may result in a 
significant variation away from target will be reported to F&A Audit Committee 
accordingly. 

6. Financial Implications

6.1 These are incorporated in the body of the report. 
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7. Value for Money Implications 

  

7.1 None. 
  

8. HR, H&S and Equality & Diversity Implications 

  
8.1 None. 
  
9. Residents at the Heart 

  
9.1 Residents are indirectly involved in budgetary control as they review our 

performance on a regular basis. Our performance on standards is underpinned 
by our expenditure. 
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Item 16. Appendix 1

Trading Analysis - 2017/18 Appendix 1

INCOME As at 31 Mar 18 Forecast outturn Actual outturn
to 31 Mar '18 to 31 Mar '17

Major Projects
CBC Projects - Architects fees 466,640 472,646 342,323
North Essex Parking Partnership 10,462 5,000 8,505

477,102 477,646 350,828
Major Projects Direct Expenses
External specialist costs 90,231 79,610 0

90,231 79,610 0

Net Fee Income Major Projects 386,871 398,036 350,828

Non-Direct Expenses
Corp Fac budget deficit 61,815 61,287 53,108
Corp Tech Team deficit** (16,243) (14,746) 11,170
Engineers Team deficit*** 48,524 45,000
Design Team costs 241,808 239,040 232,096
Administration support 10,000 10,000 10,000
Contribution to central overheads 14,550 14,000 7,605
Corporation tax 0 0 0

360,455 354,581 313,978

NET PROFIT / (LOSS) 26,416 43,455 36,850

Minor Projects *
Gurkhas Homes 5,470 1,000 2,894
Colchester Institute 1,512 2,000 1,900
Professional services 0 0 520
DFG Admin support 11,473 0
Tech Team 7,204 0 0
Total income from 'other' minor projects 72,175 72,500 71,030
Total expenditure from 'other' minor projects (61,944) (65,300) (63,718)
Net Profit / (Loss) from minor projects 35,890 10,200 12,625

TOTAL NET PROFIT / (LOSS) 62,306 53,655 49,475

Accumulated net profit b/fwd 126,085

2017-18 total profit outturn 62,306

Forecast accumulated total profit 188,391

* Minor projects include Coop Properties, Sale of Advertising space and Gateway System Management
** Deficit is a surplus in the year due to vacancy factor in Corp Tech Team
***Deficit for Engineers Team due to recharge from CBC for non core work
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REPORT TO COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES BOARD 

DATE: 20 June 2018 

TIME: 5.30pm 

VENUE: Room 1, Rowan House 

AGENDA ITEM: 17 

SUBJECT: Performance Assurance Report Q4 

REPORT BY: Karen Loweman, Director of Housing 
 (01206) 282805 
 karen.loweman@cbhomes.org.uk 

FOR DECISION 

1. Purpose of Report

1.1 To provide the Board with a high-level statement on the Company’s performance 
against the agreed Key Performance Indicators (KPIs). 

2. Recommendations & Decision required

2.1 That the Board notes areas of performance which are not reaching expected levels of 
performance.   

3. Background

3.1 The Medium Term Delivery Plan contains a selection of KPIs that reflects the 
Company’s vision & objectives for the coming year as well as the targets by which 
these are to be measured.   

3.2 The Operations Committee held on Thursday 10 May 2018 was the final meeting of 
the Committee. In the future, residents’ views on operational issues will be 
considered though a Resident Panel.      

3.3 The Operations Committee reviews the suite of KPIs at each meeting, and requests 
more detail where performance is below target. KPIs are shown as ‘green’, ‘amber’ or 
‘red’ against the performance target:  

 ‘Red’ - the indicator is not meeting performance expectation to date and/or is
unlikely to improve by year end.  Forecast is that it is unlikely that the target
set will be achieved.

 ‘Amber’ - the indicator is not meeting expectation.  There may be mitigating
circumstances and improvement likely, but risks are raised.
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 ‘Green’ - the indicator is meeting performance expectation, or as forecast 
top the next reporting period. 

  
3.4 This report gives assurance to the Board that any areas of concern are being 

monitored and addressed.  
  
3.5 The Operations Committee considered the following reports: 

a. Year End performance overview 
b. Medium Term Delivery Plan – year end progress 
c. Review and presentation from the manager of Older Persons Services 
d. Operations Committee chair’s annual assurance report for Finance & Audit 

Committee 
e. Review of strategic risks affecting operations 
f. Performance and trends in relation to complaints and complements 
g. Presentation on progress against strategy in relation to resident insight and 

engagement     
  
4. Performance Monitoring –  to end April 2018 
  
4.1 
 

The only area of performance which is not achieving target at the end of April 
(month 1 of 2018) is for Empty property management (Void control). The expected 
target is 25 days 

  
4.2 A total of 32 properties were re-let in the period with an average re-let time of 29.5 

days.   
4 properties took 28 days or longer to re-let, including one property damaged by fire 
which took 112 days to re-let.  If we are successful in recovering rental loss through 
an insurance claim, this position could retrospectively improve.   

  
5. Financial Implications 
  
5.1 The high level of rent collection and effective management of empty homes, 

maintains anticipated budget predictions.   
  
6 HR Implications 
  
6.1 Staffing levels are currently considered sufficient to deliver the required service 

level. 
  
7. Equality and Diversity Implications 
  
7.1 Performance monitoring supports CBH to ensure that services are delivered in a 

fair and accessible way.  
  
8 Residents at the Heart 
  
8.1 None 
  
9. Appendix - none 
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Minutes of the Operations Committee Meeting 

Held at 5.00 pm on Thursday 10 May 2018 
In Room 1, Rowan House 

Present: In Attendance: 

Alan Blois 
Michael Campbell 
Michala Carey 

(Chair) Mark Wright (MW) 
Karen Loweman (KL) 
Karen Williams (KW) 
Jon Cowie (JC) 
Emma Lapsley (EL) 
Ria Eustace (RE) 
Polly Hardy (PH) 
Owen Howell (OH) Minutes 

1. Apologies for absence

1.1 Apologies received from Cllr Mike Hogg. 

2. Minutes of the meeting held 7 February 2018 and Matters Arising

2.1 The minutes were approved for the chair to sign. 

3. Noting of Electronic Decisions taken relating to decision items on the
agenda for 7 February Committee meeting

3.1 The electronic decisions were noted. These decisions related to decision items 
which had to be deferred from 7 February (due to lack of quorum at that 
meeting). 

4. Older Persons’ Services (OPS): Service area update

4.1 EL presented the report prepared by Yvonne Day (OPS Manager). 

4.2 Issues highlighted: 
 Withdrawal of the ‘Housing related support/Supporting People’ funding from

Essex County Council (ECC). Significant work was done by CBH to ensure
minimal impact on tenants. The costs for support  are now recovered through
service charges with minimal complaints from tenants.

 Cost savings found – including in staffing rearrangements. Reduction in
management whilst safeguarding visiting officer posts and coverage. Have
kept staff available for face to face contact, other providers of sheltered
housing are increasingly replacing this with more telephone contact.

 Policies and procedures now reflect Working Smarter. New IT is being used
to make processes more efficient.

 Enoch House refurbishment a success with positive feedback from residents.
 Improvement work at Harrison Court is on schedule to finish this Summer.
 A more detailed asset register is to be introduced, allowing better and easier
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planning of work and when it will need to be done. The same is planned for 
grounds maintenance and this will mean charging can be better timed and 
updates given to residents. It will also reduce overlap of services with partner 
agencies. 

4.3 Committee Members gave their positive feedback of the renovated sheltered 
schemes, the landscaping and the involvement of the residents in providing 
feedback and taking part in activities. 

4.4 KL explained that CBH managed 19 sheltered schemes, with around 600 
residents. 

4.5 KW extolled the strength of resident involvement work carried out by the OPS 
team. 

4.6 KL informed Committee that CBH celebrated all birthdays over 100, with an 
increased budget. There are now 11 tenants older than 100, across sheltered 
and general needs stock. 

5. Q4 2017/18 Performance, KPIs and Medium Term Delivery Plan Progress
Report

5.1 Additional details were provided on the information on the KPI slides: 
 % of Housing Options cases where homelessness was prevented. This has

been a key driver through the year ahead of the Homelessness Reduction Act
coming into force.

 Use of B&B accommodation: This has now reduced from seven (end of
March) to three. The reduction in use of B&B has reduced our costs.

 Voids – time to re-let: Hard work has improved this KPI to come in on target.
 Under-occupied Council Homes: This percentage continues to diminish.

Many who remain under-occupying are exempt from the under-occupancy
penalty and/or only have small additional bedrooms.

 Repairs satisfaction: It is hoped that the high % will have a positive effect on
the 2018 STAR, currently in progress.

 Average days to complete a repair: Work will be done to increase the time
taken, to bring it closer to target whilst saving money from more efficient
scheduling to provide work whilst lowering costs.

 Properties with valid gas certificate: Fifth year in a row where this has been
100% for every month – due to hard work and joint working with housing
officers and contractors.

 Repairs & void cost per property: Because CBH has now maximised the
amount of underspend it can keep, the further savings made this financial
year on repair costs have been paid back to CBC, amounting to nearly £70k,
after accounting for money directed to pay for additional works authorised by
CBC. MW answered questions to give assurance that this will not mean that
CBC will reduce the Management Fee in future years (the repairs budget is
protected and set according to the Management Agreement).

 First call resolution: surveys have shown very positive feedback on time
taken, service quality and outcomes.

 Average waiting time for calls: With the exception of June/July (where call
volumes shot up owing to roll-out of the new waste collection arrangements),
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this has been well within target and improvements have been seen. 
 Former Tenant Arrears: The reduction has included the write-off of older

debts in order to focus on debts with better chance of collection. The focus is
now on collecting arrears before tenancies end. Committee were reminded
that HouseMark aggregate FTA collection with current tenant rent collection
when they compile their benchmarking data.

 Rent collection: The 1% drop in rent per year has helped, and resulted in
fewer evictions. The increase in collection has meant a large amount of
additional income coming to CBC.

 Leasehold service charge collection: A success and improvement on previous
years. Efforts to sign leaseholders up to direct debits have improved the
collection %.

 Non-decent homes: Shows that the slippage in spending during 2017/18 has
not had a detrimental effect on the stock.

5.2 In future there will be fewer, more focussed KPIs. Indicators rated Red or Amber 
will go to Board for discussion, but the full list of up-to-date KPIs will be provided 
to all Board Members and updated after each quarter. The Resident Panel will 
examine topics related to the KPIs as part of that body’s work. 

5.3 The Committee praised the hard work by officers to produce excellent KPI results 
for 2017/18. Committee formally thanked all officers who had contributed to 
these results. 

5.4 Medium Term Delivery Plan progress highlights and areas to note were covered. 
Additionally: 
 The new security measures in place at the Library customer hub. Additional

security is being paid for, with work ongoing to further improve our customer
management and mitigate risks.

 Homelessness Reduction Act: Staff have worked hard to learn the new IT
systems, new legislation, new appointment system and systems for producing
housing plans etc. and ensure new staff are up to speed.

 The CBC Client Team is being restructured.
 The Landlord Forum (private sector) in April attracted over 90 landlords, up

from 6 when the service was taken over by CBH.
 There is additional work going on regarding the Mercury Theatre and the

unique technical challenges which are being worked upon.
 EU procurement rules will continue to be in force (including through the Public

Procurement Act) until these are amended or repealed in Parliament. All EU
regulations are expected to be transferred into UK law by the EU Withdrawal
Bill.

6. Operations Committee Assurance Report

6.1 The report summarises the work of the Committee in 2017/18 and is presented 
to Finance & Audit Committee. This would be seen at their July meeting. 

6.2 Decision: Committee approved the report. 

7. Strategic Risks affecting operations (Q3).

7.1 Committee noted the emerging and operational risk registers. 
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7.2 Committee asked if anyone had shown interest in buying Maytree Court from 
CBC. KL and MW confirmed this was so, but that some issues needed to be 
resolved concerning the conditions of sale. The property continued to be 
monitored by CBH, with officer visits, a fire risk assessment and safety checks. 

7.3 The Strategic Risk relating to Homelessness Reduction Act is currently scored at 
15, but this will significantly reduce over the coming months due to the 
considerable preparatory work that had been done, and the large-scale 
mitigations put in place. 

8. Complaints & Compliments Performance (Q4)

8.1 RE explained that there had been a limited number of formal complaints owing to 
work being done to resolve issues informally and address any actions necessary. 

8.2 Work is being done to improve the processes and systems within the area of 
complaints, to improve performance in 2018/19. RE thanked Committee for its 
support in this service area and for providing helpful oversight. 

8.3 RE confirmed that the number of enquiries from councillors had not increased as 
much in 2018 as it had done in previous years. Councillors had been briefed with 
more information on CBH and how to raise resident issues. The Members 
Enquiries process is being worked upon to make it more efficient and easier to 
use. New councillors will also be briefed on how to raise issues and councillors 
are invited to sheltered accommodation AGMs. 

8.4 The Ombudsman complaint (at 2.5) relating to flooding is now under 
consideration by the Local Government Ombudsman and CBH awaits their 
ruling. 

8.5 The Chair and Committee thanked RE for all the work that she has carried out in 
dealing with formal and informal complaints. 

9. Resident Insight & Engagement Performance (Q4)

9.1 PH presented the handouts and promotional materials produced. This included a 
consolidation of the ongoing work and successes achieved so far. [Copies of the 
presentation are available on request]. 

9.2 There are now around 107 QAAs/SQAAs. They now hold networking lunches, 
scrutiny meetings and provide scrutiny of different areas including contractors’ 
work for CBH. 

9.3 New workshop events have given residents more opportunity to talk over 
different issues with CBH staff. Tenants are able to hold CBH accountable and 
give their views. 

9.4 Good Neighbour/Garden of the Year Awards produced really good feedback and 
were a success. Only criticism received was that more room was needed. 

9.5 Engagement embedding work is going on throughout CBH to ensure and 
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maintain services which meet the needs and expectations of residents. This has 
been assisted by the use of impact assessments across the Company. 

9.6 Training for residents continues to be offered. Work is ongoing to help groups 
improve their communities as a whole. There has also been continued effort in 
helping unemployed residents back in to work. 

9.7 The chair expressed the Committee’s thanks and admiration of the work done by 
PH and by staff across CBH, for their work and success to increase the amount 
of resident engagement and involvement, such as the increase in number of 
QAAs. PH praised colleagues’ efforts and explained that strategic direction had 
helped, along with more signposting of involvement opportunities, tailored to 
people’s interests. More clarity in showing the outcomes of involvement has also 
helped to maintain and increase interest. 

9.8 Committee recommended that this presentation be given to the full Board at its 
next meeting. Action: OH to forward recommendation to the Chair of the Board 
and make the necessary arrangements. 

9.9 MW highlighted the setting up of a tenant group to review the draft Repairs 
Policy, due then to go to Board. MW suggested that this be used as an example 
of the work going on, and one to show the value added by resident involvement. 

9.10 Committee members praised the improvements in MAD Days. PH explained that 
this was partly due to an increase in preparatory work, communications and 
heeding feedback received as to what residents wanted. 

10. Any other business

10.1 In answer to questions, MW explained that the purchasing of 16 new properties 
by CBC were ongoing, with two completed so far. 

10.2 Chair expressed his thanks for the work done by all members of the Committee 
over the years, and by all officers who had supported the Committee’s work. 

With no further business, the meeting finished at 6:24pm. 

List of Actions from Operations Committee 

Item Action Who By When Done 

10 May 2018 

9.8 

Forward recommendation to the Chair of 
the Board that Board is given the Resident 
Involvement presentation, and make the 
necessary arrangements. 

OH 11.05.18 

Yes 
(added 

to Board 
Agenda) 
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2018-19 Board Forward Plan 

Please note: Items highlighted in yellow will be for information only, but Board 
Members are invited to raise any questions that they might have on these items at 
the meeting under which they are listed. 

Date Item Committee Presenting 

23 Jul ‘18 

Strategic Risk Register Review F&A DoR 

Reduction to 1 Board Vice Chair at 
2018 AGM – FOR DECISION n/a Chair 

Annual Safeguarding report n/a DoH 

12 Sep 
‘18 

Strategic Health & Safety Policy
& Statement – FOR DECISION

n/a CEO & H&S M 

Annual Equality & Diversity Report n/a DoR 

Annual Report from F&A F&A Jun ‘18 DoR 

Strategic Risk Register Review F&A DoR 

Annual HR Report n/a HoHR 

Leadership Plan Review CEO 

Approval of new Tenant Board Member 
– FOR DECISION

n/a Chair 

1 Nov ’18 
(and 
AGM) 

Internal Audit Charter F&A 
DoR 

Customer Plan Review 

Strategic Risk Register Review F&A DoR 

AGM 

Standard Items on AGM agenda: 

 Approval of Company Annual
Report

 Adoption of Financial Statements
 Appointment of External Auditors
 Appointment of Vice Chairs
 Appointment of F&A Chair (if

necessary)
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Date Item Committee Presenting 

 Annual Resident Insight &
Engagement report

 Noting of Resident Board Member
selection results

10 Dec 
‘18 

Complaints Policy n/a SIO 

Housing Investment Programme and 
Asset Management Programme ‘19/20 
presentation FOR DECISION 

n/a 
DoPS 

VFM, Tech & Investment Plan Review DoR 

Strategic Risk Register Review F&A DoR 

21 Feb 
‘19 

CBH Budget 2019/20 report F&A DoR 

Housing Investment Programme and 
Asset Management Programme 
2019/20 (Housing Futures Programme) 
FOR DECISION 

n/a 

DoPS 

Medium Term Delivery Plan approval n/a SDM 

Strategic Risk Register Review F&A DoR 

Board Member Recruitment Policy n/a BAO 

Community Plan Review 

Trading Review Confidential BOP CEO 
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